
 
 

Shelton City Council 
Meeting Agenda 

December 3, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. 
Civic Center & Virtual Platform 

 
 
A.  Call to Order 

• Pledge of Allegiance 
• Roll Call 
• Late Changes to the Agenda   

B.  Council Reports   
C.  Consent Agenda (Action) 

1.  Vouchers numbered 111956 through 111979 and EFT payment numbers 804 through 818 in the total 
amount of $59,369.05 

2.  Vouchers numbered 112000 through 112032, EFT payment numbers 819 through 837 in the total  
     amount of $266,521.16 and bank draft numbers DFT0001754, DFT0001770, DFT0001771, DFT0001774 

through DFT0001784 in the total amount of $157,626.65 
3.  Payroll warrants numbered 4011 through 4013 and 13753 through 13850. Warrants 111985 through 

111996 in the amount of $361,599.87 
 4.  Minutes: 

• Business Meeting of October 15, 2024 
• Study Session of October 22, 2024 

      5.  Resolution No. 1354-1024 Amendment No. 1 to Work Order #BHC-24011 for Structural Design on Water  
           Reservoir Vent Hoods 
      6.  September Financial Status Report 
                
D.  General Public Comment (3-minute time limit) 
      The Council invites members of the public to provide comments on any City-related topic. To make comments in person, please 
        sign in on the public comment sheet and keep an instruction card. If you would like to comment on an Action item, please write 
        the agenda item number on the list. To comment virtually using Zoom, please use the “Raise Hand” feature to alert the City Clerk. 
        If you have joined Zoom on your telephone, dial *9 to use the “Raise Hand” feature. City Councilmembers and City Staff will not enter 
        into a dialogue during public comment. If the Council feels an issue requires follow up, Staff will be directed to respond at an    
        appropriate time. 
   
E.  Presentations 
     1.  Swearing-in Police Corporal 
     2.  Innovating Justice Award – Presented by Judge Stephen Greer & Court Administrator Dyan Smolinsky 
 
F.  Business Agenda (Study/No Action) 

1.  Resolution No. 1353-1024 2025 Legislative Agenda – Presented by City Manager Mark Ziegler & 
Community & Economic Development Director Jae Hill 

2.  Resolution No. 1355-1124 Fleet Management Master Equity Lease Agreement – Presented by Finance 
Director Mike Githens 

 
G.  Public Hearing (Public Testimony Taken) 

 1.  Ordinance No. 2026-1024 2024 Budget Supplemental – Presented by Finance Director Mike Githens 
      2.  Ordinance No. 2027-1024 Sales & Use Tax for Housing Related Services – Presented by City  

      Manager Mark Ziegler 



  
  
  
H.  Action Agenda (Action/Public Comment Taken) 

 1.  Resolution No 1360-1124 Labor Contracts-Shelton Employees Guild, IAMW Local 38 (Customer Service), 
      & Shelton Police Guild – Presented by City Manager Mark Ziegler 
 

 I.  Administration Reports 
     1.  City Manager Report 
 
J.  New Items for Discussion 
 
K.  Announcement of Next Meeting – December 17, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
L.  Adjourn 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Special Note for Virtual Public Participation 
 

The meeting can be viewed at: https://www.youtube.com/user/cityofshelton 

The public can provide comments virtually by: 
Email:  donna.nault@sheltonwa.gov (before 4:00pm the day of the meeting)  

Telephone: (360) 432-5103 (before 4:00pm the day of the meeting) 
 

Your comments will be relayed directly to the Council. 

https://www.youtube.com/user/cityofshelton
mailto:donna.nault@sheltonwa.gov


 

Updated 11/25/2024 
 

  
2024/25 Looking Ahead 
    (Items and dates are subject to change) 

 
 

 
Tues. 12/10 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda 
• Capital Projects Update 

Packet Items Due: 
12/6 @ noon 

Tues. 12/10 
After Study 
Session 

Special Meeting Executive Session 
• Performance of a Public Employee 

N/A 

Tues. 12/17 
5:30 p.m. 

Special Meeting Executive Session 
• Potential Litigation 

N/A 

Tues. 12/17 
5:45 p.m. 
CANCELLED 
 
 
 

 

SMPD Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Meeting Minutes 

Business Agenda 
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
12/6 @ 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 12/17 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 
• Resolution No. 1361-1124 Safe Routes to 

School Construction Final Acceptance 
Presentations 

• October Financial Status Report 
Business Agenda 

• Resolution No. 1358-1124 Accepting 
MACECOM Lease Agreement  

Public Hearing 
• Public Hearing Ordinance No. 2025-0924 

Revisions to Permitted Uses Matrix 
Action Agenda 

• Ordinance No. 2026-1024 2024 Budget 
Supplemental 

• Ordinance No. 2027-1024 Sales & Use Tax 
for Housing Related Services 

• Resolution No. 1353-1024 2025 Legislative 
Agenda 

• Resolution No. 1355-1124 Fleet 
Management Master Equity Lease 
Agreement 

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
12/6 @ 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 12/24 
6:00 p.m. 
CANCELLED 

Study Session Study Agenda Packet Items Due: 
12/20 @ noon 

Tues. 1/7/25 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
• Police Officer Swearing-in 

Packet Items Due: 
12/27 @ 5:00 p.m. 



 

Updated 11/25/2024 
 

Business Agenda 
• Parks Advisory Committee Reappointments  
• Arts Commission Reappointments  
• Resolution No. 1357-1124 Accepting 

Memorandum of Agreement with WSU 
Extension  

• Resolution No. 1359-1124 Accepting 
Dumontet Lease Agreement  

• Resolution No. 1362-1124 Agreement for 
Systemic Ped. Safety & Olympic Hwy North 
Improvements Design Services 

• Resolution No. 1363-1124 On-Call A&E 
Consultant Pool Agreements 

Public Hearing 
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Tues. 1/14/25 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
1/10 @ noon 

Tues. 1/21/25 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 
• Parks Advisory Committee Reappointments 
• Arts Commission Reappointments  

Presentations 
• November Financial Status Report 

Business Agenda 
• Resolution No. 1350-0924 Mid-Block 

Crossing (OBJH) Design Enhancement 
Approval 

Public Hearing 
•  

Action Agenda 
• Resolution No. 1362-1124 Agreement for 

Systemic Ped. Safety & Olympic Hwy North 
Improvements Design Services 

• Resolution No. 1363-1124 On-Call A&E 
Consultant Pool Agreements 

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
1/10 @ 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 1/28/25 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
1/24 @ noon 

Tues. 2/4/25 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda 
•  

Public Hearing 
•  

Action Agenda 

Packet Items Due: 
1/24 @ 5:00 p.m. 



 

Updated 11/25/2024 
 

• Resolution No. 1350-0924 Mid-Block 
Crossing (OBJH) Design Enhancement 
Approval 

Administration Report 
•  

Tues. 2/11/25 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda 
• Presentation - Gas Station Heroin 

Packet Items Due: 
2/7 @ noon 

Tues. 2/18/25 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda 
•  

Public Hearing 
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
2/7 @ 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 2/25/25 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
2/21 @ noon 

Other – TBD 

• International Property Maintenance Code  
• Ordinance No. 2025-0924 Revisions to Permitted Uses Matrix (March 4 meeting) 

 































































 
 

CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON - CITY COUNCIL 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
October 15, 2024 – 6:00 p.m. 

Civic Center & Virtual Platform 

COUNCILMEMBERS AND PERSONNEL  
Councilmembers: Personnel: 
Mayor Eric Onisko City Manager Mark Ziegler  
Deputy Mayor Sharon Schirman City Clerk Pro Tem Danielle Dedmon 
George Blush Finance Director Mike Githens  
Tom Gilmore Capital Projects Manager Aaron Nix 
Miguel Gutierrez Superintendent Brent Armstrong  
Lyndsey Sapp 
Melissa Stearns     
   
CALL TO ORDER 
Call to Order: 6:00 p.m. 
Pledge of Allegiance: Mayor Onisko 
Roll Call: City Clerk Pro Tem Dedmon – All Present 
 
LATE CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
None 
 
CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 
None 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
1. Vouchers numbered 111636 through 111677 and EFT payment numbers 686 through 705 in the total     
    amount of $166,161.77 
2. Payroll warrants numbered 3999 and 13348 through 13446 and 111620 through 111632 in the amount of   

$366.704.86 
3. Vouchers numbered 111701 through 111734 and EFT payment numbers 706 through 728 in the total     
    amount of $184,861.20 
4. Payroll warrants numbered 4000 through 4003 and 13447 through 13549 and 111678 through 111696 in the   

amount of $522,959.60 
5. Minutes: 

• Study Session of September 10, 2024 
 
City Clerk Pro Tem Dedmon read the items on the consent agenda. A motion was made by Councilmember 
Gutierrez and seconded by Councilmember Stearns to approve the consent agenda as read. Passed. 
                
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT (3-minute time limit) 
In-Person: Zoom: 
Monte Ritter     Dave Redman 
Ted Kyllonen 
Susan Kirchoff 
Tamra Ingwaldson 
Dean Jewett 
 
 
 



 

City Council – October 15, 2024 - Meeting Minutes 
Civic Center & Virtual Platform  Page 2 of 2 

PRESENTATIONS 
1.  August Financial Status Report – Presented by Finance Director Mike Githens 
 
Finance Director Githens presented an overview of the financial reports through the month of August.  
    
BUSINESS AGENDA 
1.  LTAC Recommendations – Presented by City Manager Mark Zeigler 
 
City Manager Zeigler presented the LTAC recommendations. No discussion.  
 
A motion was made by Councilmember Gutierrez and seconded by Councilmember Stearns to place the LTAC 
recommendations on the action agenda for the November 5, 2024 council meeting. Passed.  
 
ACTION AGENDA 
1.  Resolution No. 1340-0624 Water Meter Upgrades Installation (AMI) Project Award – Presented by Capital       
     Projects Manager Aaron Nix 
 
Capital Projects Manager Nix presented information regarding the AMI project award. Discussion followed. No 
public comment. City Clerk Pro Tem Dedmon provided a reading of Resolution No. 1340-0624. 
 
A motion was made by Councilmember Gutierrez and seconded by Councilmember Gilmore to approve 
Resolution No. 1340-0642 as presented. Passed. 
 
2.  Resolution No. 1351-0924 ILA with Mason County for Reimbursable Work, Supplies, and Services – 
     Presented by Superintendent Brent Armstrong 
 
Superintendent Armstrong presented information regarding an ILA with Mason County. Discussion followed. 
No public comment. City Clerk Pro Tem Dedmon provided a reading of Resolution No. 1351-0924. 
 
A motion was made by Councilmember Gutierrez and seconded by Councilmember Blush to waive the three-
touch rule and approve Resolution No. 1351-0924 as presented. Passed. 
 
ADMINISTRATION REPORT 
1. City Manager Report 

• Fall is here and leaves are falling. Please don’t blow leaves into the street to help our storm drains 
stay clear. 

 
NEW ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
None 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT MEETING 
Study Session – October 22, 2024 at 6:00 p.m.  
City Council Meeting – November 5, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
MEETING ADJOURN 
Mayor Onisko adjourned the meeting at 6:44 p.m. 
 
 
 
_________________________  _________________________________ 
Mayor Eric Onisko  City Clerk Donna Nault 



 
 

CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON - CITY COUNCIL 
Study Session Minutes 

October 22, 2024 – 6:00 p.m. 
Civic Center & Virtual Platform 

 

City Council - Study Session 
October 22, 2024 
Civic Center & Virtual Platform Page 1 of 1 
 

 

COUNCILMEMBERS AND PERSONNEL  
Councilmembers: Personnel:  
Mayor Eric Onisko Acting City Manager Mike Githens   
George Blush City Clerk Donna Nault  
Tom Gilmore (Zoom) Public Works Director Jay Harris 
Miguel Gutierrez  
Lyndsey Sapp 
Melissa Stearns 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Call to Order: 6:00 p.m. 
Roll Call: City Clerk Nault – Absent: Deputy Mayor Sharon Schirman 
 
STUDY AGENDA 
1. Pavement Preservation Program – Presented by Public Works Director Jay Harris 
 
Public Works Director Harris presented information regarding the pavement preservation program. 
Discussion followed. 
 
NEW ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
None 
 
ADJOURN 
Mayor Onisko adjourned the meeting at 6:50 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________  _________________________________ 
Mayor Eric Onisko     City Clerk Donna Nault 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item C5) 

Touch Date: 10/28/2024  
Brief Date:    11/19/2024        
Action Date: 12/03/2024   

Department: Public Works 
   
Presented By: Aaron Nix, Capital Projects Manager 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
Reservoir Structural Design for Vent 
Hoods 
   
ATTACHMENTS:  
01_Resolution No. 1354-1024 
02_Amendement #1 
03_Original Task Work Order 

   

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  JOH 

 
 

 
Finance Director   

 
 

 
Attorney  

 
 

 
City Clerk  

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
In early 2024, City staff were made aware of a Department of Health requirement that the older City water 
reservoirs need to be retrofitted with upgraded vent hoods & screens to prevent contaminants from potentially 
entering the reservoirs. All older style vent hoods are required to be replaced to meet current venting/screening 
standards, for which 4 of the 5 reservoirs in the city are not compliant and need to be upgraded by January 1, 
2026 (DOH required). The 4 reservoirs are 50+ years old, the city does not have as-built plans or structural 
calculations for the structures. To complete a design for the upgrades, the city will need a structural engineer to 
measure the existing reservoir vent openings and other structural elements to ensure that expanding the vent 
hole in the top of the reservoirs will not reduce the structural integrity of the facilities and their ability to hold 
water. The original task order for this project assumed that formal structural analysis was not needed to 
proceed with the design of the upgrades, and for safety purposes a structural analysis is needed to complete 
the design of the new hood vents. 
 
The original consultant work order authorized the work to proceed, with a not to exceed amount of $20,715. To 
complete the design work, an additional $17,110 is needed for the as-built measurements and structural 
calculations, with a new not to exceed amount of $37,825.00. Approval by the City Council is needed as the 
new amount surpasses the City Manager’s $30,000 spending authorization threshold. 
   
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
The replacement of these vent hoods is required by DOH and are not an optional replacement project. To 
complete the project design, the structures will need to be analyzed by a structural engineer to ensure that the 
new venting systems meet DOH current standards and the structural integrity is not compromised at the 
reservoir facilities.  
   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
Staff have budgeted $100,000 (2024) and $150,000 (2025) to complete the design and installation of 4 vent 
hoods on 4 reservoirs within the City of Shelton. 
   
 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
All materials are available and can be obtained from the Public Works Department.   
   
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff recommends “I move to adopt Resolution No. 1354-1024 within the consent agenda at the December 3, 
2024 Council meeting.”  
 



RESOLUTION 1354-1024 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO APPROVE A PUBLIC WORKS ON-CALL 

CONSULTANT ROSTER WORK ORDER FOR PROVIDING THE CITY STRUCTURAL 
CALCULATIONS IN DESIGNING REQUIRED VENT HOODS ON OUR WATER 

RESERVOIRS 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Shelton has received correspondence from the Washington State Department of 
Health to replace 4 older style vents hoods associated with older water reservoirs within the City of 
Shelton, by January 1, 2026; and 

WHEREAS, the City entered into a work order agreement (March 2024) with BHC Consultants to 
design required modifications to the City’s reservoir vents, located on 4 older reservoirs within the City’s 
water service area; and 

WHEREAS, the City does not have certified as-builts or the original construction documents associated 
with the 4 reservoirs to complete formal structural calculations for the design of the retrofitting work for 
the required venting system for each of the reservoirs; and 

WHEREAS, the original work order was set at a not to exceed amount of $20,715 and where an 
additional amount of $17,110 is needed in order to correctly as-built and provide structural analysis for 
each of these reservoirs in a new amount not to exceed $37,825.00. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City of Shelton, Washington, that the City Manager is hereby 
authorized to execute a work order for the identified tasks in the attached scope/fee with BHC Consultants 
(On-Call Consultant) in the completion of the design in retrofitting 4 City of Shelton water utility 
reservoirs in meeting DOH venting requirements, and authorized to execute any change orders up to 20% 
of the new not to exceed amount. 

INTRODUCED on the 19th of November 2024 and PASSED by the City Council under the consent 
agenda at its regular meeting on the 3rd of December 2024. 

 

 
 
 
 
ATTEST:                                                                                      __________________________ 
                 Mayor Onisko  
 
________________________________ 
City Clerk Nault 



Work Order BHC-24011 Amendment No. 1
Date: December 3, 2024

Task: Reservoir Roof Retrofit Design – Amendment No. 1

To:  BHC Consultants, LLC

Scope of Work: In addition to the scope defined in the original Work Order, BHC Consultants 
will also gather reservoir roof and vent support asbuilt data and prepare a report of the 
findings, as well as complete structural analysis on four water reservoirs, as described in 
Exhibit A, attached hereto.
Original Budget:  $20,715.00 
Budget increased by this Amendment No. 1: $17,110
New Not To Exceed Amount: $37,825.00

Task Order Contact Information
City of Shelton BHC Consultants, LLC

Name: Mike Albaugh Name: Ryan Hale, PE
Phone: 360.490.1279 Phone: 206.505.3400
Email Address: mike.albaugh@sheltonwa.gov Email Address: rhale@bhcconsultants.com

Approving Signatures
City of Shelton: Date: 

Mark Ziegler, City Manager
BHC Consultants, LLC: Date:

Cameron Ochiltree, Executive Vice President

This work shall be done according to the contractual agreement titled, On-Call Qualified Pool List, 
Water System Conveyance, Pumping, and Storage between City of Shelton and BHC Consultants, LLC 
dated February 10, 2021.

Invoices pertaining to assigned Work Orders shall be accompanied by a completed Billing Voucher, 
referencing the Work Order Number (located at the top of this form), and shall be submitted via email 
to PW.Invoices@sheltonwa.gov.

Work Order #BHC-24011
Amendment No. 1

Page 1 of 8

mailto:PW.Invoices@sheltonwa.gov


  

On-Call Qualified Pool List – Water Systems Conveyance, Pumping and Storage 

Reservoir Roof Vents Retrofits Design 

Scope of Work 

Work Order No. BHC-24011 – Amendment # 1 

The general provisions and clauses of the On-Call agreement executed February 10th, 2021 between the 

City of Shelton (“City”) and BHC Consultants, LLC (“BHC”) shall be in full force and effect for this 

Task Order Assignment. 

Project Title:  Reservoir Roof Vents Retrofits Design 

Maximum Amount Payable:  Initial Authorization $20,715  

   Revised through Amendment Request $37,825 (see attached Exhibit A-1) 

Completion Date:  January, 2025 

Description of Work: 

BHC has been working on the original work order since City authorization in March 2024. The 

City has expressed a desire to evaluate the structural capacity of the Mountain View, Angleside, High 

School, and Capital Hill Tanks to support proposed reservoir roof vent retrofits. The City’s latest 

Department of Health (DOH) Sanitary Survey identified four reservoir roof vents that do not meet 

current DOH requirements for shrouds and screening. The original Work Order included developing 

final design documents for the replacement of the four existing reservoir roof vents with roof vents that 

meet the DOH shroud and screening requirements. The design documents have been reviewed by the 

City and have been finalized, pending design changes prompted by the structural analysis. As directed 

by the City, this amendment proposal seeks to capture the unscoped reservoir asbuilting efforts and 

structural analysis.  

Under this Amendment No. 1 Scope of Work (SOW) Evergreen Coating Engineers, LLC (ECE) will 

gather the roof plate thicknesses of each reservoir around the roof vent utilizing an ultrasonic steel 

thickness gage. Coating samples will be gathered of the exterior coatings and tested for RCRA 8 Total 

Metals Content, with the exception of mercury which is not known to be a metal of concern in reservoir 

coating systems.  The High School tank requires the dimensions of the center column and inner rafter 

ring to be obtained.  This data will be gathered by floating the reservoir in a raft.  BHC will use the 

gathered as-built roof plate thicknesses, center column, and inner rafter ring dimensions to evaluate the 

existing tank roof structural capacities to support the proposed roof vent retrofit designs in the original 

work order.  

Local jurisdictional approval from the City’s building department, as well as preparation and approval of 

a project design report by DOH, are assumed to not be required and are not included in this SOW. 

Environmental permitting and cultural resource investigations are not included in this SOW. 

 

 

Work Order #BHC-24011
Amendment No. 1

Page 2 of 8

BKilts
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



 

 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

The anticipated levels of effort for the additional scope of work identified in the Description of Work are 

summarized in the table below. The associated fees for the additional work are broken down by labor 

classification and totaled in Exhibit A. 

Task 1 – Project Management, Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC) - Design 

Project management occurs throughout the duration of the as-builting and analysis phase, with 

anticipated delivery of a final structural evaluation memo and structural calculations package within 2 

months of Notice to Proceed. Efforts include: 

▪ Project Initiation. Project initiation, including amendment execution and authorization; project 

update within accounting/invoicing software and appropriate web hosted applications; internal 

kickoff efforts with the BHC project team to review scope, milestones, deliverables, project 

communications, documentation, and available information. 

▪ Client Communications, Team Coordination, Budget Monitoring and Invoicing. Ongoing client 

communications, BHC team coordination/technical direction, progress and budget monitoring, 

and invoicing. 

▪ QA/QC Program. Senior internal QA/QC review of the deliverables in different stages of the 

project in advance of delivery to the City. 

Task 2 – Asbuilt Data Gathering and Report 

ECE will visit the four tanks to gather roof and support asbuilt data and prepare a report of the findings. 

ECE will gather the roof plate thicknesses of each reservoir around the roof vent utilizing an ultrasonic 

steel thickness gage. Coating samples will be gathered of the exterior coatings and tested for RCRA 8 

Total Metals Content, with the exception of mercury which is not known to be a metal of concern in 

reservoir coating systems. The High School tank requires the dimensions of the center column and inner 

rafter ring to be obtained. This data will be gathered by floating the reservoir in a raft. ECE will prepare a 

memorandum with the asbuilt data included and exterior coating sample test results attached for BHC. 

See attached Exhibit B-1 Task 1 for ECE’s scope and budget.  

 

Task 3 – Structural Analysis and Memo 

BHC will use the gathered as-built roof plate thicknesses, center column, and inner rafter ring 

dimensions from ECE in Task 2 to evaluate the existing tank roof structural capacities to support the 

proposed roof vent retrofit designs in the original Work Order SOW. Methods for evaluation may 

include comparative loading analysis and/or computer modeling of the roof. BHC will prepare a 

structural evaluation memo and structural calculations package for submittal to the City. 

 

 

 

Work Order #BHC-24011
Amendment No. 1

Page 3 of 8



ASSUMPTIONS 

Management time is based on a 2-month duration to collect asbuilt data and perform the structural 

analysis. 

ECE will visit the following reservoirs for this scope of work:  

▪ Mountain View: 65’ tall, 40’ diam.    Design: self-supporting dome  

▪ Angleside: 66’ tall, 34’ diam.   Design: self-supporting dome  

▪ High School: 24’ tall, 60’ diam.    Design: rafters and a single center column.   

▪ Capital Hill: 70’ tall, 23’ diam.    Design: self-supporting dome 

Site visits are conducted in one day.  City or BHC will provide a hole watch while ECE is inside of the 

High School reservoir. Available information requested from the City will be provided in a timely 

manner and will be assumed to be current, accurate and reflective of existing system conditions. 

All other assumptions under the original authorization remain valid.  

 

SCHEDULE 

BHC will undertake to complete the SOW based on the milestones listed below, assuming notice to 

proceed is provided by November 1, 2024: 

▪ Site visits for asbuilt data gathering and report in November 2024. 

▪ Delivery of a final structural evaluation memo and structural calculations package by the end of 

2024.  

 

DELIVERABLES 

 

▪ A memorandum from ECE with the asbuilt data included and exterior coating sample test results 

attached in PDF electronic format.  

▪ A final structural evaluation memo and structural calculations package from BHC in PDF 

electronic format. 

▪ Monthly invoicing.  

 

 

Authorization Date:   

 

BHC Signature:   Date:   

 

City Signature:   Date:   

 

 

Work Order #BHC-24011
Amendment No. 1

Page 4 of 8



Direct

Expenses and 

10% Sub

Hourly Billing Rate: $255 $175 $255 $135 $130 Hours Cost Markup

1 PROJECT MANAGEMENT, QA/QC 

Project Initiation 1 1 1 3 $440 $440

Client Communications, Team Coordination, Budget Monitoring and Invoicing 3 2 5 $795 $795

Quality Assurance/Quality Control Program 2 2 $510 $510

2 4 0 3 1 10

$510 $700 $0 $405 $130 $1,745 $0 $0 $1,745

2 ASBUILT DATA GATHERING AND REPORT

Asbuilt Data Gathering and Report 12 12 $2,100 $5,250 $675 $8,025

0 12 0 0 0 12

$0 $2,100 $0 $0 $0 $2,100 $5,250 $675 $8,025

3 STRUCTURAL ANALYSIS AND MEMO

Structural Analysis and Memo 4 24 4 32 $7,340 $7,340

0 $0 $0

0 $0 $0

0 $0 $0

0 4 24 0 4 32

$0 $700 $6,120 $0 $520 $7,340 $0 $0 $7,340

2 20 24 3 5 54 $11,185 $5,250 $675 $17,110

OVERALL WORK ORDER AMENDED BUDGET REQUEST $37,825

Task Description
Proj Admin  

Coughlin

Clerical  

McElwain

TASK SUBTOTAL, HOURS 

TASK SUBTOTAL, LABOR COST 

TOTAL DIRECT LABOR AND OVERALL COST

TASK SUBTOTAL, LABOR COST 

TASK SUBTOTAL, HOURS 

TASK SUBTOTAL, LABOR COST 

TASK SUBTOTAL, HOURS 

EXHIBIT A-1

 BUDGET SPREADSHEET

Work Order No. BHC 24001 – Reservoir Roof Vents Retrofit Design

BHC Total Labor

City of Shelton On-Call Qualified Pool List – Water Systems Conveyance, Pumping and Storage

QA/QC                      

Kelsey

PM           

Hale

Structural      

Dahl

Amendment No. 1 – Reservoir Roof Vent Asbuilting and Structural Analysis

TOTAL COST
Subconsultant    

Fees

Task No.

Work Order #BHC-24011
Amendment No. 1

Page 5 of 8



EXHIBIT A -1
 

SCOPE OF WORK 

BHC Consultants 

Evergreen Coating Engineers, LLC 

City of Shelton 
Reservoir Roof Vent Asbuilting 

Project Overview 

The Project consists of gathering information as described within this scope of work in order to assist BHC 
Consultants, LLC (BHC) with a project to replace the roof vents on four reservoirs within the City of 
Shelton’s (City) system.  Evergreen Coating Engineers, LLC (ECE) is also including an optional task to 
provide a condition assessment of the reservoirs as well.   

Task 1 – Asbuilt Data Gathering and Report 

ECE visit the following reservoirs for this scope of work: 

 Mountain View: 65’ tall, 40’ diam.  Design: self-supporting dome 
 Angleside: 66’ tall, 34’ diam.  Design: self-supporting dome 
 HighSchool: 24’ tall, 60’ diam.  Design: rafters and a single center column.  
 Capital Hill: 70’ tall, 23’ diam.  Design: self-supporting dome 

 
ECE will gather the roof plate thicknesses of each reservoir around the roof vent utilizing an 
ultrasonic steel thickness gage. Coating samples will be gathered of the exterior coatings and 
tested for RCRA 8 Total Metals Content, with the exception of mercury which is not known to be a 
metal of concern in reservoir coating systems.  The HighSchool tank requires the dimensions of the 
center column and inner rafter ring to be obtained.  This data will be gathered by floating the 
reservoir in a raft.   

Deliverables:  A memorandum with the data included and exterior coating sample test results 
attached.  

Assumptions:  

Site visits are conducted in one day.  City or BHC provides a hole watch while ECE is inside of the 
HighSchool reservoir. 

OPTIONAL CONDITION ASSESSMENT TASKS 

Task 2 – Condition Assessment Data Gathering 

ECE will review any existing data the City has including previous condition assessments or dive 
videos.  

ECE will perform a condition assessment which will consist of the following components: 

 Visual inspection of the interior coatings above the waterline and exterior coating condition; 
 Gathering photographs of access, site, and other reservoir features; 

Work Order #BHC-24011
Amendment No. 1

Page 6 of 8

rhale
Architect
EXHIBIT B



Deliverables:  None.  

Assumptions:  

Site visits are conducted in one day at the time of the Task 1 site visits.  Adhesion testing and 
interior coating sample testing for RCRA 8 metals are not included. 

Task 3 – Condition Assessment Report 

Condition assessment report shall provide a description of the data collected from the site visit, 
provide recommendations for improvements, and anticipated planning level cost estimates for 
those recommendations. 

Deliverables:  Draft and Final Reports in PDF format.    

Assumptions:  

One virtual meeting is assumed to discuss the results of the condition assessment report. 

 

Work Order #BHC-24011
Amendment No. 1

Page 7 of 8



Tasks Hours
Task 1 Asbuilt Data Gathering and Report

Site visits, sample testing, and Report 20
Total Estimated Hours: 20

Billing Rate: 230$                
Total Labor Cost: 4,600$            

Expenses:
     Mileage @ current IRS rate 150$                
     Exterior coating sample testing 500$                
Total Expenses: 650$                

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST:  Asuilt Data Gathering 5,250$            

Task 2 Optional - Condition Assessment Data Gathering
Existing data review and site visit material preparation 2
Condition assessments 3

Task 3 Optional - Condition Assessment Report
Draft Report 32
Final Report 4

Total Estimated Hours: 41
Billing Rate: 230$                

Total Labor Cost: 9,430$            

Expenses:  None

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST:  Optional Tasks 9,430$            

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST:  Asbuilt Data and Optional Tasks 14,680$          

Exhibit B-2

Reservoir Roof Vent Asbuilting
CITY OF SHELTON 

Work Order #BHC-24011
Amendment No. 1

Page 8 of 8



'z

'SH,N(,1

Work  Order  BHC-24011

Date:  March  20,  2024

Task:  Reservoir  Roof  Vent  Retrofit  Design

To:  BHC  Consultants,  LLC

Scope  of  Work:  BHC  Consultants  will  develop  final  design  documents  for  the  replacement  of

reservoir  roof  vents  on  the  Mountain  View,  Angleside,  High  School,  and  Capital  Hill  Water

Tanks  that  meet  the  Dept.  of  Health  shroud  and  screening  requirements,  as described  in

Exhibit  A, attached  hereto.

Budget:  S20,715.00  NTE

Task  Order  Contact  Information

City of  Shelton BHC  Consultants,  LLC

Name:  Mike  Albaugh Name:  Ryan  Hale,  PE

Phone:  360.490.1279 Phone:  206.505.3400

Email Address: mike.albaugh@sheltonwa.gov Email  Address:  rhale@bhcconsultants.com

Approving  Signatures

City  of  Shelton:

/,-/= i(-  % 

Date:

,71zrl2'l
MarkZiegler,Jyanager  - "
BHC consultint;,  LLC:

Digitally  signed  by Cameton  Ochilltee

Camer0nOChilree'ccaomnta%orn.no:oh:nteeobhcconsunaniscom
Date  2024  03  2215  23 !  2-1)7'00'

Date:

03/22/2024

Cameron  Ochiltree,  Executive  Vice  President

This work  shall be done according  to the contractual  agreement  titled,  On-Call Qualified  Poo/ List,
Water  System  Conveyance,  Pumping,  and  Storage  between  City  of  Shelton  and  BHC Consultants,  LLC

dated  February  10,  2021.

Invoices  pertaining  to  assigned  Work  Orders  shall  be  accompanied  by  a completed  Billing  Voucher,

referencing  the Work  Order  Number  (located  at the top of  this form),  and shall  be submitted  via email

to PW.lnvoices@sheltonwa.qov.

Work Order  #BHC-2401 1 Page 1 of 6



EXHIBIT  A

SCOPE  OF WORK

City  of Shelton

On-Call  Qualified  Pool List  -  Water  Systems  Conveyance,  Pumping  and Storage

Work  Order  No. BHC-24011  -  Reservoir  Roof  Vent  Retrofits

Design

Statement  of Understanding

The general  provisions  and clauses of the On-Call agreement  executed February  10, 2021 between the
City of Shelton (City) and BHC Consultants,  LLC (BHC) shall be in full force and effect for this Task Order

Assignment.  This Scope ofWork  is a result ofthe  City's latest Department  of Health (DOH) Sanitary
Suivey,  which identified  Tour reservoir  roof vents required  to be retrofit or replaced  to meet current  DOH

requirements  for sanitary  protection.

Project  Title:  Reservoir  Roof Vent Retrofits  Design.

Maximum Amount Payable: $20,715 (see breakdown within attached Exhibit B).

Completion  Date: December  31, 2024.

Description  of Work

The City's latest Department  of Health (DOH) Sanitary  Survey  identified four reservoir  roof vents that do not
meet current  DOH requirements  for shrouds  and screening.  The screens are located on the side of the
vents and do not have a shroud cover, so they do not have protection  from rain splatter  and dust. DOH is

requiring  retrofit or replacement  of the roof vents to meet the current  standards  for sanitary  protection. The
reservoir  vents requiring retrofit or replacement  include those installed on the Mountain  View, Angleside,

High School,  and Capital Hill Tanks.

Under this Scope of Work (SOW), BHC will develop  final design documents  for the replacement  of the four

existing reservoir  roof vents with roof vents that meet the DOH shroud and screening  requirements.  The

design documents  will include demolition  details, standard  roofvent  riser and roofvent  details, technical
specifications  for the roof vent riser, roofvent,  and reservoir  coating touchup.  The project  will not be

publicly  advertised  and bid and will be completed  by engaging  a contractor  from its small works roster.

Local jurisdictional  approval from the City's building department,  as well as preparation  and approval  of a

project  design report by DOH, are assumed  to not be required and are not included in this SOW.

Environmental  permitting  and cultural resource  investigations  are not included in this SOW.

Scope  of Services

Task  1-  Project  Management,  Quality  Assurance/Quality  Control  (QA/QC)  - Design

Project  management  occurs throughout  the duration  of the design phase, with anticipated  delivery  of final

Work  Order  #BHC-2401  1 Page  2 of 6



design documents  within 4 months of Notice to Proceed. Efforts include:

Proiect Initiation. Project initiation, including  task order execution and authorization; project setup
within accounting/invoicing  soffware  and appropriate  web hosted applications;  internal kickoff

efforts with the BHC project team to review scope, milestones,  deliverables,  project

communications,  documentation,  and available  information.

Client Communications,  Team Coordination,  Budqet  Monitorinq  and Invoicinq.  Ongoing client

communications,  BHC team coordination/technical  direction, progress  and budget  monitoring,  and

invoicing.

QNQC  Proqram.  Senior  internal Q/VQC review of the deliverables  in different  stages of the project

in advance  of delivery  to the City.

Task  2 -  Design  Review  Workshop

One (1 ) workshop  will be scheduled  and conducted  after Notice-to-Proceed.  The workshop  will include up

to two (2) representatives  from BHC. Efforts include:

90% Desiqn Workshop. BHC will conduct  a virtual 90% design review workshop  via Microsoft

Teams to review and incorporate  comments  received from City staff, discuss  impacts to the plans

and specifications  and establish  the schedule  for final document  production  and transmittal  to

contractors.

Task  3 -  Design  Document  Preparation

BHC will prepare drawings  and specifications  for the proposed  improvements.  BHC will prepare 90% and

Final submittals  for review by the City, address  City comments  on each and produce a final set of

documents  for construction.  Design document  preparation  will include the following  activities.

Drawinq  Preparation.  Time budgeted  for preparation  ofthe  drawings  is based on using photos

provided by the City and existing record drawings  to develop  a complete  plan set for the design

documents.

General  Drawinqs:

o  Prepare  general drawings.  The following  is a list of anticipated  drawings,  which is the basis of

the budget  estimate:

Cover Sheet, Index of Drawings,  and Vicinity  Maps

Legends, Designations,  and Abbreviations

ReservoirAppurtenance  Demolition  and Replacement  Drawinqs:

o  Photos provided by the City and existing record drawings  will be used to develop  the roof

vent demolition  and replacement  details. Time budgeted  for preparation  of the drawings  is

based on marking up photos and existing record drawings.  The following  is a list of

anticipated  drawings,  which is the basis of the budget  estimate:

Mountain  View Tank Details

Angleside  Tank Details

Highschool  Tank  Details

Capital Hill Tank  Details

Work  Order  #BHC-2401  1 Page  3 of 6



Prepare  Bid Specifications.  The City standard  small works roster bidding forms will be furnished  by

the City For the project and are assumed  to not require alteration  by BHC. The 90% specifications

will be in Construction  Specifications  Institute (CSI) format  and will include drafts of the technical

specifications.  The following is a list of anticipated  specifications,  which is the basis of the

engineering  budget estimate:

01100

05500

09970

13211

Summary  of Work

Miscellaneous  Metal Fabrications

Reservoir  Surface Preparation  and Painting

Steel Reservoir  Appurtenances

Provide electronic  PDF copies ofthe  90% and 100% submittal  drawings  and specifications  to the

City. Comments  from the City on the 90% submittal  will be incorporated  into the final design

documents.  Final drawings  and specifications  will be provided as electronically  signed PDF files.

ASSUMPTIONS

ii  Management  time is based on a 4-month  duration  to prepare design documents.

a Available  information  requested  from the City will be provided in a timely manner  and will be

assumed  to be current, accurate  and reflective  of existing system conditions.

All four vents and vent risers will be replaced  with Newlin's  or T Bailey style vents. The maximum

inlet and outlet  flows from the reservoirs  can be obtained from the hydraulic  model with minimal

effort. Maximum inlet flows will be determined  with all potential  sources to the reservoir  on, and

maximum  outlet flows will be determined  by modeling a water  main break at the base of the

reservoir  or downhill  from the reservoir,  whichever  is greater.

Design details will include photos of the existing  roof vents for demolition,  standard  details for the

new roof vent riser, and standard details for the new roof vent.

Specifications  will include a technical  specification  for the roof vent, a technical  specification  for the

metals and welding,  and a technical  specification  for the reservoir  coating repairs.

Budgetary  contractor  cost has been shared, and additional  cost estimating  excluded.

Structural  analysis  of the existing reservoirs  will not be included to assess additional  loading due to

the vent installation.

Permits  and a DOH project report  and construction  document  review is not required.

Small works roster will be used to bid with City provided bid forms.

The scope is through design and bidding. The City will facilitate  soliciting and receiving  bids from

contactors.  A total of four (4) hours are assumed  for bid support  to respond to contractor  questions.

Services  during construction  are not included  in the scope.

Work  Order  #BHC-24011 Page  4 of 6



Schedule

BHC will undertake to complete the SOW based on the milestones listed below, assuming notice to
proceed is provided by March I  2024:

Submittal  of the 90% design package (drawings  and specifications)  in June 2024.

Submittal  of the final design documents  (stamped  and signed drawings  and specifications) in July
2024.

Construction  will take place from August  2024 to August  2025, two reservoirs  per year.

Deliverables

90% Drawings  and Specifications.

o  Drawings  will be submitted  in PDF format.

o  Specifications  will be submitted  in PDF and Microsoff  Word format.

Issued For Construction  Drawings,  and Specifications:

o  Drawings  will be submitted  in PDF format.

o  Specifications  will be submitted  in PDF and Microsoft  Word format.

Monthly  invoicing.

Authorization  Date:

BHC Signature: Date:

City Signature: Date:

Work  Order  #BHC-2401  1 Page  5 of 6



EXHIBIT  A

BUDGET  SPREADSHEET

City  of  Shelton  On-Call  Qualified  Pool  List  -  Water  Systems  Conveyance,  Pumping  and  Storage

Work  Order  No.  BHC-2401  1-  Reservoir  Roof  Vents  Retrofit  Design

Task  No. Task  Description

Hourly  Billing  Rate:

QA/QC

Kelsey

PM

Hale

Structural

Dahl

Staff  Eng.

Garciafihim

CAD  Mgr.

Simon/Osloe

CAD  Drafter

Castillo

Proj  Admin

Coughlin

Clerical

McElwain
BHC  Total  Labor

TOT  AL  COST

$255 $175 $255 $150 $180 $145 $135 $130 Hours Cost

I PROJECT  MANAGEMENT,  QA/QC

Project  Initiation

Client  Communications,  Team  Coordination,  Budget  Monitoring  and  Invoicing

Quality  Assurance/Quality  Control  Program 3

4

12

2

8

2 8

20

3

$1 ,230

$3,180

$765

$1 ,230

$3,180

$765

TASK  SUBTOT  AL,  HOURS 3 16 o o o o 10 2 31

TASK  SUBTOT  AL,  LABOR  COST $765 $2,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1 ,350 $260 $5,175 $5,175

2 DESIGN  REVIEW  WORKSHOP

90%  Design  Review  Workshop 1 2 3 $605 $605

TASK  SUBTOT  AL,  HOURS 1 2 o o o o o o 3

TASK  SUBTOT  AL,  LABOR  COST $255 $350 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $605 $605

3 DESIGN  DOCUMENT  PREPARATION

General  Discipline  Drawings  (2)

Civil  Discipline  Drawings  (4)

Specifications

Package  Submittal  to City/Bid  Support

2

16

8

8

4

1

4

4

4

1

1

4

28

4

3

11

53

17

11

$1,710

$8,660

$2,775

$1,790

$1,710

$8,660

$2,775

$1 ,790

TASK  SUBTOT  AL,  HOURS o 34 5 12 2 32 o 7 92

TASK  SUBTOT  AL,  LABOR  COST $0 $5,950 $1 ,275 $1 ,800 $360 $4,640 $0 $910 $14,935 $14,935

TOT  AL  DIRECT  LABOR  AND  OVERALL  COST 4 52 i 5 I-I 21 32 i qo Igl i t-e lI $20,715 II $20,715

Work Order #BHC-2401 1 Page 6 of 6



 

 

      September 2024 Monthly Financial Report 
City of Shelton, Washington 

1 

 2024

Budget 

 2024

thru 

September 

 2024

Est Actual 

Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

% Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

Revenues 15,437,793   11,906,899       16,130,901       693,108             4.5%

Expenditures 15,565,271   10,565,090       15,259,687       305,584             2.0%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures (127,478)       1,341,809         871,214            998,692             

Beginnning Fund Balance 5,376,171     5,376,171         

Ending Fund Balance 5,248,693     6,247,385         

33.7% 40.1%

Ending Fund Balance Breakdown:

Reserved - 20% of Budget 3,113,054     3,113,054         

Unreserved Fund Balance 2,135,639     3,134,331         

Total Fund Balance 5,248,693     6,247,385         

2024 estimated actuals are based on historical data, YTD activity, known adjustments and are not year-end actuals.

2022 and 2023 amounts included in this report are unaudited.

Est 2024

General Fund Overview

Summary

Analysis through September shows an overall Positive budget variance of $999 thousand.

General Fund Reserves are estimated to end the year at $6.25 million, or 40.1% of 2024 budgeted expenditures.

Revenues are currently estimated to end the year approximately $693 thousand, or 4.5% more than budgeted.

Expenditure Overview

Expenditures are currently estimated to end the year approximately $306 thousand, or 2.0% less than budgeted.

Revenue Overview 

3,248 3,310 

4,854 4,777 
5,048 

5,376 

6,247 

 -

 1,000

 2,000

 3,000

 4,000

 5,000

 6,000

 7,000

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Est 2024

General Fund Ending Fund Balance History$ in
thousands

 



 

 

      September 2024 Monthly Financial Report 
City of Shelton, Washington 

2 

Revenue Categories  2024

Budget 

 2024

thru 

September 

 2024

Est Actual* 

Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

% Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

Taxes:

  Property 2,997,899     1,605,208       2,997,899        -                      0.0%

  Sales & Use 3,525,360     2,714,326       3,545,378        20,018            0.6%

  City Utility 1,448,082     1,222,524       1,556,703        108,621          7.5%

  Non-City Utility 1,341,400     999,619          1,262,896        (78,504)           -5.9%

  Business & Occupation 1,308,110     1,046,773       1,315,000        6,890              0.5%

  Other 53,930          65,102            75,641             21,711            40.3%

Licenses & Permits 295,050        285,268          362,733           67,683            22.9%

Intergovernmental Revenue 669,070        700,849          790,204           121,134          18.1%

Charges for Goods/Services 3,527,342     2,725,161       3,640,180        112,838          3.2%

Fines and Penalties 92,550          51,477            60,153             (32,397)           -35.0%

Miscellaneous Revenue 132,000        490,594          524,113           392,113          297.1%

Transfers In 47,000          -                      -                       (47,000)           -100.0%

Total Revenues 15,437,793   11,906,899     16,130,901      693,108          4.5%

*2024 estimated actuals are based on historical data, YTD activity, known adjustments and are not year-end actuals.

General Fund Overview - Revenues

Variance Notes

Variance analysis for revenues is provided for particular line items or those in which the estimated actual amount differs 

from the budgeted amount by at least 10% and $75,000.

Miscellaneous:  Over budget due to abatement lein of $36k and opioid settlement of $149k.

Intergovernmental:  Over budget due to Alternative Response and Criminal Justice Training grants.

Property Taxes

19%
Sales & Use Taxes

22%

City Utility Taxes
10%

Non-City Utility Taxes

8%

B & O Taxes

8%

Other Taxes

0%
Charges for Goods/Services

23%

Licenses & Permits

2%

Intergovernmental 

Revenue
5%

Fines and Penalties

0%

Miscellaneous 

Revenue
3%

Other

10%

2024 Estimated
General Fund

Revenues

 

  



 

 

      September 2024 Monthly Financial Report 
City of Shelton, Washington 

3 

Department  2024

Budget 

 2024

thru 

September 

 2024

Est Actual* 

Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

% Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

City Clerk 261,013         149,749          232,539            28,474            10.9%

City Council 75,963           51,705            74,139              1,824              2.4%

City Manager

City Manager 450,094         322,455          443,626            6,468              1.4%

Legal 375,170         258,504          368,370            6,800              1.8%

Detentions/Corrections-Contract 504,390         96,287            375,000            129,390          25.7%

Human Resources 161,119         103,375          160,110            1,009              0.6%

Risk Management 124,367         123,414          142,610            (18,243)           -14.7%

Community & Economic Development

Animal Control           174,435            184,521             252,130 (77,695)           -44.5%

Code Enforcement           157,780            131,578             184,274 (26,494)           -16.8%

Community Development 757,066         458,406          793,662            (36,596)           -4.8%

Parks & Facilities

Civic Center Activities 59,588           36,885            55,962              3,626              6.1%

Facility Services 747,243         482,096          842,498            (95,255)           -12.7%

Parks & Recreation 666,958         468,977          660,528            6,430              1.0%

Finance

Finance 1,421,224      959,308          1,373,822         47,402            3.3%

Information Technology 418,643         265,542          415,531            3,112              0.7%

Fire & Emergency Services 2,583,353      1,863,400       2,514,588         68,765            2.7%

Municipal Court 730,375         562,215          748,650            (18,275)           -2.5%

Non-Departmental 826,530         627,263          755,212            71,318            8.6%

Police 4,127,310      2,899,777       4,061,438         65,872            1.6%

Public Works 942,650         519,635          804,998            137,652          14.6%

15,565,271    10,565,090     15,259,687       305,584          2.0%

*2024 estimated actuals are based on historical data, YTD activity, known adjustments and are not year-end actuals.

Transfers-Out

Wages

General Fund Overview - Expenditures

Public Works:  Below budget due to open position during 2024.

Variance Notes

Total Expenditures

Variance analysis for expenditures is provided for particular departments which have an estimated actual amount that 

differs from the budgeted amount by at least 10% and $75,000.

Animal Control:  The Animal Shelter continues to remain very busy even with many adoptions.

Detention/Corrections:  Jail fees are projected to remain below budget.

Benefits
14%

Other
13%

Professional Services
31%

Transfers-Out
5%

Wages
37%

2024 Estimated General Fund Expenditures

 



 

 

      September 2024 Monthly Financial Report 
City of Shelton, Washington 

4 

 2022

Actual 

 2023

Actual 

 2024

Budget 

2024

thru September

2024

Est Actual

Beginning Fund Balance 4,777,607     5,047,799      5,376,171        5,376,171            5,376,171       

Revenues

Taxes:

  Property 2,546,998     2,788,309      2,997,899        1,605,208            2,997,899       

  Sales & Use 3,436,648     3,595,781      3,525,360        2,714,326            3,545,378       

  City Utility 1,474,584     1,528,927      1,448,082        1,222,524            1,556,703       

  Non-City Utility 1,205,659     1,290,740      1,341,400        999,619               1,262,896       

  Business & Occupation 985,461        802,272         1,308,110        1,046,773            1,315,000       

  Other 60,421          76,386           53,930             65,102                 75,641            

Licenses & Permits 306,329        306,906         295,050           285,268               362,733          

Intergovernmental Revenue 2,147,469     592,006         669,070           700,849               790,204          

Charges for Goods/Services 3,060,577     3,423,381      3,527,342        2,725,161            3,640,180       

Fines and Penalties 51,581          49,639           92,550             51,477                 60,153            

Miscellaneous Revenue 260,291        397,855         132,000           490,594               524,113          

Transfers In 128               87,712           47,000             -                           -                     

Total Revenues 15,536,147   14,939,914    15,437,793      11,906,899          16,130,901     

Expenditures

City Clerk          238,028          226,373             261,013                149,749           232,539 

City Council 77,768          63,480           75,963             51,705                 74,139            

City Manager

City Manager 344,279        408,587         450,094           322,455               443,626          

Legal 277,979        343,008         375,170           258,504               368,370          

Detentions/Corrections-Contract 339,327        203,718         504,390           96,287                 375,000          

Human Resources          327,848          274,902             161,119                103,375           160,110 

Risk Management 136,360        143,699         124,367           123,414               142,610          

Community & Economic Development

Animal Control 83,700          104,441         174,435           184,521               252,130          

Code Enforcement            81,285          175,504             157,780                131,578           184,274 

Community Development          563,250          707,010             757,066                458,406           793,662 

Parks & Facilities

Civic Center Activities 51,915          56,058           59,588             36,885                 55,962            

Facility Services          652,720          676,755             747,243                482,096           842,498 

Parks & Recreation 575,245        620,303         666,958           468,977               660,528          

Finance

Finance 1,079,083     1,124,192      1,421,224        959,308               1,373,822       

Information Technology 374,562        449,597         418,643           265,542               415,531          

Fire & Emergency Services 1,690,846     2,491,434      2,583,353        1,863,400            2,514,588       

Municipal Court 666,977        744,467         730,375           562,215               748,650          

Non-Departmental 3,194,929     1,338,292      826,530           627,263               755,212          

Police 3,613,017     3,736,337      4,127,310        2,899,777            4,061,438       

Public Works 896,836        723,386         942,650           519,635               804,998          

15,265,955   14,611,542    15,565,271      10,565,090          15,259,687     

Net Revenues less Expenditures 270,192        328,372         (127,478)          1,341,809            871,214          

Ending Fund Balance 5,047,799     5,376,171      5,248,693        6,717,980            6,247,385       

General Fund Reserves 5,047,799     5,376,171      5,248,693        6,247,385       

based on same year actuals/budget 33.1% 36.8% 33.7% 40.9%

General Fund Year-to-Year 

Total Expenditures

 



 

 

      September 2024 Monthly Financial Report 
City of Shelton, Washington 

5 

 2022

thru

September 

 2023

thru

September 

 2024

thru

September 

% of

Budget

Revenues

Taxes:

  Property 1,440,815      1,559,589        1,605,208        45,619       2.9% 53.5%

  Sales & Use 2,525,939      2,675,163        2,714,326        39,162       1.5% 77.0%

  City Utility 1,099,807      1,139,767        1,222,524        82,757       7.3% 84.4%

  Non-City Utility 949,493         1,004,176        999,619           (4,557)        -0.5% 74.5%

  Business & Occupation 792,699         631,363           1,046,773        415,410     65.8% 80.0%

  Other 40,985           48,127             65,102             16,976       35.3% 120.7%

Licenses & Permits 244,306         227,433           285,268           57,835       25.4% 96.7%

Intergovernmental Revenue 2,044,685      494,922           700,849           205,926     41.6% 104.7%

Charges for Goods/Services 2,389,704      2,597,402        2,725,161        127,758     4.9% 77.3%

Fines and Penalties 40,746           38,416             51,477             13,061       34.0% 55.6%

Miscellaneous Revenue 172,236         280,334           490,594           210,259     75.0% 371.7%

Transfers In -                     9,766               -                       (9,766)        0.0%

Total Revenues 11,741,417    10,706,458      11,906,899      1,200,441  11.2% 77.1%

Expenditures

City Clerk 178,774         177,733           149,749           (27,984)      -15.7% 57.4%

City Council 61,991           46,267             51,705             5,438         11.8% 68.1%

City Manager

City Manager 280,625         314,895           322,455           7,561         2.4% 71.6%

Legal 198,787         221,792           258,504           36,712       16.6% 68.9%

Detentions/Corrections-Contract 256,975         122,442           96,287             (26,155)      -21.4% 19.1%

Human Resources 247,016         240,590           103,375           (137,215)    -57.0% 64.2%

Risk Management 111,576         124,465           123,414           (1,051)        -0.8% 99.2%

Community & Economic Development

Animal Control 62,546           67,708             184,521           116,813     172.5% 105.8%

Code Enforcement 44,502           130,465           131,578           1,113         0.9% 83.4%

Community Development 396,373         492,164           458,406           (33,758)      -6.9% 60.6%

Parks & Facilities

Civic Center Activities 37,112           46,220             36,885             (9,335)        -20.2% 61.9%

Facility Services 469,177         491,006           482,096           (8,911)        -1.8% 64.5%

Parks & Recreation 402,652         488,242           468,977           (19,265)      -3.9% 70.3%

Finance

Finance 742,776         860,061           959,308           99,247       11.5% 67.5%

Information Technology 260,129         284,204           265,542           (18,662)      -6.6% 63.4%

Fire & Emergency Services 1,264,073      1,862,071        1,863,400        1,329         0.1% 72.1%

Municipal Court 504,839         557,666           562,215           4,549         0.8% 77.0%

Non-Departmental 2,194,310      129,916           627,263           497,347     382.8% 75.9%

Police 2,742,998      2,758,613        2,899,777        141,164     5.1% 70.3%

Public Works 664,650         517,180           519,635           2,455         0.5% 55.1%

11,121,878    9,933,700        10,565,090      631,390     6.4% 67.9%

This Month-to-Month presentation does not include variance notes.  Common variances are due to timing of receipts and

expenditures.  Totals reported are year-to-date through September which is 75.0% of the year.

General Fund Month-to-Month

Total Expenditures

2024 - 2023

Variance

 



 

 

      September 2024 Monthly Financial Report 
City of Shelton, Washington 

6 

Sales Tax Breakdown by Type

Retail, 29.4%

Wholesale, 5.2%

Manufacturing, 9.2%
Construction, 2.0%

Food/Entertainment, 6.9%

Professional Services, 24.1%

All Other, 23.2%

2024 thru September

Retail, 21.1%

Wholesale, 0.3%

Manufacturing, 13.1%

Construction, 0.0%

Food/Entertainment, 1.0%
Professional Services, 29.4%

All Other, 35.1%

September 2024

 

 

 

 



 

 

      September 2024 Monthly Financial Report 
City of Shelton, Washington 

7 

Fund

 2024

Beginning

Fund 

Balance 

 2024

Estimated

Revenue 

 2024

Estimated

Expenditure 

2024

Estimated

Fund Balance $ Change

 %

Change 

City-wide Fund Balances

General Fund 5,376,171     16,130,901    15,259,687      6,247,385       871,214          16.2%

Street Fund 697,708        1,704,415      1,908,374        493,749          (203,959)        -29.2%

Capital Resource Funds

    Real Estate Excise Tax -1 564,950        183,000         102,570           645,380          80,430            14.2%

    Real Estate Excise Tax -2 785,498        185,000         90,000             880,498          95,000            12.1%

    Transport Benefit District 1,527,227     96,782           732,000           892,009          (635,218)        -41.6%

    Traffic Impact Fees 786,725        129,000         -                       915,725          129,000          16.4%

    General Resources 1,181,350     42,969           -                       1,224,319       42,969            3.6%

Tourism Fund 81,739          57,400           81,050             58,089            (23,650)          -28.9%

Bond Fund 7,592            180,100         180,100           7,592              -                     0.0%

Capital Improvement Fund 663,979        1,539,572      1,661,706        541,845          (122,134)        -18.4%

Water Fund 2,485,233     3,583,161      4,381,012        1,687,382       (797,851)        -32.1%

Water Capital Fund 1,092,787     2,954,541      2,386,100        1,661,228       568,441          52.0%

Sewer Fund 4,439,434     7,251,823      7,950,561        3,740,696       (698,738)        -15.7%

Sewer Capital Fund 662,153        1,794,000      2,186,860        269,293          (392,860)        -59.3%

Solid Waste Fund 294,543        143,495         153,539           284,498          (10,045)          -3.4%

Storm Drainage Fund 1,278,325     1,712,562      2,075,261        915,626          (362,699)        -28.4%

Storm Drainage Capital Fund 10,854          395,000         125,310           280,544          269,690          2484.7%

Payroll Benefits Fund 220,708        104,915         67,162             258,461          37,753            17.1%

Equipment Rental Fund 411,211        797,455         674,733           533,934          122,723          29.8%

Firefighters Pension Fund 387,414        23,580           59,338             351,656          (35,758)          -9.2%

Library Endowment Fund 128,936        1,600             -                       130,536          1,600              1.2%

City-wide Fund Totals 23,084,537   39,011,271    40,075,363      22,020,445     (1,064,092)     -4.6%

Fund Balances

 

General Fund

 2023

Revised 

 2024

Budget 

 Sep 30

Vacancies Other City Funds

 2023

Revised 

 2024

Budget 

 Sep 30

Vacancies 

City Council 7.00       7.00       -           Street Operating 4.65       4.65       1.00         

Municipal Court 4.50       5.03       -           Water Utility 8.80       8.80       -           

City Clerk* 2.00       1.50       -           Sewer Utility 11.70     11.70     1.80         

City Manager 2.00       2.00       -           Storm Drainage Utility 7.60       7.60       0.20         

Human Resources 2.85       1.00       -           Equip. Maint. & Rental 1.30       1.30       -           

Information Technology 1.15       1.00       -           Total Other Funds 34.05     34.05     3.00         

Finance 7.00       9.50       0.50         Total City 100.50   99.53     6.50         

Public Works 5.10       4.60       1.00         

Police 21.00     21.00     2.00         

Community Development 5.85       5.85       -           

Parks, Rec  & Facilities 8.00       7.00       -           

Total General Fund 66.45     65.48     3.50         

City-Wide FTE by Fund

 



 

 

      September 2024 Monthly Financial Report 
City of Shelton, Washington 

8 

   Fund  2024

Budget 

 2024

thru

September 

 2024

Est Actual* 

Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

% Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

General Fund

Taxes 10,674,781      7,653,551        10,753,517      78,736            0.7%

Licenses & Permits 295,050           285,268           362,733           67,683            22.9%

Intergovernmental Revenue 669,070           700,849           790,204           121,134          18.1%

Charges for Goods/Services 3,527,342        2,725,161        3,640,180        112,838          3.2%

Fines and Penalties 92,550             51,477             60,153             (32,397)           -35.0%

Miscellaneous Revenue 132,000           490,594           524,113           392,113          297.1%

Transfers In 47,000             -                       -                       (47,000)           -100.0%

Total Revenues 15,437,793      11,906,899      16,130,901      693,108          4.5%

Wages 5,854,052        4,089,743        5,698,669        155,383          2.7%

Benefits 2,369,590        1,592,922        2,123,662        245,928          10.4%

Professional Services 4,664,168        2,888,280        4,711,574        (47,406)           -1.0%

Transfers-Out 818,530           567,726           695,675           122,855          15.0%

Other 1,858,931        1,426,420        2,030,107        (171,176)         -9.2%

Total Expenditures 15,565,271      10,565,090      15,259,687      305,584          2.0%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures (127,478)          1,341,809        871,214           998,692          

Street Fund

Taxes 675,000           552,069           695,000           20,000            3.0%

Licenses & Permits 10,000             23,876             34,000             24,000            240.0%

Intergovernmental Revenue 199,000           146,447           185,360           (13,640)           -6.9%

Charges for Goods/Services 106,120           81,890             109,190           3,070              2.9%

Miscellaneous Revenue 1,500               28,304             30,865             29,365            1957.6%

Transfers In 790,000           520,000           650,000           (140,000)         -17.7%

Total Revenues 1,781,620        1,352,586        1,704,415        (77,205)           -4.3%

Wages 387,638           325,384           433,850           (46,212)           -11.9%

Benefits 180,622           144,622           193,860           (13,238)           -7.3%

Professional Services 397,440           105,207           308,630           88,810            22.3%

Other 921,058           717,968           972,034           (50,976)           -5.5%

Total Expenditures 1,886,758        1,293,180        1,908,374        (21,616)           -1.1%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures (105,138)          59,406             (203,959)          (98,821)           

Capital Resources - Real Estate Excise Tax - 1 (REET-1)

Taxes 52,500             130,128           161,000           108,500          206.7%

Miscellaneous Revenue -                       20,681             22,000             22,000             

Total Revenues 52,500             150,809           183,000           130,500          248.6%

Transfers-Out 102,570           11,237             102,570           -                      0.0%

Total Expenditures 102,570           11,237             102,570           -                      0.0%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures (50,070)            139,572           80,430             130,500          

*2024 estimated actuals are based on historical data, YTD activity, known adjustments and are not year-end actuals.

City-Wide Overview - Revenues & Expenditures

 



 

 

      September 2024 Monthly Financial Report 
City of Shelton, Washington 

9 

   Fund  2024

Budget 

 2024

thru

September 

 2024

Est Actual* 

Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

% Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

Capital Resources - Real Estate Excise Tax - 2 (REET-2)

Taxes 52,500             125,660           157,000           104,500          199.0%

Miscellaneous Revenue -                       26,397             28,000             28,000             

Total Revenues 52,500             152,057           185,000           132,500          252.4%

Transfers-Out 90,000             75,000             90,000             -                      0.0%

Total Expenditures 90,000             75,000             90,000             -                      0.0%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures (37,500)            77,057             95,000             132,500          

Capital Resources -Transportation Benefit District (TBD)

Miscellaneous Revenue -                       32,457             34,000             34,000             

Transfers In -                       62,782             62,782             62,782             

Total Revenues -                       95,239             96,782             96,782             

Transfers-Out 832,000           632,000           732,000           100,000          12.0%

Total Expenditures 832,000           632,000           732,000           100,000          12.0%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures (832,000)          (536,761)          (635,218)          196,782          

Capital Resources - Traffic Impact Fees (TIF)

Charges for Goods/Services 80,000             61,258             101,000           21,000            26.3%

Miscellaneous Revenue -                       26,563             28,000             28,000             

Total Revenues 80,000             87,821             129,000           49,000            61.3%

Transfers-Out -                       -                       -                       -                       

Total Expenditures -                       -                       -                       -                       

Net Revenues Less Expenditures 80,000             87,821             129,000           49,000            

Capital Resources - General

Intergovernmental Revenue -                       -                       -                       -                       

Miscellaneous Revenue -                       40,972             42,969             42,969             

Total Revenues -                       40,972             42,969             42,969             

Transfers-Out 23,000             -                       -                       23,000            100.0%

Total Expenditures 23,000             -                       -                       23,000            100.0%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures (23,000)            40,972             42,969             65,969            

Tourism Fund

Taxes 48,000             45,562             54,000             6,000              12.5%

Miscellaneous Revenue 100                  3,318               3,400               3,300              3300.0%

Total Revenues 48,100             48,880             57,400             9,300              19.3%

Professional Services 97,248             51,750             81,050             16,198            16.7%

Total Expenditures 97,248             51,750             81,050             16,198            16.7%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures (49,148)            (2,870)              (23,650)            25,498            

*2024 estimated actuals are based on historical data, YTD activity, known adjustments and are not year-end actuals.

City-Wide Overview - Revenues & Expenditures

 

 



 

 

      September 2024 Monthly Financial Report 
City of Shelton, Washington 

10 

   Fund  2024

Budget 

 2024

thru

September 

 2024

Est Actual* 

Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

% Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

Bond Fund

Taxes -                       -                       -                       -                       

Transfers In 180,100           42,550             180,100           -                      0.0%

Total Revenues 180,100           42,550             180,100           -                      0.0%

Other 180,100           42,550             180,100           -                      0.0%

Total Expenditures 180,100           42,550             180,100           -                      0.0%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures -                       0                      -                       -                      

Capital Improvement Fund

Intergovernmental Revenue 1,074,500        699,899           706,115           (368,385)         -34.3%

Charges for Goods/Services 20,000             130,457           130,457           110,457          552.3%

Transfers In 703,000           703,000           703,000           -                      0.0%

Total Revenues 1,797,500        1,533,356        1,539,572        (257,928)         -14.3%

Professional Services -                       33,580             44,770             (44,770)            

Other 1,797,500        952,012           1,616,936        180,564          1.3%

Total Expenditures 1,797,500        985,592           1,661,706        135,794          7.6%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures -                       547,764           (122,134)          (122,134)         

Water Fund

Charges for Goods/Services 3,206,210        2,640,512        3,453,120        246,910          7.7%

Miscellaneous Revenue 46,100             103,805           130,041           83,941            182.1%

Total Revenues 3,252,310        2,744,317        3,583,161        330,851          10.2%

Wages 741,496           531,939           709,250           32,246            4.3%

Benefits 303,167           227,151           302,860           307                 0.1%

Professional Services 251,667           202,790           270,390           (18,723)           -7.4%

Transfers-Out 1,031,000        1,031,000        1,031,000        -                      0.0%

Other 2,017,752        1,427,863        2,067,512        (49,760)           -2.5%

Total Expenditures 4,345,082        3,420,743        4,381,012        (35,930)           -0.8%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures (1,092,772)       (676,426)          (797,851)          294,921          

Water Capital Fund

Intergovernmental Revenue 48,500             1,885,262        1,923,541        1,875,041       3866.1%

Transfers In 1,031,000        1,031,000        1,031,000        -                      0.0%

Total Revenues 1,079,500        2,916,262        2,954,541        1,875,041       173.7%

Other 1,079,500        2,112,874        2,386,100        (1,306,600)      -121.0%

Total Expenditures 1,079,500        2,112,874        2,386,100        (1,306,600)      -121.0%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures -                       803,388           568,441           568,441          

*2024 estimated actuals are based on historical data, YTD activity, known adjustments and are not year-end actuals.

City-Wide Overview - Revenues & Expenditures

 



 

 

      September 2024 Monthly Financial Report 
City of Shelton, Washington 

11 

   Fund  2024

Budget 

 2024

thru

September 

 2024

Est Actual* 

Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

% Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

Sewer Fund

Charges for Goods/Services 6,757,539        5,396,258        7,016,286        258,747          3.8%

Miscellaneous Revenue 18,000             229,717           235,537           217,537          1208.5%

Total Revenues 6,775,539        5,625,976        7,251,823        476,284          7.0%

Wages 967,051           688,797           918,390           48,661            5.0%

Benefits 437,406           289,025           385,330           52,076            11.9%

Professional Services 422,085           389,545           519,400           (97,315)           -23.1%

Transfers-Out 1,294,000        1,294,000        1,294,000        -                      0.0%

Other 4,815,614        3,848,233        4,833,441        (17,827)           -0.4%

Total Expenditures 7,936,156        6,509,601        7,950,561        (14,405)           -0.2%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures (1,160,617)       (883,626)          (698,738)          461,879          

Sewer Capital Fund

Intergovernmental Revenue 5,216,500        55,271             500,000           (4,716,500)      -90.4%

Transfers In 1,294,000        1,294,000        1,294,000        -                      0.0%

Total Revenues 6,510,500        1,349,271        1,794,000        -                      0.0%

Other 6,510,500        148,952           2,186,860        4,323,640       66.4%

Total Expenditures 6,510,500        148,952           2,186,860        4,323,640       66.4%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures -                       1,200,318        (392,860)          (392,860)         

Solid Waste Fund

Intergovernmental Revenue 124,500           119,982           122,000           (2,500)             -2.0%

Miscellaneous Revenue -                       20,843             21,495             21,495             

Total Revenues 124,500           140,825           143,495           18,995            15.3%

Professional Services 42,000             24,868             33,160             8,840              21.0%

Other 134,438           120,263           120,379           14,059            10.5%

Total Expenditures 176,438           145,131           153,539           22,899            13.0%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures (51,938)            (4,306)              (10,045)            41,893            

Storm Drainage Fund

Intergovernmental Revenue 175,000           23,316             23,800             (151,200)         -86.4%

Charges for Goods/Services 1,583,130        1,238,862        1,637,553        54,423            3.4%

Miscellaneous Revenue 500                  47,528             51,209             50,709            10141.7%

Total Revenues 1,758,630        1,309,706        1,712,562        (46,068)           -2.6%

Wages 595,164           391,218           532,730           62,434            10.5%

Benefits 256,842           161,128           220,790           36,052            14.0%

Professional Services 123,090           41,898             119,320           3,770              3.1%

Transfers-Out 395,000           395,000           395,000           -                      0.0%

Other 784,111           577,804           807,421           (23,310)           -3.0%

Total Expenditures 2,154,207        1,567,047        2,075,261        78,946            3.7%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures (395,577)          (257,341)          (362,699)          32,878            

Storm Drainage Capital Fund

Intergovernmental Revenue -                       -                       -                       -                       

Transfers In 395,000           395,000           395,000           -                      0.0%

Total Revenues 395,000           395,000           395,000           -                      0.0%

Other 395,000           18,984             125,310           269,690          68.3%

Total Expenditures 395,000           18,984             125,310           269,690          68.3%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures -                       376,016           269,690           269,690          

*2024 estimated actuals are based on historical data, YTD activity, known adjustments and are not year-end actuals.

City-Wide Overview - Revenues & Expenditures



 

 

      September 2024 Monthly Financial Report 
City of Shelton, Washington 

12 

   Fund  2024

Budget 

 2024

thru

September 

 2024

Est Actual* 

Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

% Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

Payroll Benefits Fund

Charges for Goods/Services 40,000             37,700             50,270             10,270            25.7%

Miscellaneous Revenue 350                  6,730               7,500               7,150              2042.9%

Transfers In 120,000           20,413             47,145             (72,855)           -60.7%

Total Revenues 160,350           64,843             104,915           (55,435)           -34.6%

Benefits 160,350           34,419             67,162             93,188            58.1%

Total Expenditures 160,350           34,419             67,162             93,188            58.1%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures -                       30,424             37,753             37,753            

Equipment Maint & Rental Fund

Charges for Goods/Services 578,000           599,397           784,456           206,456          35.7%

Miscellaneous Revenue 5,000               11,725             13,000             8,000              160.0%

Total Revenues 583,000           611,122           797,455           214,455          36.8%

Wages 111,323           85,751             114,330           (3,007)             -2.7%

Benefits 53,852             40,828             54,440             (588)                -1.1%

Professional Services 22,308             897                  1,200               21,108            94.6%

Other 384,998           385,936           504,763           (119,765)         -31.1%

Total Expenditures 572,481           513,413           674,733           (102,252)         -17.9%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures 10,519             97,710             122,723           112,204          

Firefighter's Pension Fund

Taxes 100                  -                       -                       (100)                -100.0%

Miscellaneous Revenue 9,000               22,269             23,580             14,580            162.0%

Transfers In 50,000             -                       -                       (50,000)           -100.0%

Total Revenues 59,100             22,269             23,580             (35,520)           -60.1%

Benefits 80,600             42,317             59,338             21,262            26.4%

Total Expenditures 80,600             42,317             59,338             21,262            26.4%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures (21,500)            (20,049)            (35,758)            (14,258)           

Library Endowment Fund

Miscellaneous Revenue 1,600               1,477               1,600               -                      0.0%

Total Revenues 1,600               1,477               1,600               -                      0.0%

Transfers-Out 24,000             -                       -                       24,000            100.0%

Total Expenditures 24,000             -                       -                       24,000            100.0%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures (22,400)            1,477               1,600               24,000            

*2024 estimated actuals are based on historical data, YTD activity, known adjustments and are not year-end actuals.

Patch Truck that was ordered in 2023 not received until 2024

Revenues:  Current estimate does not include a transfer-in from general fund in 2024.

City-Wide Overview - Revenues & Expenditures

Firefighters Pension Fund Notes

Equipment Maint & Rental Fund Notes

 



Brief Date:  12/03/2024

CITY OF SHEL TON 
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item E2) 

Shelton Municipal Court 

Presented By: Judge Greer & Dyan Smolinsky

APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 
PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 

INNOVATING JUSTICE AWARD
Action Requested: 

ROUTE TO: 

D Dept. Head 

D Finance Director 

D Attorney 

� City Clerk 

D City Manager 

REVIEWED: ATTACHMENTS: 

Nomination of Judge Greer 

Innovating Justice Award Guidelines 

Notice of Award 

Acceptance of award (Dyan's notes) 

- ---- Photo of award

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

□ 

□ 

□ 

Ordinance 

Resolution 

Motion 

None 

The 2024 Innovating Justice Award was awarded to Shelton Municipal Court for the good work 
being done in the ITC program (Individualized Therapeutic Court). I had nominated Judge Greer 
for the award, but the BJA felt it wanted to award the ITC program and team as a whole. 
Shelton Municipal Court is very proud to be one of four courts in WA to receive this award in 
2024. 

Dyan Smolinsky, Administrator 

Council Briefing Fonn Revised 07/01/2020 

















Council Briefing Form   

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item F1) 

Touch Date: 11/15/2024 
Brief Date: 12/03/2024 
Action Date:  12/17/2024 

 

Department: Executive 
 
Presented By: Mark Ziegler 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
    2025 Legislative Agenda 

 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
  - Resolution No. 1353-1024 
  - AWC 2025 Legislative Priorities 

 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  
As part of the City of Shelton’s efforts to influence, affect, and guide the passage of legislation in the 
Washington State Legislature by identifying legislative priorities to provide input to state legislators, the attached 
2025 Legislative Agenda delineates the position of the City of Shelton on the capital funding requests and 
general policy issues stated therein. 
 
It has been determined that the capital requests in the proposed 2025 Legislative Agenda could feasibly be 
funded through earmarks in the state capital or transportation budgets. Upon approval, city staff will submit 
corresponding appropriation requests to members of the 35th Legislative District for consideration of 
sponsorship.  
 
Any post-approval legislative priorities may be considered and pursued throughout the duration of the 2025 
Washington Legislative Session.  
 
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
N/A  
 
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
 
N/A  
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
N/A  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
“I move to forward Resolution No.1353-1024 to the action agenda of the December 17, 2024 Council meeting.” 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 1353-1024 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON 
ESTABLISHING THE 2025 LEGISLATIVE AGENDA 

WHEREAS, the City of Shelton is classified as a non-charter code city under Title 35A of the 
Revised Code of Washington (RCW); and 
 
WHEREAS, section 35A.11.020 of the RCW provides in pertinent part that “[t]he legislative body 
of each code city shall have all powers possible for a city or town to have under the Constitution of 
this state, and not specifically denied to code cities by law;” and 
 
WHEREAS, it is part of the normal and regular conduct of the City of Shelton to identify its 
legislative priorities to provide input to state legislators; and 
 
WHEREAS, efforts of representation on behalf of the City of Shelton to influence, effect, or guide 
the passage of legislation in the Washington State Legislature are enhanced by a comprehensive 
package of proposals that have been officially adopted by the City Council; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Shelton, 
Washington, that the attached City of Shelton 2025 Legislative Agenda delineates the position of the 
City of Shelton on the capital funding requests and general policy issues stated therein. 
 
Any additional legislative priorities may be considered.  
 
INTRODUCED on the 3rd of December 2024 and PASSED by the City Council of the City of 
Shelton on this 17th day of December 2024. 

 

 

         _______________________________ 
ATTEST:                                                                      Mayor Eric Onisko 

 
 
 

______________________________   
City Clerk Nault      
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 
 

2025 LEGISLATIVE AGENDA 
 
PRIORITY REQUESTS 
 

Potential member requests for funding through earmarks in the state capital or transportation 
budgets. 
 
Mountainview Pressure Zone Reservoir #2       $4,000,000 

• Serve water to 2,000 proposed homes in the north portion of the community and improve fire flows.  
• A new 1.25-1.50 MG (+) elevated reservoir will be constructed next to the existing reservoir. 
• $8.5 million total cost; balance to be sourced from State Water Revolving Loan Fund and Developer 

Connection Charges. 
• Other potential funding sources:  Potential Public Works Trust Fund, Loans, City Water Fund 

 
Multimodal Path          $3,000,000 

• Construct a 1.5-mile multimodal path through the City from Kneeland Park to Highway 101 utilizing 
the old Simpson Timber Railroad right-of-way; and, 

• Construct a 1.0-mile multimodal path through the City from Kneeland Park to the Shelton Marina 
using City rights-of-way. 

• Funding will provide for a paved 14-foot-wide path with seating, lighting, and amenities. 
• Will provide non-motorized transportation alternatives for all ages, provide safe route to school for 

children, promote tourism, and encourage positive health outcomes. 
• Design already underway using a previous state allocation and WSDOT SWCC funds; construction 

money will be required. 
• Partners:  Shelton Municipal Parks District, Shelton Creative District, Shelton School District, WSDOT 
• Other funding sources:  Potential Safe Routes to School Grant, TBD/TIF monies 

 
Wallace Kneeland & 13th Roundabout        $2,550,000 

• Current traffic volumes warrant improvements/intersection reconfiguration at 13th & Wallace 
Kneeland to prepare for substantial and increased growth on the north side of the city. 

• $4.7 million total cost; $500k in City Impact Fees, $1m 2024 Legislative Grant, $650k 2019 Legislative 
grants already applied to project. 

• Other funding sources:  Potential Safe Routes to School Grant, TBD/TIF monies 
 
Homeless Mitigation Site         $2,000,000 

• It is imperative for the City to begin addressing the homelessness crisis within the Shelton corporate 
limits, and in the surrounding community. Construction of a mitigation site to house the homeless 
population, and potential future supportive services including addiction and mental health 
counseling services. 

• Partners:  Local non-profit groups. 
• Other funding sources:  Staff time.  Potential land donation. 



 
OTHER CAPITAL FUNDING REQUESTS 
 

 
COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

Affordable Housing          TBD 
 
Redevelopment of Derelict Properties        TBD 
 
INFRASTRUCTURE  
 

Other Wallace Kneeland Boulevard Improvements                        $4,500,000                                                                    
 

Angleside Pressure Zone Reservoir #2        $4,000,000 
 
Satellite Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrades      $17,200,000 
 
New Municipal Well #5          $1,500,000 
 
Johns Prairie Sewer Extension and Regional Lift Station      $8,000,000 
 
 
GENERAL POLICY ISSUES 
 
Transportation Benefit District 
Allow for continuation of transportation benefit districts beyond the ten-year limitation.  
 
Public Works Infrastructure Funding 
Support efforts to maintain long-term funding sources for public works infrastructure projects.  

 
Local Control 
Oppose unfunded and under-funded mandates while supporting local control over regulatory policy 
initiatives. 

 
Association of Washington Cities Legislative Program 
The City of Shelton will support the Association of Washington Cities in advancing legislation in the following 
areas: 

• See AWC’s 2025 Legislative Priorities – attached 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2025 AWC legislative agenda 
The following items are the official 2025 City Legislative Priorities as adopted by the AWC Board. 
 
2025 City Legislative Priorities 
Fiscal sustainability 
• Revise the property tax cap to tie it to inflation, up 

to 3%, so that local elected officials can adjust 
the local property tax rate to better serve their 
communities. 

Public safety 
• Support efforts to prevent and address juvenile 

crime, including expansion of juvenile behavioral 
health treatment capacity and state correctional 
capacity. 

• Enhance officer training through continued state 
funding of 100% of Basic Law Enforcement 
Academy (BLEA) costs; and expansion of 
existing regional academies and establishing 
new regional academies; and replacement the 
outdated Criminal Justice Training Center (CJTC) 
main facility. 

• Increase funding to meet local public safety 
needs including additional direct state funding 
opportunities and enhancing the existing local 
public safety sales tax and allowing for 
councilmanic implementation. 

• Support creation of programs designed to 
improve law enforcement retention, such as state 
supported law enforcement officer wellness and 
injury prevention programs. 

• Support efforts to reduce gun violence including 
additional local options for regulation of firearms 
in certain public spaces. Support strengthening 
prosecutors’ ability to enforce unlawful 
possession of firearms. 

Infrastructure investment 
• Advocate for direct and meaningful investments 

in traditional local infrastructure (such as drinking 
water, wastewater, and stormwater systems) for 
operations and maintenance of aging systems, 
including expanded and reliable funding for the 
Public Works Assistance Account. 

• Support sustainable state transportation revenue 
that provides funding for local preservation, 
maintenance, and operations including direct 

distributions to cities and town in addition to grant 
opportunities. 

• Develop new fiscal tools to build infrastructure to 
support housing development and growth 
including increased funding for the Connecting 
Housing and Infrastructure Program (CHIP). 

• Expand cities’ ability and flexibility to use REET 
for additional capital needs including 
maintenance as well as to support affordable 
housing. Pursue other flexibility options including 
additional REET authority, harmonizing REET 1 
& 2, and the ability to set a progressive rate 
model similar to the one the state has adopted. 

Increasing housing supply 
• Support Real Estate Transfer Tax dedicated to 

funding affordable housing. 
• Explore new funding options for needs along the 

housing continuum, including home ownership 
and senior housing 

• Explore dedication of existing revenues to 
housing purposes including insuring that funding 
is available for small and medium-sized cities 
and towns in both eastern and western 
Washington. 

Increase behavioral health treatment capacity 
statewide 
• Expand funding for grants to establish and 

support ongoing funding for local behavioral 
health crisis co-responder programs. Support 
additional training and certification and workforce 
development for co-responders. 

• Seek increased investments in community 
behavioral health treatment funding – both capital 
start-up and operational expenses; support 
expansion of continuum of treatment capacity, 
from crisis stabilization to inpatient to outpatient; 
support continued expansion of forensic 
behavioral health treatment capacity; support 
additional mental health support for students 

• Support efforts to increase behavioral health 
workforce, including additional training 
opportunities for co-responders. 



Issues that are significant to cities 
Indigent defense 
• The State Supreme Court is considering new 

reduced case load standards for indigent 
defense. Cities support a separate and more 
detailed analysis of the current state of indigent 
defense for misdemeanor cases to determine 
what changes in the standard are warranted. 
Cities also seek enhanced state funding for 
indigent defense, and workforce development for 
prosecutors and public defenders. 

Organized retail theft 
• Support additional prosecutorial and law 

enforcement resources to address retail theft. 
Incentivize condominium construction 
• Work with coalition to support further progress in 

the development of condominiums. Seek a study 
of liability issues to develop recommendations to 
address barriers to construction of new 
condominiums. 

Public records 
• Continue to pursue updates to the Public 

Records Act (PRA) to reduce the impacts of 
vexation litigation and vexatious requestors. 

Preserve manufactured home parks 
• Advocate for more funding to support tenant 

acquisition of manufacture home parks including 
extending the existing 70-day purchase window. 

• Expand CHIP program to cover septic 
conversions in parks. 

Fish passage 
• Support inclusion of local fish barrier correction 

investments in any state transportation 
investments. 

• Support full funding of Brian Abbott Fish Barrier 
Board list. 

Homelessness response 
• Support encampment resolution work in cities 

and private lands. Advocate for increased state 
funding for encampment removal on local right of 
ways. 

• Support increased state investment in 
emergency and transitional housing. 

Product stewardship for packaging (WRAP Act) 
• Support proposals to establish a product 

stewardship framework for packaging to reduce 
the impact on local solid waste programs. 

Reduce city liability exposure 
• Protect against liability expansion and new 

policies that would drive additional claims and 
litigation increasing costs especially in the area of 
law enforcement and public safety, and human 
resources. 

• Explore tort reforms that would reduce liability 
and related costs for cities particularly in the area 
of traffic related claims. 

Nutrient General Permit 
• Continue effort to gain state support for 

investments to update Marine Dissolved Oxygen 
Criteria last set in 1967. 

Increase availability of affordable and accessible 
childcare 
• Support efforts to increase affordable childcare 

access statewide, including reducing barriers for 
providers; construction of new facilities, 
increasing workforce development, increasing 
access for state subsidized childcare slots, and 
efforts to increase childcare availability in rural 
areas. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Issues that cities support 
Tax code structural changes 
• Support efforts to review and revise both state 

and local tax structures such that they rely less 
on regressive revenue options. Changes to the 
state tax structure should not negatively impact 
cities’ revenue authority and should allow cities 
revenue flexibility to address their community’s 
needs. 

 
Therapeutic courts, community courts, diversion 
programs 
• Support continued and expanded operational 

grant funding, as well as dedicated ongoing 
operational funding for municipal therapeutic 
courts, community courts, and diversion 
programs. 

B&O tax on royalties 
• Support clarification of how to apply B&O taxes 

to business revenue related to royalties. 
Asylum seeker and migrant assistance 
• Advocate for support for additional assistance for 

arriving migrants and asylum seekers including 
centralize state efforts to provide case 
management resources. Support efforts to 
reduce impacts on cities that are experiencing 
high-numbers of unsupported asylee and migrant 
arrivals. 

Balancing employee leave and benefits 
requirements 
• Seek opportunities to balance costs and reduce 

unintended impacts on employers from 
expansion of leave laws and other proposed 
employee benefit enhancements. 

Public meetings 
• Explore Open Public Meeting Act (OPMA) 

updates to help address the trend of increasing 
disruptive activities and hate speech during 
public meetings. 

Emergency management and response 
• Expand support to cities for prevention, planning, 

response, and recovery for wildfire and other 
natural disasters. 

• Provide 100% reimbursement to cities that 
provide firefighting support for state wildland fire 
deployments. Currently, the state only provides 
70-75% reimbursement which disincentivizes city 
fire service participation. 

 
 
 

First responder mental wellness 
• Support efforts to increase programs to improve 

first responder mental well-being and evaluate 
current approach to workers compensation 
claims to focus on prevention and return to work 
options and reduction of PTSD claims. Evaluate 
the process for responding to PTSD claims to 
improve outcomes. 

Elections 
• Support policies that preserve community 

decision-making and input regarding how local 
elections are administered. 

Increase digital equity and accessibility 
statewide 
• Advocate for statewide funding that supports 

affordable connectivity. 
• Support policies that increase digital literacy and 

adoption. 
Electrical grid stability 
• Support policies that enhance stability and 

productivity of the electrical grid as electrification 
of transportation and other arenas increases 
demand. 

Increase tools for annexation 
• Create new financial incentives to encourage 

municipal annexations 
Ensure better coordination of development 
standards in unincorporated UGAs and cities to 
facilitate future annexations 
• Require county to apply city development 

standards in unincorporated UGA to facilitate 
future annexations. 

Amend the Involuntary Treatment Act (ITA) 
• Explore efforts to reform the Involuntary 

Treatment Act to allow for expanded use of ITA 
holds for individuals who consistently refuse 
necessary treatment. 

Firefighter safety and electrification response 
• The increase in electrification including electric 

vehicles (EV) and electric storage systems (ESS) 
as created new challenges for the fire service. 
Support efforts to provided new and increased 
training on best practices for responding to EV 
and ESS fires. 

State Crime Lab 
• Increase resources for the state crime lab to 

ensure timely processing of evidence. 
 
 

 



Council Briefing Form   

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item F2) 

Touch Date: 11/15/2024 
Brief Date: 12/03/2024 
Action Date:  12/17/2024 

 

Department: Finance 
 
Presented By: Mike Githens 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
    Enterprise Fleet Management        
    Agreements 

 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
  - Resolution No. 1355-1124 
  - Master Equity Lease Agreement 
  - Agreement to Sell Fleet Managed  
    Vehicles 
  - Agreement to Maintain Current     
     Vehicles 
  - Agreement for Consignment          
    Auction of City Owned Vehicles 
  - Agreement for New Vehicle            
    Maintenance 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  
The City of Shelton has been studying the concept of moving the City’s light duty fleet to a leasing program 
through Enterprise Fleet Management for almost two years. There are some unique benefits of the leasing 
program that can serve to save the City in resources; both budget and personnel.  
 
The City’s current model of vehicle replacement has been to buy a vehicle through Washington State Contract, 
operate the vehicle for its life, and either perform maintenance internally or in the case of police vehicles, send 
the vehicles out for maintenance, and then sell the vehicle through the State Department of Enterprise Services 
when a replacement vehicle is purchased. In many cases, the average life cycle of city vehicles has been 
approximately 14 years.  
 
The average life cycle of a leased vehicle in the Enterprise Fleet program is four years. The lease program 
offered by Enterprise Fleet Management is an Open-End Lease, not a Closed End Lease. A Closed End Lease 
is what you typically think of when leasing a vehicle as a personal consumer and it comes with mileage 
restrictions, set terms, charges for wear and tear, and no equity gained. An Open-End Lease, however, is 
structured just as if the vehicle was purchased and includes no set terms, no mileage restrictions, no wear and 
tear charges, and the City would get the equity when the vehicle is sold.  
 
The Contract and other Agreement documents are included with this briefing, all of which have been reviewed 
by the City Attorney. There is no term to the Agreement, meaning the City could cancel and go back to a 
purchase and retain the vehicle for a number of years model, as we have done in the past, of acquiring its 
vehicles.  
 
The current Enterprise Fleet program does not support heavy duty or specialized vehicles at this time. Those 
vehicles will remain under the current manner the City acquires those types of vehicles. Many of these vehicles 
are purchased through the City’s Equipment Maintenance and Rental Fund (EM&R).  
 
Enterprise Fleet Management participated in a rigorous Request for Proposal (RFP) process with Sourcewell. 
Their program was identified as the best value. City staff have also talked with local jurisdictions, including 



Council Briefing Form   

Mason County, who use Enterprise Fleet Management, and we received positive feedback from all.  
 
Additional advantages and benefits of the Enterprise Fleet Management model: 

1. Enterprise Fleet Management is one of the largest buyers of vehicles in the country. This will 
leverage their purchasing power and their priority when ordering vehicles This provides the City 
with certainty that we will receive our vehicles in a timely manner and on schedule. Over the past 
four years we have had delayed purchases due to supply chain and vehicle shortages.  

2. One of City Council’s Strategic Goals is to “manage full lifecycle of community assets”. Having a 
current, well-kept fleet of vehicles is an investment in the community’s assets and projects a 
positive public image of the City with newer, maintained vehicles.  

3. Newer vehicles are inherently safer. They come with improved safety aspects that not only helps 
with risk management but also with employee safety.  

4. Having a newer fleet of vehicles lends itself to increased employee satisfaction to promote 
increased moral and relieve some minor daily frustration that older vehicles can cause.  

5. We anticipate a decrease in vehicle maintenance and fuel costs as we replace older vehicles, 
particularly Police vehicles, that require expensive outside maintenance.  

6. The Enterprise model saves the City Staff time when it comes to the ordering process, and 
disposal of vehicles process.  

 
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
The current City model can be continued where vehicles are purchased on State Contract as budget is 
available and the lifespan of the vehicles will continue to remain high and likely increase. Older vehicles tend to 
require and incur higher maintenance costs as well.  
 
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
The 2025 budget was developed with the lease concept included.  
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Additional information can be obtained from the City Clerk. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
“I move to forward Resolution No.1355-1124 to the action agenda of the December 17, 2024 Council meeting 
for further consideration.” 

 



   

RESOLUTION NO. 1355-1124 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN CONTRACTS WITH ENTERPRISE FLEET MANAGEMENT 
 

WHEREAS, City management has determined that it is it is the most cost-efficient solution 
to lease certain city vehicles from a private party in lieu of purchasing them; and  

WHEREAS, City management has determined that it is the most cost-efficient solution to 
contract with a private party to sell surplus city vehicles on consignment, rather than selling them 
directly; and  

WHEREAS, Enterprise Fleet Services is willing to provide the above-described services at a 
reasonable cost.  

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington, as 
follows: 

The City Manager is authorized to execute the Master Equity Lease Agreement, Maintenance 
Agreement, Assignment Agreement to Sell Customer Vehicles, and Consignment Auction 
Agreement for Sale of Customer Owned Vehicles with Enterprise Fleet Services. 
 
INTRODUCED on the 3rd of December 2024 and PASSED by the City Council at its regular meeting on 
the 17th of December 2024. 
 
 
 
                                                                          _________________________________ 
ATTEST:                                                                Mayor Onisko 
 
   
____________________________  
City Clerk Nault  
 
 
 

































Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item G1) 

Touch Date:  10/16/2024              
Brief Date:     12/03/2024 
Action Date:  12/17/2024 

Department: Finance 
   
Presented By:  Mike Githens 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
   2024 Supplemental Budget  

 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
   Ordinance No. 2026-1024  
   Exhibit A 
   Exhibit B 
 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 
 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 
 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 
 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 
 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   

The City Council, through Ordinance, sets the expenditure authority for each fund of the City. Budget 
authority can only be increased from their adopted levels by the approval of a supplemental budget 
Ordinance. The City Council passed Ordinance No. 2013-0923, adopting the City’s 2024 budget on 
November 19th, 2023. 
 
The City prepares budgets for projects and certain purchases to occur through transfers from operating 
budgets to capital fund budgets. These projects sometimes change from the time the original budget was 
introduced. Many of the items in this supplemental budget are cleaning up the projects and transfers for 
purchases and projects.  
 
This supplemental Ordinance will change the following funds: 

• Sewer Fund and Sewer Capital Fund: Give budget authority to cover expenses, de-obligate budget 
for projects not happening and recognize additional funding in some cases. 

• Storm Fund and Storm Capital Fund: Transfer from Storm Fund to Storm Capital for the installation 
of the storm infrastructure of the Capital Hill paving project.  

• Water Capital Fund: Adding budget authority for the Angleside Reservoir capacity upgrades with 
funding provided through a State Commerce Grant and deobligating the budget for the reservoir 
vent replacements because it was determined it is operations not capital. 

• Capital Resources TBD: Providing funding for the Downtown Street Tree & Sidewalk project and 
additional funding for the Capital Hill paving project.  

• Capital Improvement Fund: This is the fund where the spending will occur for the Downtown Street 
Tree & Sidewalk project, Capitol Hill paving project, applying the City’s remainder of ARPA funds 
towards the purchase of the police vehicle and give budget authority for the Cross Town Trail with 
the funding coming from SMPD. The SMPD budget included the budget item, but it was not 
included on the City’s side for the Capital Improvement Fund. 

• Capital Resources General: A transfer out of the remainder of ARPA funds to the Capital 
Improvement Fund and apply to the purchase of the new police vehicle.  



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

• General Fund: Recognize additional expenses in the Police Department for the Designated Crisis 
Responder, donation monies received for the first-year payment of the Flock camera system, and 
recognizing the State Grant for Office of Public Defense. 

• Equipment, Maintenance and Replacement Fund: Additional budget authority for 2024 is needed 
because the patch truck unit was budgeted in 2023 but did not arrive until 2024 when it was paid 
for. 

The supplemental requests are included in detail in Exhibits A and B.  
   
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
 The supplemental budget will allow the City to have additional budget authority, remove funding for 

projects that are not happening and add funding for projects that require additional revenue. 
 
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
 The overall fiscal impact is minimal. This supplemental largely serves to clean up projects and the 

accounting for them in the various funds. 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  

Information can be obtained from the City Clerk.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  

“I move that we forward Ordinance No. 2026-1024 to the December 17h City Council meeting for further 
consideration”. 

 



  

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2026-1024 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, AMENDING THE ANNUAL BUDGET 

FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the Shelton City Council adopted the 2024 budget pursuant to Ordinance No.2013-0923; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City is prohibited from over expending its appropriated budget as set forth in Ordinance No. 
2013-0923 adopted budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, certain revisions to the 2024 budget are now necessary and the City Council finds that the 

proposed adjustments to the 2024 Adopted Budget are justified; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington: 
 

 Section 1.  
 
The adjustments as provided in this Ordinance to amend the 2024 Annual Budget of the City of Shelton, 
Washington, are hereby adopted. In summary form, the appropriation adjustments for each separate fund 
and the aggregate totals for all such funds combined are presented in the table below.  Exhibit A and B, 
attached to this Ordinance, provides additional information on the adjustments. 
 

 



  

 
 

Section 2. 
 
This ordinance shall take effect five days after its approval and publication as required by law. 
 
INTRODUCED the 3rd day of December 2024. 
 
ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Mason County, Washington at a regular open public meeting 
held the 17th day of December 2024. 
 
 
       
Passed this _______ day of ____________________ 2024. 
 
 
 
  _____________________ 
  Eric Onisko, Mayor 
  
  AUTHENTICATED:  
 
 
  _____________________ 

Donna Nault, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



  

Exhibit A 
City of Shelton 

Ordinance No. 2026-1024 
 
 
General Fund    ____                                                                                         $180,709 
 
Allocating budget authority for expenditures of programs and purchases that came about after the adoption of 
the 2024 budget. This includes; 
 
 $100,000 for the Police Designated Crisis Responder which is a reimbursement through agreement with 
Thurston-Mason Behavioral Health. 
 
$39,000 for the Public Defender expense offset in part by a Grant from Washington State Office of Public 
Defense.  
 
$41,709 for the expense of the Flock camera system, which is partially offset by a donation. 
 
Capital Resources TBD   ____                                                                                         $290,000 
Transfer of $230,000 to Capital Resources General for the downtown sidewalk repair and street tree removal 
project and $60,000 in additional funding for the Capitol Hill paving project.  
 
Capital Resources General   ____                                                                                         $38,492 
Transfer $38,492 of ARPA Funds to the Capital Improvement Fund to be applied towards the purchase of a 
police vehicle. 
 
Capital Improvement Fund   ____                                                                              $428,492 
The Shelton Metropolitan Parks District budget was adopted with $100,000 to be used towards the “Simpson 
Railroad design and construction” but the dollars were not budgeted in the Capital Improvement Fund, where 
the expenditures will happen. 
 
 $230,000 of TBD resources to be used for the downtown sidewalk repair and street tree removal. 
 
$60,000 of TBD resources to be used for additional costs for the Capitol Hill paving project. 
 
Allocating the City’s remaining ARPA (American Rescue Plan Act) funds towards the 2024 purchase of a police 
vehicle.  
 
Sewer Fund                                                                                 _                                                                ($317,000) 
De-obligating $400,000 budget for the sewer extension project from Shelton Springs Road to the Port of Shelton. 
 
$83,000 of additional budget authority required due to the dryer not operating and the associated costs related 
to this.  
 
Storm Fund                                                                       _                                                                      $45,000 
A transfer to Storm Capital in the amount of $45,000 for additional budget authority that is needed for the Capitol 
Hill paving project related to the storm drainage system. 
 
Sewer Capital Fund                                                                   _                                                                 ($1,683,000)  
Budget authority in the amount of $125,000 for the Membrane Headworks expenditures that are part of the 
Mason County .09 Funds award.  
 
De-obligating $1,808,000 in anticipated funding and associated expenditures related to Sewer Capital for the 
sewer extension project from Shelton Springs Road to the Port of Shelton. 
 
 



  

 
 
Storm Capital Fund                                                                   _                                                                 ($5,000)  
Budget authority in the amount of $45,000 for the storm system related work in the Capital Hill paving project. 
De-obligating $50,000 for a Mid-sized SUV that is not being purchased and was budgeted to be purchased in 
2024. 
 
 
Water Capital Fund                                                                   _                                                                 $1,700,000  
The City received a State of Washington Department of Commerce grant in the amount of $1,800,000 to be used 
for the Angleside Reservoir Capacity Upgrades. The grant award occurred after the adoption of the 2024 budget 
in November of 2023. 
 
De-obligating $100,000 for the reservoir vent replacements because it was determined this is operations and 
maintenance not capital.  
 
Equipment Maintenance and Rental (EM&R) Fund                       _                                                                $148,450  
The City purchased a patch truck and part of the truck’s components, the unit that sits on the back of the truck, 
did not arrive until 2024. This gives the budget authority for that part of the purchase.  
 
 



Exhibit B
City of Shelton 

Ordinance No. 2026-1024

Notes for 2024 Budget Supplemental #1, 2026-1024 Totals Gen Fund

 Capital 
Resources
General 

 Capital 
Resources
TBD 

 Capital
Improv
Fund Sewer Storm

 Sewer
Capital 

 Storm
Capital 

 Water
Capital EM&R

Police Designated Crisis Responder Agreement with Thurston-
Mason Behavioral Health 100,000     
OPD Grant Public Defense 39,000       
Angleside Reservoir Capacity Upgrades - Commerce Grant 1,800,000  
MBR Plant Headworks - Mason County .09 funds 125,000        
Cross Town Trail - SMPD funds 100,000            
Flock - PD 41,709       
Equipment Maint & Rental Fund - Patch Truck unit received in 
2024 148,450   
Downtown Street Tree & Sidewalk 230,000       230,000            
Capitol Hill paving project additional funds needed 60,000         60,000              
Shelton Springs Road - Sewer extension to Port of Shelton (400,000)  (1,808,000)    
Storm Capital Capitol Hill Paving - Storm Operations 45,000  45,000     
Storm  Capital - Mid-sized SUV not being purchased (50,000)    
Police Vehicle - Use remaining ARPA funds 38,492         38,492              
Reservoir Vent Replacements - Expense will be in operations (100,000)   
Sewer - Dryer not operating; associated costs 83,000     

Grand Totals 826,143    180,709     38,492         290,000       428,492            (317,000)  45,000  (1,683,000)    (5,000)      1,700,000  148,450   



1 
 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item G2) 

Touch Date:   10/08/2024          
Brief Date:      12/03/2024 
Action Date:   12/17/2024 

 

Department: Administration 
   
Presented By: Mark Ziegler 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
Housing and Related Services 
SalesTax 
 

  ATTACHMENTS:  
     - Ordinance No. 2027-1024 
     - Funding Options 
 
     

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 
 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 
 

 
 

 
Attorney 11/20/24 

 
 

 
City Clerk 11/22/24 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
Mason County Housing Needs Assessment published December 2022 identifies the five-year need for housing 
for extremely low-income earners (less than 30% MI) at 231 units and very low (30%-60%MI) 289 units. Little 
has been done to rectify this in the two years since publication. The assessment recommendation of new 
funding sources for affordable housing be further evaluated and adopted by local jurisdictions.  
 
In 2022 the City established a limited term Homelessness Task Force that met six times to discuss various 
aspects of the impacts of homelessness on individuals and resulting effects in our community. The participants 
included Councilmembers, County Commissioner, local law enforcement, Mason Health, downtown business 
owners, homeless and social service providers and Mason County Public Health staff. The seven task force 
recommendations listed below were presented to the Council on November 22, 2022. Below each 
recommendation is a brief narrative of action since.  

 
1) Mitigation Site. (Short term – 1 year) 
   The City supplied $20,000 of ARPA funds in 2022 to Community Lifeline operations.  
 
2) Support for grant applications for current shelter options. (Short term – immediate) 

The City provided letters of support to Shelton Youth Connection for the construction of 
transitional housing. Property is leased for Shelton Veterans Village. 

 
3) Support for grant applications for community partners to provide rapid re-housing. (Short term – 

immediate) 
N/A 

 
4) 1 – 2 Mason County focused Designated Crisis Responders (DCR) potentially embedded with 

Shelton Police. (Medium term - 1 to 3 years) 
Through grant funds, City had a DCR in-house from February 2023 through September 6, 2024 
when the individual left employment with TMBHO. Grant funding is available through December 
31, 2024 

  



2 
 

5) Storage lockers co-located with a mitigation site. (Medium term – 1 to 3 years) 
N/A 

 
6) Public Dashboards on city web site that detail what shelter beds are available. (Medium term – 

1 to 3 years) 
No reasonable solution has been determined to implement such a program. Community Lifeline 
reports daily occupancy and bed count to the City. 

 
7) Support for Affordable Housing. (Long term – 3 to 5 years) 

Several measures to address this recommendation have been discussed including multi-family 
zones, pre-approved housing plans, multi-family tax exemptions, inclusionary requirements and 
live-work units. 

 
At the June 11, 2024 Council Study session, a majority of Council directed staff to bring funding 
alternatives to expand affordable housing options for further consideration. On October 8, 2024, 
affordable housing funding options were further discussed with Council and a majority of Council 
agreed to consider a housing and related services sales tax as established in RCW 82.14.530 at a 
future Council meeting.  

 
Per RCW 82.14.530 the Housing and Related Services Sales Tax must fund specific services. 

(a)  A minimum of 60% must be utilized for constructing or acquiring affordable housing, which 
may include emergency, transitional, and supportive housing and new units of affordable 
housing within an existing structure, and facilities providing housing-related services, or 
acquiring land for these purposes; or  

(b)  Constructing or acquiring behavioral health-related facilities, or acquiring land for these 
purposes; or 

(c)   Funding the operations and maintenance costs of new units of affordable housing and 
facilities where housing-related programs are provided, or newly constructed evaluation and 
treatment centers. 

 
Further, the affordable housing and facilities providing housing-related programs in may only be provided 
to persons within any of the following population groups whose income is at or below sixty percent of the 
median income of the county imposing the tax: 
 

(a) Persons with behavioral health disabilities 

(b) Veterans 

(c) Senior citizens 

(d) Persons who are homeless or at-risk of being homeless, including families with children 

(e) Unaccompanied homeless youth or young adults 

(f) Persons with disabilities 

(g) Domestic violence survivors 
 
The remainder of the moneys collected under this section must be used for the operation, delivery, or 
evaluation of behavioral health treatment programs and services or housing-related services. 
 
 
 

 



3 
 

 
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
This funding is intended to be used to house the homeless and those closest to the margin of becoming 
homeless, as indicated by the income and demographic qualifications above and in RCW 82.14.530.  The City 
currently doesn’t have the budgetary resources to undertake the important work of preventing 
homelessness among our most vulnerable populations. 

 
The projected tax revenue of $310,000 per year isn’t—on its own—immediately sufficient to construct or 
operate the housing and/or facilities contemplated by the state law, but the City could potentially save the funds 
for several years or leverage 50% of these funds to obligate debt to construct such a facility more immediately. 
For example, a ten-year loan could design and build up to a $1.5 million project, but then the City would still 
have to seek additional funds or partners for management and operation. 
 
Instead of building a facility, the City could use the funding to stabilize existing shelter services or fund other 
entities who can provide those services, as contemplated by the Homelessness Task Force. 
 
Direct payment options, such as rental assistance, could be another worthwhile use of the funds, but there are 
very limited market rate rentals available for even unsubsidized workforce housing, and distribution of the funds 
doesn’t result in the production of new units. 
 
The City’s best opportunities may come in supporting our local partners who are already building housing and 
whose costs could be driven down by subsidizing the various costs of construction such as connection charges, 
design costs, or other soft and hard costs. Lowering the cost per unit of construction could result in some 
affordable projects penciling out faster. Some alternatives include: 
 

• Offsetting the City’s utility connection charges; this is permitted by state law for affordable housing 
purposes only if the City makes the utility fund whole in doing so. This action could provide a source of 
revenue to pay back the utility funds, which currently amounts to nearly $17,000 per single-family home 
and has been a breaking point for at least two projects in the last two years. 

 
• Purchasing land at fair value from the City’s water utility for donation to affordable providers could 
result in a net benefit to the City’s utility funds while also making land available for construction.  
 
• Purchasing land from the open market for use by housing providers. 

 
• Directly funding construction of new units at underdeveloped properties at existing low-income 
housing developments in the city. 

 
• Developing ADU plans and cutting permit costs for ADUs when deed-restricted for the target 
populations. 

 
• Constructing the required infrastructure—such as streets, sidewalks, and other improvements—
required for building new residential units. 
 

Another opportunity for the use of funds is to provide housing coordination services. Up to 40% of the revenue 
can support housing programs separate from the direct provision of housing, which requires 60% of the funds.  
 
During the City’s recent Comprehensive Plan listening sessions, one of the most frequent requests by 
participants from the business community and social services providers was for a central “housing office” or 
similar function for rental resources, such as: maintaining listings, information on housing assistance, and 
grants application/administration for the continued growth of the affordable housing program. This employee 
could also develop a housing action plan and begin to implement that planning activity. The City has no staff 
currently available to carry out this function, which could be require between 0.50 and 0.75 FTE to operate. 
 
 
  



4 
 

BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
The sales tax imposes a .01% increase on taxable goods in the City limits. This equates to $1.00 per $1,000 
expenditure in taxable items, which does not include most grocery items. Estimated revenue over one calendar 
year is $310,000. 
 
Sixty percent of this amount, or $186,000, must be spent on the direct provision of housing to members of the 
specifically designated populations making less than 60% of the area median household income—the threshold 
being approximately $60,000 in 2024. 
 
Any of the programs identified in this briefing as potential uses of funds will require additional staff resources to 
administer; fortunately, up to forty percent of the grant can be used for supporting housing activities. 
 
A list of potential projects and services, viewed as one complete package of potential offerings, is included on 
Attachment A. Note that the amounts and projects listed can be changed, but Staff is trying to present a sample 
work plan with associated costs for consideration by the Council. 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Information can be obtained from the City Clerk.   
  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
“I move to forward Ordinance No. 2027-1024 to the action agenda of the December 17th, 2024 Council 
meeting for further consideration.” 



ORDINANCE NO. 2027-1024 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, IMPOSING AN ADDITIONAL 
SALES AND USE TAX OF ONE-TENTH OF ONE PERCENT FOR HOUSING AND RELATED 

SERVICES AS AUTHORIZED BY RCW 82.14.530, AND ADDING A NEW CHAPTER 3.47 TO 
THE SHELTON MUNICIPAL CODE 

WHEREAS, the City of Shelton has a critical need for additional funding to provide 
affordable housing and housing-related services for the homeless or people in danger of 
becoming homeless; and  

WHEREAS, housing affordability and homelessness are growing problems in the 
City of Shelton which require prompt attention to reduce human suffering for the City’s 
residents and to preserve a livable community for all; and  

WHEREAS, RCW 82.14.530 authorizes the imposition of an additional sales and use 
tax of one-tenth of one percent to be used for funding affordable housing, related services, 
and behavioral health treatment for vulnerable people including veterans, senior citizens, 
domestic violence survivors, homeless youth, and persons with disabilities; and  

WHEREAS, the Shelton City Council has determined that the tax should be 
imposed and that the proceeds will be used for those purposes authorized by RCW 
82.14.530, including constructing affordable housing, constructing mental and behavioral 
health-related facilities, and funding the operations and maintenance costs of new units of 
affordable housing and facilities where housing-related programs are provided, or newly 
constructed evaluation and treatment centers. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, 
ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:  

Section 1. Housing and Related Services Sales and Use Tax. A new Chapter 3.47 is 
hereby added to the Shelton Municipal Code to read as follows:  

3.47.010 Imposed  
There is imposed an additional sales or use tax as authorized by RCW 82.14.530, upon 
every taxable event, as defined in RCW 82.14.530, occurring within the City of Shelton. The 
tax shall be imposed upon and collected from those persons from whom the state sales 
tax or use tax is collected pursuant to RCW Chapters 82.08 and 82.12. 
 
3.47.020 Rate 
The rate of the tax imposed by this Chapter shall be one-tenth of one percent of the selling 
price, in the case of a sales tax, or the value of the article used, in the case of a use tax. 
 
 



3.47.030 Use of proceeds 
Revenue collected from the tax adopted by this Chapter shall be earmarked and used 
solely for the purposes enumerated in RCW 82.14.530. 

3.47.040 Administration and collection. 
The administration and collection of the tax imposed by this chapter shall be in 
accordance with the provisions of RCW 82.14.530. The City Manager or designee shall 
make necessary arrangements with the State Department of Revenue for the collection 
and distribution of the tax.  

Section 2. Severability. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance should 
be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court, board or tribunal of competent 
jurisdiction, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or 
constitutionality of any other section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance.  

Section 3. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force five (5) days 
after passage and publication.  

 

Passed by the City Council at its regular meeting held on the 17th day of December 2024. 

 

 

      _______________________________________ 
      Mayor Eric Onisko 
 

 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 
City Clerk Donna Nault 



Attachment A – Funding Options and Potential Work Plan 

1 

1) General facilities charge waivers for deed-restricted affordable 
housing.  $138,000.  Funding used to replenish GFCs in the appropriate water, sewer, 
storm, and transportation impact fee funds.  This will reduce the cost of 
development.  Eight units per year @ $17,250 per unit = $138,000.  Unused funds could 
rollover to support larger/more projects in subsequent years. 

2) Housing Planner/Associate Planner.  A new position dedicated to housing related 
programs, including: 

�. waiver program (see below) administration 

�. grant application and administration,  

�. CHIP, CLIHP, USDA, etc. 

�. housing plan development and implementation, including acquisitions,  

�. crafting affordable housing codes,  

�. managing a Multifamily Tax Exemption Program (MFTE) that includes a 8-year 10% 
@80AMI contract and 12-year 60% AMI special populations contract,  

�. [possible] housing and temporary shelter inspections, 

�. and operating a housing resource center (web and print resources for rentals, 
affordable purchase options, subsidized housing, etc.)   

�. Approx 0.75 of $67,000-82,000 salary, plus benefits; the other 0.25 FTE from general 
fund would support other long-range and current plan review projects. 

3) CED Director Salary. 10% job code split ($14,000) for managing new program and 
contributing to housing activities, developing housing plan, etc. Existing 10% of general 
fund obligation released for Housing Planner position 0.25 FTE. 

4) Mitigation site and/or shelter stabilization funding:  $43,000 per year. 

5) Other projects ($48,000 per year): 

�. Year One:  Obtain ADU plans, approx. $6000 per design, possibly less if acquired in 
bulk.  Carriage house and standalone options:  400sf Studio, 600sf 1bd, 800sf 2bd, 
1000sf 3bd.  $36,000 total.  Could work with Mason County and other surrounding 
jurisdictions (or even AWC) for a group acquisition to defray costs. 

�. Year One:  Budget excess funds for property acquisition in Year Two. 

�. Year Two:  property acquisition.  Acquiring unused lots and derelict buildings 
around town for disposal/reuse as affordable housing. 

6) Excess funds potential: 

�. If Housing Planner position hired at low end instead of high end, $15,000 per year 
savings. Could be used to augment other projects. 

�. Potential waiver of permit fees as a competitive local grant for qualifying projects. 



Attachment A – Funding Options and Potential Work Plan 

2 

�. If we had multiple years with no distribution of GFC waiver funds, the City could 
undertake direct construction of cottage style units, using the pre-made ADU plans, 
on city owned properties. 

Housing Planner  $    67,000.00  
CED Director  $    14,000.00  
GFC Waivers  $  138,000.00  
Mitigation Site or Shelter  $    43,000.00  
Acquisition & Construc-
tion  $    48,000.00  
TOTAL  $  310,000.00  
    
% Services (Admin) Costs 26.1% 
% Operations Costs 13.9% 
% Provision Costs 60.0% 

 

Per RCW 82.14.530, 60% of the revenue ($189,000) must be used for constructing or acquiring 
affordable housing or land for it (or operations, etc.)  Per the proposal above, the City would be 
spending 60.0% on directly providing affordable housing or subsidizing construction of such, and 
26.1% on administration of housing related services (the grants and housing office) with housing 
operations at 13.9% (shelter support).  The caveat would be that the City would have to covenant 
any GFC or ADU funding recipients that they could only serve the target populations… which limits 
its applicability for general below-AMI workforce housing (ie, Habitat for Humanity.) 

No more than 10% of the total ($31,000) funds can be used to supplant existing local funds; 
offsetting new GFCs related to new affordable units is not supplanting existing budgeted local 
funds.  There is precent for using funds to build infrastructure, such as in Jefferson County’s 
housing strategy for the same tax revenue source. 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item H1) 

  
 
Action Date:  12/03/2024  

Department:  Administration 
 
Presented By:  Mark Ziegler, City Manager 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:   PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 

  Labor Contracts  
   
ATTACHMENTS:  
  Resolution No. 1360-1124 
  Agreements with: 
   - Shelton Police Guild 
   - Shelton Employees Guild 
   - International Association of    
     Machinists and Aerospace Workers  
     Local Lodge W-38 (Customer     
     Service) 

 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
Contracts for the three labor groups representing City of Shelton employees expire on December 31, 2024. 
Staff and the labor groups have been negotiating in good faith for several months to reach terms on new 
contracts.  
  
Tentative three-year agreements have been reached with the Shelton Police Guild and the International 
Association of Machinists and Aerospace Workers Local Lodge W-38 (Customer Service). A tentative one-
year agreement has been reached with the Shelton Employees Guild.  

 
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
N/A 
 
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
Associated financial impacts include wage and benefit increases in all three contracts to adjust salaries for cost-
of-living increases and medical benefit premiums as listed below. Clothing allowances and educational 
incentives have also been amended to capture true costs and encourage professional development.  
 

 Cost of Living  
Labor Group 2025 2026 2027 Annual Medical 

Premium Increase 
Shelton Employee 
Guild 

3%   $50 p/month 

Shelton Police 
Guild 

3% 
(2% market adjust.) 

3% 3% $50 p/month 

Customer Service 3% 2.5% 2.25% $50 p/month 
 
 
  
 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
“I move to approve Resolution No. 1360-1124 as presented”.  
 



   

RESOLUTION NO. 1360-1124 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANGER TO EXECUTE LABOR CONTRACTS WITH THE SHELTON POLICE GUILD, 

SHELTON EMPLOYEES GUILD, AND THE INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATIONS OF MACHINISTS AND 
AEROSPACE WORKERS LOCAL LODGE W-38 

 
WHEREAS, RCW 41.56 applies to the rights and regulations related to collective bargaining for public 
employees; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Shelton (“City”) currently has three labor groups performing municipal services; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has longstanding labor relations with the Shelton Police Guild, Shelton Employees 
Guild and International Associations of Machinists and Aerospace Workers Local Lodge W-38; and 
 
WHEREAS, the labor agreements for each labor group expire December 31, 2024; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City and labor groups have negotiated in good faith to execute new agreements; and 
 
WHEREAS, tentative agreements have been reached with each labor group; and  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington, that the City 
Manager is authorized to execute labor contracts as follows: 
 
1. The Shelton Police Guild with a term of January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2027 
2. Shelton Employees Guild with a term of January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2025  
3. The International Associations of Machinists and Aerospace Workers Local W-38 with a term of 

January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2027 
 
INTRODUCED and PASSED by the City Council at its regular meeting on the 3rd of December 2024. 
 
 
 
 
                                                                          __________________________________ 
ATTEST:                                                                Mayor Onisko 
 
   
____________________________  
City Clerk Nault  
 
 
 



  
 
 
 

AGREEMENT 
By And Between 

The City of Shelton 

And The 

Shelton Police Guild 

January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2027 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Collective Bargaining Agreement  Page 2 of 24 
City of Shelton, Washington & Shelton Police Guild  
Rev 11-20-2024 
 

                                  Table of Contents  

Article 1 General 4 
 1.1 Purpose 4 
 1.2 Public Employees 4 
 1.3 Community Service 4 
Article 2 Recognition 4 
Article 3 Payroll and Paydays 4 
 3.1 Guild Membership 4 
 3.2 Payroll Deduction 5 
 3.3 Dues Cancellation 5 
 3.4 City Indemnification 5 
Article 4 Employees Elected as Guild Shop Stewards 5 
Article 5 Grievance  5 
 and Arbitration Procedures 5 
 5.1 Step 1 Immediate Supervisor 5 
 5.2 Step 2 Police Chief 5 
 5.3 Step 3 City Manager 6 
 5.4 Step 4 Arbitration 6 
 5.5 Decision Time Limits 6 
 5.6 Costs and Expenses 6 
 5.7 Time Limits 6 
Article 6 Prevailing Rights 7 
Article 7 Rule and Regulations 7 
Article 8 Management Rights 7 
 8.1 Management Rights 7 
Article 9 Anti-Strike 7 
Article 10 Wages and longevity 7 
 10.1 Wages 7 
 10.2 Longevity 8 
 10.3 Detectives Premium 8 
Article 11 Deferred Compensation Match 8 
Article 12 Hours of Work and Overtime 8 
 12.1 Work Week 8 
 12.2 Workday 8 
 12.3 Work Schedule 8 
 12.4 Shift Rotation 9 
 12.5 Establishing a New Shift/Workweek 9 
 12.6 Shift Assignment 9 
 12.7 Shift Start Changes 9 
 12.8 Three-hour Call Back Minimum 9 
 12.9 Compensatory Time 10 
 12.10 On Call Time 10 
 12.11 Labor-Management Committee 10 
Article 13 Educational Incentive 10 



 

Collective Bargaining Agreement  Page 3 of 24 
City of Shelton, Washington & Shelton Police Guild  
Rev 11-20-2024 
 

 13.1 Education Reimbursement 10 
 13.2 Education Premium 10 
Article 14 Court and Hearing Pay 10 
Article 15 Acting Supervisor 11 
Article 16 Instructor, Field Officer Training, & Officer In Charge Pay 11 
 16.1 Instructor’s Pay 11 

 
 16.2 Field Officer Training Pay 11 
 16.3 Officer In Charge Pay 11 
 16.4 Shift Differential Pay 11 
 16.5 Canine Officer 11 
 16.6 Bi-lingual 12 
Article 17 Sick Leave 12 
 17.1 Accumulation and Ceiling 12 
 17.2 Immediate Family 12 
 17.3 Qualifying Reasons to Use Sick 12 
 17.4 Sick Leave Buy Back 13 
 17.5 Light Duty Assignments 13 
 17.6 Sick Leave Buy Back at Retirement or Separation  13 
 17.7 Employee Verification 14 
 17.8 Washington Paid Family and Medical Leave  14 
Article 18 Health and Welfare 14 
 18.1 Dental Plan 14 
 18.2 Vision Plan 14 
 18.3 Modifications 14 
 18.4 Life Insurance 14 
 18.5 Disability Insurance 15 
Article 19 Personnel Reduction 15 
Article 20 Clothing Allowance 15 
 20.1 Uniforms 15 
 20.2 Protective Clothing and Devices 15 
 20.3 Training Ammunition 16 
 20.4 Equipment Repair and Replacement 16 
 20.5 Uniform Replacement 16 
 20.6 SWAT Assignment and Equipment 16 
Article 21 Holidays 16 
 21.2 Holiday Compensation 16 
Article 22 Vacation 17 
Article 23 Discipline and Discharge 17 
 23.1 Discipline 17 
 23.2 Oral Reprimands 17 
 23.3 Written Reprimands 17 
 23.4 Internal Investigation Procedures 18 
Article 24 Probationary Period 18 
Article 25 Guild Meetings 19 
Article 26 Matters Covered and Complete Agreement 19 



 

Collective Bargaining Agreement  Page 4 of 24 
City of Shelton, Washington & Shelton Police Guild  
Rev 11-20-2024 
 

Article 27 Savings Clause 20 
Article 28 Duration 20 
Appendix A Salary Schedule 21 
Appendix B Salary Schedule 22 
Appendix C Salary Schedule 23 

 

 

Appendix D Medical Contributions 24 
 

 

 

 

AGREEMENT 
BY AND BETWEEN 

CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON 
AND THE 

SHELTON POLICE GUILD 
 

1. General 

1.1. Purpose 
The City of Shelton, hereinafter referred to as the City, and the Shelton Police Guild, hereinafter 
referred to as the Guild, in order to increase general efficiency in the Police Department to maintain the 
existing harmonious relationship between the Police Department and its employees, and to promote 
morale, rights, and well-being of the members of the Police Department, hereby agree as follows: 

1.2 Public Employees 
The Police Department and the individual members of the Guild are to regard themselves as public 
employees and are to be governed by the highest ideals of the honor and integrity in all their public and 
personal conduct in order that they may merit the respect and confidence of the general public.  

1.3 Community Service 
The parties recognize the importance of the establishing and maintaining a good relationship with 
members of the local community and agree that mutual efforts to improve this relationship shall be a 
primary goal of the parities during the term of this Agreement.  

2. Recognition 
The City herby recognizes the Guild as the sole and exclusive representative of all full-time 
commissioned employees of the Police Department, with the exception of the Chief and Lieutenants, 
for the purposes of bargaining with respect to wages, hours of work and working conditions.  

 

 



 

Collective Bargaining Agreement  Page 5 of 24 
City of Shelton, Washington & Shelton Police Guild  
Rev 11-20-2024 
 

3. Payroll and Paydays 

3.1 Guild Membership 
All employees in the bargaining unit who are members of the Guild on the effective date of this 
Agreement shall, as a condition of employment, remain members in the Guild in good standing for the 
duration of this Agreement.  All new employees employed during the life of this Agreement shall, as a 
condition of employment, within thirty (30) days after the date of employment, become and remain 
members in good standing for the duration of the Agreement.  

3.2 Payroll Deduction 
The City agrees to the deduction of monthly dues and initiation fees as designated by the Guild for 
those employees in the bargaining unit who voluntarily elect to become members of the Guild. 

3.3 Dues Cancellation 
An employee may cancel their payroll deduction of dues and/or service fees by written notice to the City 
and the Guild. The cancellation will become effective on the first payroll after receipt of the written 
notice. 

3.4 City Indemnification 
The Guild shall indemnify the City against any and all claims, demands, suits or other forms of liability 
that shall arise out of or by reason of action taken or not taken by the City for the purpose of complying 
with any of the provisions of the payroll deductions.   

3.5 Direct Deposit and Paydays 

Guild employees are required to enroll in direct deposit with a financial institution of their choosing.   
 
Paydays are bi-monthly and shall be on the 10th and 25th of each month. If either date falls on a holiday 
or weekend, employees are paid on the preceding workday. 

4. Employees Elected As Guild Shop Stewards 
Employees elected as Guild Shop Stewards shall be granted (without pay) time to perform necessary 
collective bargaining functions, providing that this does not prevent the City from providing continued 
public service.  

5. Grievance and Arbitration Procedures 
A grievance means a claim or a dispute by an employee or the Guild with respects to the interpretation 
or application of the provisions of this Agreement.  

5.1 Step 1 Immediate Supervisor 
An employee or Guild Representative who believes that the terms and conditions of this Agreement 
have been violated shall first discuss the matter with his/her immediate supervisor within fifteen (15) 
business days of the date the action took place or within fifteen (15) business days of the date upon 
which the employee, by due diligence, could reasonably have been expected to know of such action, 
but in no event more than ninety (90) business days.  The immediate supervisor shall provide the 
employee with a written response within fourteen (14) business days of the date upon which the 
grievance was discussed with the employee.  



 

Collective Bargaining Agreement  Page 6 of 24 
City of Shelton, Washington & Shelton Police Guild  
Rev 11-20-2024 
 

5.2 Step 2 Police Chief 

If the grievance is not settled in Step 1, it shall be referred in writing to the Police Chief within ten (10) 
business days after the designated supervisor's answer in Step 1 and shall be signed by the employee 
or the Guild representative. Grievances arising from employee discipline shall be filed in writing starting 
at Step 2. The written grievance shall set forth the nature of the grievance, the facts on which it is 
based, the provision(s) of the Agreement allegedly violated, and the relief requested. The Police Chief 
shall discuss the grievance within ten (10) business days with the grievant and the Guild representative 
at a time mutually agreeable to the parties. If the grievance is settled as a result of such meeting, the 
settlement shall be reduced to writing and signed by the Police Chief and the Guild. If no settlement is 
reached, the Police Chief shall give the Department’s written answer to the Guild within ten (10) 
business days following their meeting. 

5.3 Step 3 City Manager  
If the employee or the Guild is not satisfied with the solution by the Police Chief, the grievance, in 
writing, together with all other pertinent materials, shall be presented to the City Manager by the Guild 
representative within ten (10) business days of the Police Chiefs decision. The City Manager shall 
attempt to resolve the grievance within ten (10) business days after it has been presented. 

In the case of disciplinary actions, both appealable to the Civil Service Commission and grievable under 
the terms of this contract, a written election of remedies shall be made after receipt of the Step 3 
response. An employee may elect to either pursue an appeal to the Civil Service Commission or 
continue with the contractual grievance procedure, but not both. Time limits will be extended for either 
side if necessary to complete a reasonable investigation before the election of remedies is made. 
Appeal for disciplinary actions shall proceed directly to the Civil Service Commission pursuant to the 
rules of the Commission or to Step 3 as provided in this Agreement. 

5.4 Step 4 Arbitration 
If the grievance is not resolved by the City Manager to the satisfaction of the Guild, the grievance may, 
within ten (10) business days, be referred to an arbitrator to be selected as follows:  The parties shall 
attempt to agree upon an arbitrator within five (5) business days after receipt of notice of intent to 
proceed to arbitration.  In the event the parties are unable to agree upon an arbitrator within the (5) day 
period, the parties shall jointly request the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service or the Public 
Employment Relations Commission to submit a panel of nine (9) Washington or Oregon arbitrators.  
After flipping a coin to determine which party goes first, the parties shall alternately eliminate the name 
of one person on the list until only one name remains.  The person whose name was not eliminated 
shall be the arbitrator.    

5.5 Decision and Time Limits 
The arbitrator shall have no authority to amend, modify, nullify, ignore, add to, or subtract from the 
provisions of this Agreement and shall hold a hearing so that both parties may present their respective 
cases.  The decision of the arbitrator shall be rendered within thirty (30) business days after the close of 
the hearing.  The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the parties to the grievance 
provided the decision does not involve action by the Employer which is beyond its jurisdiction.   



 

Collective Bargaining Agreement  Page 7 of 24 
City of Shelton, Washington & Shelton Police Guild  
Rev 11-20-2024 
 

5.6 Costs and Expenses 
The fee and expenses of the arbitrator and court reporter shall be shared by the parties. Each party 
shall be responsible for all costs arising from its own representatives, attorneys and witnesses. 

5.7 Time Limits 
Time limits referred to in the Article may be waived by mutual agreement in writing.  It is the intent of 
the parties that all procedures set forth herein shall be complied with as expeditiously as practicable. If 
the City does not timely respond during a grievance step, the grievance will advance to the next step in 
the grievance procedure, the grievance shall be considered abandoned, and the right is waived.  

 

6. Prevailing Rights 

All rights, privileges and working conditions held by the employee, which are mandatory subjects of 
bargaining, have been mutually accepted and adopted by the parties over a period of time, which are in 
effect at the time of the commencement of this Agreement, and which are not specifically referenced in 
any other clause of the Agreement, shall remain in effect during the period of the Agreement unless 
changed by mutual consent.   

7. Rules and Regulations 

The Guild agrees its members shall comply with all department rules and regulations, including 
those related to conduct and work performance.  

8. Management Rights  

Any and all rights concerned with the management and operation of the Police Department are 
exclusively that of the City unless otherwise specifically provided by the terms of this Agreement.  
The City has the right, among other actions, to adopt rules for the operation of the Department and 
conduct of the employees, to discipline, suspend, or discharge employees for the just cause, to 
assign work, determine job content and job duties of employees, and determine the number of 
personnel to be assigned duty at any time, to determine and introduce new methods of facilities to 
increase productivity, to determine the work and shift schedule, to establish performance standards 
and evaluations, to contract for goods and services for operation of the Department, and to perform 
all of the functions not otherwise expressly limited by this Agreement.  

9. Anti-Strike 
The services performed by City employees are essential to the public’s health, safety and welfare.  
Therefore, the Guild will not authorize, instigate, aid, condone, or engage in any strike, work stoppage 
or other action at any time, including upon termination of the Agreement, which will interrupt or interfere 
with the operation of the City.  No employee shall cause or take part in any strike, work stoppage, 
slowdown or other action which will interrupt or interfere with the operation of the City.  In the event of 
violation of this article, the Guild agrees to take affirmative steps with the employees concerned, such 
as letters, bulletins, telegrams and employee meetings to bring about an immediate resumption of 
normal work.  Should there be a violation of this article, there shall be no discussion or negotiations 
regarding the difference of dispute during the existence of such violation or before normal work has 
been resumed.  



 

Collective Bargaining Agreement  Page 8 of 24 
City of Shelton, Washington & Shelton Police Guild  
Rev 11-20-2024 
 

10. Wages and Longevity 

10.1 General Wage Adjustment 
Effective January 1, 2025, employees will receive a 5.0% (3.0% COLA, 2.0% Market) increase to their 
base wage. 

Effective January 1, 2026, employees will receive a 3.0% COLA increase to their base wage. 

Effective January 1, 2027, employees will receive a 3.0% COLA increase to their base wage. 

 

10.2 Longevity 
The City agrees to the following longevity pay scale which shall be added to the monthly salary of each 
employee eligible: 

Starting 5th Year $ 60.00 
Starting 7th Year $126.00 
Starting 10th year $150.00 
Starting 15th Year $250.00 
Starting 20th Year $300.00 

 

10.3 Detectives Premium 
Officers appointed to detective position for 30 consecutive calendar days shall receive one-half (1/2) 
the pay difference between first class patrol officer and sergeant.  

11. Deferred Compensation Match 
The Employer shall match employees’ six-point two percent (6.2) contribution into the City’s adopted 
deferred compensation program as follows:  for each dollar contributed by the employee, the Employer 
shall contribute dollar-for-dollar matching funds to a maximum of six-point two percent (6.2%) of the 
employee’s regular rate of pay.  The employee may contribute additional funds with no Employer match 
as determined or restricted by the adopted deferred compensation plan.   

12. Hours of Work and Overtime 

12.1 Work Week 
For the purposes of computing overtime, the work week shall be a calendar week (Sunday to 
Saturday).  

12.2 Workday/Work Schedule  
The Chief of Police and the Guild may agree upon an alternative normal workday which may include 
the following or combination thereof:  

 
• 10.67 hour patrol or specialty position shifts.  
• 8.5 hour patrol or specialty position shifts.  
• 8 hour patrol or specialty position shifts. 
• 10 hour patrol or specialty position shifts. 



 

Collective Bargaining Agreement  Page 9 of 24 
City of Shelton, Washington & Shelton Police Guild  
Rev 11-20-2024 
 

• 11 hour patrol or specialty position shifts. 
• 12 hour patrol or specialty position shifts. 

 
All workdays shall be incorporated into a work schedule that supports a standard 2080-hour work year 
and shall be in compliance with all state and federal labor laws.  Any time worked in excess of the 
scheduled and assigned workday shift shall be paid at the rate of time and one half.   

12.3 Work Schedule  
The normal patrol or specialty assignment work schedule shall consist of a combination of shifts 
described in section 12.2 and as agreed upon by the Chief of Police and Guild.  All work schedules 
will comply with state and federal labor laws and support the standard 2080-hour work year; which 
limits a normal work schedule to 86 hours during a 14-day work period.  Any employee short of the 
required 2080 hours worked in a calendar year shall make those hours up by the end of the payroll 
year.  It shall be at the discretion of the Chief of Police or a designee when hours are to be made 
up.  Each employee’s normal work schedule may change with each new shift/work schedule 
rotation.  Pursuant to Section 8.1, the Chief of Police has the discretion to determine the work and 
shift schedule to ensure the efficient operation of the Shelton Police Department at all times.  Prior 
to any permanent changes in work schedules or shift schedules, the Chief or representative shall 
meet with members of the Guild board to ensure that the change of schedule does not violate any 
agreed upon terms and complies with state and federal labor laws.  The schedule changes will 
allow at least 14 days’ notice to the affected employees.   

12.4 Shift Rotation  
Except under extenuating circumstances, regularly established shift changes are considered to 
occur not more frequently than once every three (3) months or less frequently than once every nine 
(9) months at the discretion of the Chief of Police, except however, the Chief of Police and Guild 
may agree upon a one (1) year shift term, which will not have any rotation of shifts during the 
course of the year.  

12.5 Establishing a New Shift/Workweek 
No employee shall be required to work back-to-back shifts when effectuating a shift change.  A 
minimum of eight (8) hours shall separate the shift change.  If an employee would otherwise be 
required to work back-to-back shifts for the purpose of establishing the new shift/workweek, the 
employee may be assigned to one shift of administrative leave to avoid a back-to-back shift.  When 
effectuating the shift/workweek change, an employee may be scheduled to work more than five (5) 
consecutive days.  In this case, for the purpose of establishing the new shift/workweek, the days 
worked beyond five (5) will be paid as overtime.  Alternatively, at the discretion of management, the 
employee may be assigned to one shift of administrative leave to break up the long week created by 
the establishment of a new shift/workweek.  If a shift of administrative leave is awarded, the remaining 
regularly scheduled shifts in the long week will be paid at the straight time rate.  When effectuating the 
shift/workweek change, an employee may work less than five (5) consecutive days without reductions 
to his or her normal salary. 

12.6 Shift Assignment 
When a shift assignment has been posted for a work month, it shall not be changed except  as the 
result of required staffing needs that could not reasonably be anticipated when the shift assignment 
was posted, or by mutual consent.  For purposes of this Article, a shift is the work period during the day 
(each 24-hour day) to which an employee is assigned; i.e. day, swing, graveyard or power shifts. 



 

Collective Bargaining Agreement  Page 10 of 24 
City of Shelton, Washington & Shelton Police Guild  
Rev 11-20-2024 
 

12.7 Shift Start Changes 
If an employee is called to report at any other time than their assigned shift start, they shall be paid time 
and one-half (1.5) for the hours called in early or notified to report late.  

12.8 Call Back Minimum 
If an employee is called in to work they shall be paid a minimum of three (3) hours at the overtime rate 
(time and one-half).  However, if the employee’s “on duty” time is within the three hours, the employee 
shall only be paid overtime for the period that would normally be “off-duty”.  An example would be; the 
employee is called in at 1:00 pm and their normal shift begins at 3:00 pm they shall be paid two hours 
overtime, the period before their normal duty start time.   

12.9 Compensatory Time 
Employees may request time off in lieu of cash overtime compensation.  Compensatory time off shall 
be earned at the rate of one and one-half (1.5) times the overtime hours worked.  Employees shall be 
allowed to use their accrued compensatory time off upon reasonable notice and consistent with the 
City’s reasonable operating needs.  Employees separating from City employment shall be paid for all 
accrued compensatory time off due the employee and based on the City’s records. The ultimate 
determination of whether compensatory time shall be allowed, or when it is taken, shall be made by the 
City. An employee may carry over up to eighty (80) hours per calendar year. Any compensatory time in 
excess of eighty (80) hours must be used or cashed out by November 30th of each year. 

12.10 On Call Time 
An employee shall be considered as being On-Call if he/she is required to remain at or near the Police 
Department and cannot use his or her time freely.  If an employee can come and go freely and is not 
restricted in their travel and other activities, even though they may be required to leave a telephone 
number where they can be reached or wear a pager, the employee shall not be considered as being 
On-Call.  An employee who is On-Call shall be compensated at their regular rate of pay for all hours 
deemed to be On-Call hours.  

12.11 Labor-Management Committee 
The Guild and the Employer agree to establish a Labor Management Committee that will meet 
quarterly.  If either the City or the Guild identifies problems within the application of changes to this 
Article, the parties agree to meet, discuss and study the matter (s) with the objective of achieving 
mutual resolution.  

13. Educational Incentives  

13.1 Educational Reimbursement  
Upon prior approval by the Chief of Police, an employee is eligible to receive reimbursement for tuition 
and required textbooks for up to an annual total of $2,500.  The employee must be enrolled in an 
approved, accredited college program, and attain a grade of “B” or better.  The educational 
reimbursement is available for the employee to obtain up to one associate’s, bachelor’s, and master’s 
degree while employed at the City.  

13.2 Educational Premium  
Employees covered under this Agreement may be eligible for educational incentive premium pay as 
part of their base wages upon application by the employee to the City and according to the following: 

• AA/AS Degree-(2) year degree-or the equivalent - two percent (2%) 
• BA/BS Degree-(4) year degree-or the equivalent - five percent (5%) 



 

Collective Bargaining Agreement  Page 11 of 24 
City of Shelton, Washington & Shelton Police Guild  
Rev 11-20-2024 
 

 
Employees claiming eligibility for educational incentive premium pay may be required to provide proof 
of such eligibility.  All credits or degrees claimed for educational incentive premium pay must be from 
an accredited institution.  The Chief of Police in his/her sole and absolute discretion shall determine if 
an employee’s educational credits qualify as being from an accredited and/or “equivalent” to an AA or 
BA degree. 

14. Court and Hearing Pay 
Off duty officers appearing at court or hearings as result of official duty shall receive a guaranteed three 
(3) hour pay at the time and one-half (1.5) rate and at a rate of time and one-half for any time 
thereafter.  If the court or hearing time falls on the employee’s day off, the employee shall be 
guaranteed three (3) hours pay at the time and one-half (1.5) rate and at a rate of time and one-half for 
any time thereafter.  The rate shall be based on each officer’s hourly rate of pay.  

15. Acting Supervisor 
Any employee appointed by the Chief to the position of acting supervisor (Lieutenant or Sergeant), that 
employee shall be paid at the appropriate rank rate they have been appointed to.    

16. Instructor, Field Officer Training, Officer in Charge, & Bilingual Pay 

16.1 Instructor’s Pay 
Departmental appointed instructors shall receive time and one-half (1.5) rate for all assigned hours of 
preparation and instruction time on off-duty time. 

16.2 Field Training Officer (FTO) Pay  
When an officer is mandated by the Chief of Police, or designee, to be a FTO for training a new officer 
shall be paid at the rate of five percent (5%) above the employee’s regular base rate of pay for each 
week that the employee performs field officer training duties.  No more than one trainer per trainee per 
week shall receive field officer training premium pay.  When a FTO position becomes vacant, the 
Employer shall circulate an announcement within the Department for a minimum of thirty (30) days; that 
shall identify the minimum requirements needed to apply for the training officer position. 

16.3 Officer in Charge Pay 
The Chief of Police will designate, at his/her discretion, an Officer In Charge (OIC) for a shift or shifts.  
The assignment is not a permanent assignment and is establishing only for the purpose of establishing 
lines of communication and decision making in the absence of senior ranking officers.  An OIC shall be 
paid at the rate of three percent (3%) above the employee’s base rate of pay for each month or portion 
of each month that the employee is assigned officer in charge duties.  It is not expected that there will 
be more than four OIC appointments in any one month. 

16.4 (a) Corporal 

The Police Chief will assign qualified officers to the position of Corporal who have a minimum of two (2) 
years’ experience as a full-time paid police officer and qualify under Civil Service  
Rule 7 Examinations.  Corporal pay shall be the base rate of their assigned position plus four percent 
(4%).  

16.5 Shift Differential Pay 
Patrol officers working the swing shift shall receive shift differential pay of two percent (2.0%) of their 
regular rate of pay for periods lasting five or more consecutive workdays. Swing shift is defined as 



 

Collective Bargaining Agreement  Page 12 of 24 
City of Shelton, Washington & Shelton Police Guild  
Rev 11-20-2024 
 

working the shift which will start in the period of time generally considered afternoon, through late 
evening (i.e. 1 pm until 9pm, 2pm until 10pm, 3 pm until 11 pm, 4pm until midnight, there is no swing 
shift incentive for a 3/12 schedule as the schedule will only be a day shift and a night shift).  Being “held 
over” for an emergency or an operation shall not constitute a “shift” which would require differential pay, 
unless it concurs as outlined further in the 5-day rule.  Patrol Officers working the graveyard shift shall 
receive shift differential pay of three percent (3%). Graveyard shall be defined as starting in the pm, and 
the shift shall continue through the night to finish in the am (for the purpose a 3/12 schedule it will 
include a shift such as 6 pm until 6 am)  

16.6 K-9 Officer 
An officer assigned to the K-9 unit shall be paid the base rate of their assigned position plus two 
percent (2.0%). The Police Chief maintains the discretion to assign and remove officers for these 
specialty assignments. Recognizing that the care and maintenance of a Police K-9 is an essential 
function and responsibility of a K-9 Officer, the Police Department and Police Guild agree that a specific 
understanding is necessary to avoid future confusion and ensure the viability of the program. Therefore, 
the following terms apply to the K-9 Officer position, 

• The K-9 Officer may remain on the current patrol schedule, which includes the ability to bid for 
shifts by seniority.  

• The Officer will be allotted five (5) hours per week for the general maintenance and care of the 
dog and program equipment; the compensation for this allotment will be in the first half hour and 
the last half hour of the assigned work shift; if working swing shift for example, the K-9 Officer 
will generally not be responsible to report for patrol duty until 1530 hours and will complete 
patrol responsibilities at 2300 hours.  

• The K-9 Officer is allowed to use any time worked for the general maintenance and the care of 
the dog and program equipment towards the 72-hour deficit bank, as per section 21.2.1 Wages. 

• The K-9 Officer is subject to callout for incidents reasonably related to this program; the Officer 
will be compensated in accordance with the current collective bargaining agreement for all 
callouts.  

• Required training to maintain certification of the program will, generally, be conducted on duty 
during hours which adequate shift coverage exists in the absence of the K-9 Officer; this training 
will be at the discretion of the shift supervisor; other, more specific training may be scheduled by 
the Patrol Lieutenant or designated Training Officer.   
 

16.7 Bilingual 
Officers who have proven bilingual competence, as determined by the Chief of Police, in a language 
the City deems beneficial to conducting City business shall receive a $175.00 monthly premium.  

17. Sick Leave and Paid Family Medical Leave 

17.1 Accumulation and Ceiling 
Employees shall be allowed to accumulate sick leave which shall be earned at the rate of eight hours 
per month worked for any month which the employee is compensated for fifty percent (50%) or more.  
The maximum amount of sick hours that an employee may accumulate is 960 hours. 

17.2 Immediate Family 
All employees of the Police Department shall be allowed up to five (5) days for death in the immediate 
family: sickness or emergency or other similar unforeseen circumstances in the immediate family which 



 

Collective Bargaining Agreement  Page 13 of 24 
City of Shelton, Washington & Shelton Police Guild  
Rev 11-20-2024 
 

requires the employee to attend to a family member at home. Said leave shall be charged against sick 
leave and shall be approved by the Chief of Police designee. 

Immediate family is defined in the City's Policy and Procedure Manual 200-1520  
 

17.3 Qualifying Reasons to Use Sick Leave 
A. Employee’s Health. An absence resulting from an employee’s mental or physical illness, 
injury, or health condition; to accommodate the employee's need for medical diagnosis, care, or 
treatment of a mental or physical illness, injury, or health condition; or an employee's need for 
preventive medical care. 

B. Family Member’s Health. To allow the employee to provide care for a family member with a 
mental or physical illness, Injury, or health condition; care of a family member who needs 
medical diagnosis, care, or treatment of a mental or physical illness, injury, or health condition; 
or care for a family member who needs preventive medical care. 

C. Health-Related Closure. When the employee's place of business has been closed by order 
of a public official for any health-related reason, or when an employee's child's school or place 
of care has been closed for such a reason. 

D. Domestic Violence-Related Activities. An employee is authorized to use paid sick leave for 
absences that qualify for leave under the domestic violence leave act, chapter 49.76 RCW. 

E. Definition of Family Member. For purposes of this Article, a “family member” means (i) a 
child, including a biological, adopted, or foster child, stepchild, or a child to whom the employee 
stands in loco parentis, is a legal guardian, or is a de facto parent, regardless of age or 
dependency status; (ii) a biological, adoptive, de facto, or foster parent, stepparent, or legal 
guardian of an employee or the employee's spouse or registered domestic partner, or a person 
who stood in loco parentis when the employee was a minor child; (iii) a spouse; (iv) a registered 
domestic partner; (v) a grandparent; (vf) a grandchild; or (vii) a sibling. 

17.4 Sick Leave Buy Back 
Once an employee has attained a minimum of 480 hours accumulated sick leave, the employee has 
the following options: 

1. He or she may accumulate any sick leave earned during the working year beginning on January 
1st and ending on December 31st of that year to a maximum accrual of 960 hours, or 

2. The employee may redeem the number of sick days accumulated during the working year at the 
rate of $100.00 per day or a maximum of $1,200.00 per year. 

Once an employee accumulates his or her sick leave earned the working year, those accumulated sick 
days shall become part of the total accumulated sick leave and cannot be redeemed at a later date, 
except at retirement.  

The employee shall notify the employer on or before December 1st of the current working year of his or 
her intent to accumulate or redeem the sick days earned that working year.  



 

Collective Bargaining Agreement  Page 14 of 24 
City of Shelton, Washington & Shelton Police Guild  
Rev 11-20-2024 
 

17.5 Light Duty Assignments 
An employee injured on the job may be provided a light-duty assignment when released to perform light 
duty by the employee’s health care provider, and when there is a light-duty assignment available, as 
determined by the Chief of Police.  Employees on light-duty assigned to the detective’s division will not 
receive detective premium while assigned.    

17.6 Sick Leave Buy Back at Retirement or Separation 
An employee may redeem one hundred percent (100%) of any accumulated sick days over a minimum 
of 480 hours to a maximum of 960 hours at a rate of $100.00 per eight (8) hours at the time of 
retirement or separation of employment.  If the termination is for just cause, the above redemption does 
not apply.  

17.7 Employee Verification 
The City may require verification from the employee for the qualifying reason(s) for using sick leave for 
any absence exceeding three (3) consecutive days. An employee may be disciplined, up to and 
including termination, for abusing the use of sick leave. 

17.8 Washington Paid Family and Medical Leave Program 
Consistent with Washington State Paid Family and Medical Leave (PFML), PFML leave will run 
concurrently with the federal Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) if both are applicable. 

A. Payroll Deductions. The PFML program is funded through premiums collected by 
Washington Employment Security Department (ESD) via payroll deductions and employer 
contributions. Each year, employees will pay through payroll deductions the full cost of the 
premiums associated with family leave benefits and their portion of medical leave benefits. 
Should the State modify PFML premiums or the percentage of premiums subject to collection 
through payroll deductions during the term of this Agreement, the City will modify payroll 
practices to reflect such statutory changes. 

B. Notification to the City. When applying to ESD, employees must also notify the City of the 
need for leave; employees should provide at least 30 days' advance notice of foreseeable leave 
and for unforeseeable leave notice should be given as soon as practicable. 

18. Health and Welfare  
The Employer will make available to all full-time employees and their enrolled dependents, a choice 
between three Association of Washington Cities health care plans:  (1) HealthFirst 250, (2) KP200, (3) a 
HealthFirst High Deductible plan, or 4) a Kaiser High Deductible plan. 
   
The City’s premium share for medical benefits is reflected in Appendix D. 
 

18.1 Dental Plan 
The City shall pay all premiums for dental insurance for employees and dependents through the 
Association of Washington Cities Dental Plan E.  

18.2 Vision Plan 
The Employer shall pay 100% of the employee, spouse and dependent premiums for the VSP vision 
care plan.   



 

Collective Bargaining Agreement  Page 15 of 24 
City of Shelton, Washington & Shelton Police Guild  
Rev 11-20-2024 
 

18.3 Modifications 
No changes in current medical, dental and vision insurance carriers shall be made without notifying and 
negotiating with the Guild.  Negotiations shall continue for a period of sixty days from the date of the 
first bargaining session or until impasse is reached, whichever occurs first, at which time the City may 
implement its proposal.  No changes in carriers may be made under the section unless the overall level 
of benefits under the new policy is comparable with the overall level of benefits provided under the 
plans specified in Section 17.1, provided that individual benefits may be identical.  

18.4 Life Insurance 
The City will provide, on behalf of each employee, a term-life insurance policy with a $100,000 benefit for 
the employee. The spouse of each employee is covered in the amount of $10,000, and each dependent 
child, shall be covered in the amount of $10,000. However, at no time shall the amounts provided violate 
the provision of RCW 48.24.030. The City shall pay the full premium cost for the above life insurance. 

18.5 Disability Insurance 
The City will administer, through payroll deduction, disability plan premiums as selected by employees.  

19. Personnel Reduction 

In the event of a reduction in personnel within the Police Department, the employee with the least 
seniority within the classification involved shall be laid-off first.  No new employee shall be hired for the 
same position within one (1) year of the separation of the laid-off employee during which time the laid-
off employee shall be given the opportunity to return to work.   

20. Clothing Allowance 

20.1 Uniforms 
All employees are responsible for purchasing required and authorized uniforms and equipment used in 
the day-to-day performance of their positions.  The City will provide an annual allowance of one 
thousand five hundred and fifty dollars ($1,550.00) for the purchase and care of authorized uniforms 
and equipment to all employees who have completed one year of employment.  The allowance shall be 
paid in two installments of seven hundred and seventy-five dollars ($775.00) each received in the 
January payroll and another seven hundred and seventy-five dollars ($775.00) received in the July 
payroll.   

20.1.1 
Officers who successfully complete a one-year introductory period after January’s disbursement of the 
uniform allowance shall receive their first seven hundred and seventy-five dollars ($775.00) installment 
with the payroll following their one-year anniversary date.  An officer, who successfully finishes a one-
year introductory period after July’s disbursement of the uniform allowance, shall receive the annual 
one thousand five hundred and fifty dollars ($1,550.00) installment with the payroll following their one-
year anniversary date.  Thereafter, the officer will receive the uniform allowance on the normal 
installment schedule. 

20.1.2  
Officers assigned to the detective division shall initially receive five hundred dollars ($500.00) for the 
purchase of clothing.  When reassigned to patrol, after serving two years as detective, officers shall 
receive five hundred dollars ($500.00) for the purchase of authorized uniforms and equipment related to 
their patrol duties. 



 

Collective Bargaining Agreement  Page 16 of 24 
City of Shelton, Washington & Shelton Police Guild  
Rev 11-20-2024 
 

20.1.3  
Newly hired employees shall be given a one-time allowance of one-thousand five hundred dollars 
($1,500.00) for the purchase of required and authorized uniforms and equipment.  Upon competition of 
one year of service, the employee shall be eligible to receive the annual allowance described in Section 
20.1 and 20.1.1 above. 

20.2 Protective Clothing and Devices 
Any protective clothing or devices required in the performance of the employee’s duties shall be 
furnished by the City, at no cost to the employee.  Items to be furnished are as follows: 

Firearms, protective ballistic vest (Threat level II per NIJ Standards), badges, duty ammunition, patches 
and pepper mace.  

20.3 Training Ammunition 
Sergeant, detectives and police officers shall be furnished training ammunition sufficient for firearms 
training as specified in the Shelton Police Department Standard Operating Procedures Manual.  

20.4 Equipment and Uniform Repair and Replacement 
The City shall be responsible for all repair and replacement of equipment described in Section 20.2 of 
this Article. Uniforms worn out through normal wear and tear shall be replaced by the employee.  
Uniforms damaged in the line of duty shall be replaced by the City, unless such damage was caused by 
the employee’s negligence.  Uniforms and personal equipment necessary to the Officer’s duties (i.e.. 
glasses, wristwatches) shall be replaced by the City if the damage is caused in the line of duty, unless 
such damage was caused by the employee’s negligence.  The City will pay replacement cost of the 
personal equipment, not to exceed $100 per item, with the exception of prescription glasses, which 
shall not exceed $200 per item.   

20.5 Uniform Replacement 
Uniforms worn out through normal wear and tear shall be replaced by the Employee.  Uniforms 
damaged in the line of duty shall be replaced by the City, unless such damage was caused by the 
employee’s negligence.  

20.6 SWAT Assignment and Equipment 
Officers assigned to the SWAT team, upon appointment, will receive up to an initial sum of one 
thousand five hundred dollars ($1,500.00) for required equipment and clothing, excluding firearms and 
ammunition. On an annual basis, officers assigned to the SWAT team will receive five hundred 
($500.00) for the purchase of authorized uniforms and equipment. The amounts identified are over and 
above Article 20 clothing Allowance. 

21. Holidays 

Each employee who works on any holiday as referred to in City of Shelton Policy 200-1503 shall be 
paid at their regular pay rate plus one and one-half times their regular pay rate, for a total of two and 
one-half times their regular pay rate. Officers may elect to accrue an equal amount of holiday time in 
lieu of the one-and one-half times pay. In no case, however, shall the employee be allowed to 
accumulate a holiday bank in excess of hold more than 72 hours. In addition, it is agreed that each 



 

Collective Bargaining Agreement  Page 17 of 24 
City of Shelton, Washington & Shelton Police Guild  
Rev 11-20-2024 
 

employee shall receive two floating holidays each calendar year, which must be used or forfeited before 
December 31st of that calendar year. 

21.2 Holiday Compensation 
Officers shall be compensated for holidays in the following manner: 

21.2.1 Wages 

Officers who are on a scheduled day off on a holiday shall be paid for eight (8) hours at the 
employee's regular rate of pay or elect to accrue eight (8) hours of holiday time in lieu of receiving 
the eight (8) hours at the employee’s regular pay rate.  

Officers who are scheduled to work on a shift that begins on the actual holiday, as provided in 
Policy 200-1503, will receive their regular pay rate plus one and one-half times their regular pay 
rate, for a total of two and one-half times their regular pay rate. Officers may elect to accrue an 
equal amount of holiday time in lieu of the one and one-half times pay. If an officer is required to 
work more hours than their regularly scheduled work shift, or called in on a scheduled day off, 
those hours will be compensated at the holiday rate of pay, which is a total of two and one-half 
times (2.5X) their regular rate of pay (regular pay plus one and one-half (1.5X) of regular rate of 
pay). Under no circumstances will an officer's compensation exceed two and one-half times (2.5x) 
the officer's regular pay rate or will the employee be allowed to accumulate a holiday bank in 
excess of 72 hours.  

22. Vacation 
 

All full-time employees shall earn vacation leave as follows: 

Years of Service Hours Per Month Hours Per Year 

0 through 5 10 Hours 120 hours 
Beginning 6 
through 10 14 Hours 168 hours 
Beginning 11 
through 15 18 Hours 216 hours 

 Beginning 16+  
22 Hours 

 
264 hours 

 
Employees will receive vacation leave accruals equally distributed among each payroll period. 

 
22.1  
Employees may carry unused vacation time forward to the next calendar year. Employees shall be 
allowed to accrue their vacation time up to a maximum "cap" of two times (2x) of the employee’s 
current accrual rate (e.g., an employee accruing 18 hours per month (216 hours per year) is subject to 
a 432-hour accrual cap). Any hours accrued over the "cap" shall be forfeited by the employee. It shall 
be the sole responsibility of the employee to assure that their vacation accrual does not exceed the 
"cap" amount. 



 

Collective Bargaining Agreement  Page 18 of 24 
City of Shelton, Washington & Shelton Police Guild  
Rev 11-20-2024 
 

23. Discipline and Discharge 

23.1 Discipline 
Discipline shall be limited to oral reprimand, written reprimand, suspension (with or without pay), 
demotion, and discharge.  Notice of disciplinary action (other than oral reprimand) shall be in writing 
with a copy to the employee and the employee’s personnel file.  No employee shall be disciplined or 
discharged without just cause. 

23.2 Oral Reprimands 
Oral Reprimands are not grievable but may be challenged to support a case against the employee in 
more serious discipline or a subsequent arbitration hearing. In responding to a documented oral 
reprimand, employees may write their own explanation of events and attach that explanation to the 
documented oral reprimand in their personnel file. Discipline records will be retained consistent with 
state law and regulations. Issues of egregious misconduct or moral turpitude may be appealed through 
the grievance procedure. 

23.3 Written Reprimands 
Written reprimands are subject to this Agreement’s grievance procedure through Step 3 (City Manager) 
but are not subject to Step 4 (Arbitration). The City Manager’s determination shall be final. The 
employee may elect to submit a rebuttal statement to attach to the written reprimand. 

23.4 Internal Investigations Procedures 
Before implementing changes in any internal investigation procedures, the changes will be submitted to 
the Guild for input.  The ultimate determination of whether any changes will be made shall remain with 
the City. 

24. Probationary Period 
All new employees, including rehire, transfer and promotional employees shall be considered as 
probationary employees and must successfully complete a probationary period before attaining 
permanent employee status. 

A. Newly Hired, Rehired Employees and Lateral Transfer Employees (Employees Hired From 
Other Agencies) 

Each newly hired or rehired employee, or lateral transfer employee becomes a probationary 
employee upon the date of their employment and remains so until they have successfully 
completed their required probationary period.  Probationary period shall be as follows: 

• Rehired and lateral transfer employees - twelve (12) months from date of hire.  
• Newly hired employees - twelve (12) months following graduation from the police 

academy 
The probationary period required above represents a total cumulative service time, and they 
may be adjusted upward so as to properly allow for any authorized leaves of absence or other 
approved breaks in service in excess of thirty (30) days. 

The probationary period may be extended for the conditions listed below.  In case of extension, 
the employee shall be notified in writing of the reasons for the extension.  Minor absences due 
to vacations, annual military leave, illnesses, etc., shall not be construed as interrupting the 
probationary period unless the absence or absences exceed more than thirty (30) days.  The 
following circumstances shall be the exclusive reasons for an extension: 



 

Collective Bargaining Agreement  Page 19 of 24 
City of Shelton, Washington & Shelton Police Guild  
Rev 11-20-2024 
 

 
a. Military service on an extended basis (more than thirty (30) days.) 
b. Illnesses greater than thirty (30) days. 
c. Service in another class greater than thirty (30) days. 
d. Disability of more than thirty (30) days. 
e. Layoff because of lack of work or funds of more than thirty (30) days. 
f. Extended schooling in excess of thirty (30) days not including Basic Police Academy 

training. 
g. Any combination of the above which exceeds thirty (30) days. 
h. Any other extension mutually agreed in writing between the City and the Guild. 

 

During the probationary period, the probationary employee may be discharged without cause 
and such discharge shall be at the sole discretion of the City and shall not be subject to 
grievance.  Furthermore, the City shall not, in the case of discharge, place any adverse material 
in the employee's personnel file and the sole reason for termination recorded by the City shall 
be failure to pass probation.  However, if material may lead to a claim loss against the City, the 
City shall notify the employee and the Guild of its intent to maintain such material and shall 
release said material in the event of a properly filed claim and/or lawsuit against the City. 

There shall be no seniority among probationary employees.  After the successful completion of 
the probationary period, the employee shall attain permanent employee status and receive all 
benefits normally afforded to regular permanent employees, including seniority.  Employees 
shall acquire seniority credit, and their seniority shall be retroactive to the date of employment. 

B. Promoted Employees and Intra-Department Transferred Employees. 

Transferred and promoted Employees - One (1) year.  The probationary period required above 
represents a total accumulative service time and may be adjusted upward so as to allow for any 
authorized leave of absence or other approved breaks in service as enumerated in Article 23.  
Should any such leave or break in service be greater than fifteen (15) days, the City may require 
the entire probationary period be restarted at the time the employee returns to work. 

If the probationary employee fails to demonstrate he or she can satisfactorily perform the job 
within the probationary period, the City may at its discretion return the employee to his or her 
former position classification; without any loss in seniority.  Any other employees who are 
transferred or promoted following and as a result of this employee's transfer or promotion shall 
also be returned to their former positions. 

25. Guild Meetings 
On Duty employees in attendance at a Guild meeting shall be paid for the time at the Guild meeting and 
further shall be subject to call back to duty. 

26. Matters Covered and Compete Agreement 
All matters not specifically covered in this Agreement shall be deemed to have been raised and 
disposed of as if specifically covered herein.  It is agreed that this document contains the full and 
complete Agreement on all bargainable issues between the parties hereto and for all for whose benefit 
this Agreement is made, and no party shall be required during the term of this Agreement to negotiate 
or bargain upon any issue unless required by change of law. 



 

Collective Bargaining Agreement  Page 20 of 24 
City of Shelton, Washington & Shelton Police Guild  
Rev 11-20-2024 
 

27. Savings Clause 
If any provision(s) of this Agreement and/or its Appendices is subsequently declared by legislative or 
judicial authority to be unlawful, unenforceable or not in accordance with applicable laws, statutes, or 
regulations of the United States of America, the State of Washington, and the City of Shelton, all other 
provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect for the duration of the Agreement, and 
the parties shall beet within thirty (30) days to negotiate in good faith for a substitute provisions(s). 

28. Duration 
This Agreement shall be in effect January 1, 2025, and shall remain in full force and effect until 
December 31, 2027.  Either party wishing to amend or modify such Agreement must notify the other 
party in writing no sooner than six (6) months, nor later than sixty (60) days prior to the expiration date 
of this Agreement.  Within ten (10) days of receipt of such notification by either party, a conference shall 
be held between the City and the Guild negotiating committee for the purpose of such amendment and 
modification. 

 

 

 

____________________________ 

POLICE GUILD 

Date ________________________ 

 

 

____________________________ 

POLICE CHIEF 

Date ________________________ 

 

 

____________________________ 

CITY MANAGER 

Date ________________________ 

  



 

Collective Bargaining Agreement  Page 21 of 24 
City of Shelton, Washington & Shelton Police Guild  
Rev 11-20-2024 
 

 

 

Appendix A 
 

  

Effective with the January 1, 2025, payroll, the officer’s salaries shall be as follows: 

Classification  
Detective – Sergeant $9,429.06 
Sergeant $8,910.92 
Corporal - Detective $8,728.51 
Detective $8,392.80 
Corporal - Officer $8,189.63 
First Class Officer $7,874.66 
Second Class Officer $7,564.78 
Third Class Officer $7,305.28 
Rookie $6,801.75 

 
 

  



 

Collective Bargaining Agreement  Page 22 of 24 
City of Shelton, Washington & Shelton Police Guild  
Rev 11-20-2024 
 

 

 

 

Appendix B 
 

Effective with the January 1, 2026, payroll, the officer’s salaries shall be as follows: 

 

 

  

Classification  
Detective – Sergeant $9,711.93 
Sergeant $9,178.25 
Corporal - Detective $8,990.37 
Detective $8,644.58 
Corporal - Officer $8,435.32 
First Class Officer $8,110.90 
Second Class Officer $7,791.72 
Third Class Officer $7,524.44 
Rookie $7,005.81 

 



 

Collective Bargaining Agreement  Page 23 of 24 
City of Shelton, Washington & Shelton Police Guild  
Rev 11-20-2024 
 

 

 

 

Appendix C 
 

Effective with the January 1, 2027, payroll, the officer’s salaries shall be as follows:  

Classification  
Detective – Sergeant $10,003.29 
Sergeant $9,453.59 
Corporal - Detective $9,260.08 
Detective $8,903.92 
Corporal - Officer $8,688.38 
First Class Officer $8,354.23 
Second Class Officer $8,025.47 
Third Class Officer $7,750.17 
Rookie $7,215.98 

 

 

  



 

Collective Bargaining Agreement  Page 24 of 24 
City of Shelton, Washington & Shelton Police Guild  
Rev 11-20-2024 
 

 

 

Appendix D  
 

1.1 Effective with the January 2025 payroll, based on the employee and their dependents’ medical 
insurance enrollment, the Employer shall contribute a flat dollar amount of up to one thousand nine 
hundred dollars ($1,900) per month toward the cost of medical insurance.  
 
1.2 Any remaining balance between the $1,900 and the actual cost of medical insurance for an 
employee and the employee’s enrolled dependents shall be paid by the employee. 
 
1.3 The City agrees to pay the sum of two hundred and fifty dollars ($250.00) per month into a Health 
Reimbursement Account (HRA) for the benefit of all Guild members. 
 
1.4 Employees who choose a High Deductible plan may request that the City contribute 100% of the 
savings to the City between HealthFirst 250 and the High Deductible plan into a Health Savings Account 
(HSA). 
 
1.5 In no case shall the monthly total contribution the City will pay for medical premiums and an HRA 
exceed $1,950.   
 

Health & Welfare Insurance Coverage 

2025: Medical expenses of $1,900 plus the HRA amount cannot exceed $1,950 

2026: Medical expenses of $1,950 plus the HRA amount cannot exceed $2,200 

2027: Medical expenses of $2,000 plus the HRA amount cannot exceed $2,250 

 

 



AGREEMENT

BYAND BETWEEN

CITY OF SHELTON

AND

REPRESENTING ALL FULL-TIME AND PART.TIME EMPLOYEES IN THE PUBLIC
WORKS and PARKS DEPARTMENT, EXCLUDING SUPERVISORS,
PROFESSIONAL, CONFIDENTIAL, AND CLERICAL EMPLOYEES

JANUARY 1, 2025 THROUGH DECEMBER 31,2025

PAGE I of 27 and
APPENDIX - A, B. C, and D

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF SHELTON
AND THE SHELTON EMPLOYEES GUILD

SHELTON EMPLOYEES GUILD



TABLE OF CONTENTS

DEFINITIONS.

PREAMBLE....

ARTICLE 1 RECOGNITION.....

ARTICLE 2 PAYROLL DEDUCTION AND GUILD MEMBERSHIP

ARTICLE 3 STANDING COMMITTEE

ARTICLE 4 SAFEry COMMIT"TEE..

ARTICLE5 GRIEVANCEPROCEDURE

ARTICLE 6 HOURS OF WORK/OVERTIME.

ARTICLE 7 VACATIONS

ARTICLE 8 HOLIDAYS .....

ARTICLE9 SENIORITY...........

ARTICLE IO WAGES AND CLASSIFICATIONS

ARTICLE I2 DIRECTDEPOSITANDPAYDAYS,........

ARTICLE I3 SICK LEAVE AND PAID FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE

ARTICLE I4 GROUP MEDICAL, DENTAL, AND VISION INSURANCE

ARTICLE 15 LIFE INSURANCE ........................

ARTICLE I6 DISABILIry INSURANCE...

ARTICLE I7 CALLBACK

ARTICLE 18 MEAL STIPEND

ARTICLE 19 JURY DUTY PAY

ARTICLE 20 WORK RELATED CLOTHING...

ARTICLE 2I SAVINGS CLAUSE...............

J

4

4

4

5

5

5

6

8

9

l0

.12

.12

.. 16

13

15

16

16

16

17

t7

t7

17

l8

l8
18

19

19

t9

19

20

21

ARTICLE 22

ARTICLE 23

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS..........................

NOTICE OF DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE.......

ARTICLE24 NON.DISCRIMINATION

ARTICLE25 MANAGEMENTRIGHTS..........

ARTICLE 26 CUILD RIGHTS........

ARTICLE 27 NO STRIKE-NO LOCKOUT.......

ARTICLE 28 EMERGENCY COOPERATION

ARTICLE29 DEFERREDCOMPENSATION.............

ARTICLE 30 LIFE OF AGREEMENT

APPENDIX A - 2025 Wages......................

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF SHELTON
AND THE SHELTON EMPLOYEES GUILD

PAGE 2 of 27 and
APPENOIX - A, B, C, and D



APPENDIX B - WWTP Technician Training Program...

DEFINITIONS

24

As used herein, the following terms are defined as follows:

"Employer, means the City of Shelton, Washingtoh

"Union" or "Guild" means Shelton Employees Guild

"Employee" means a regular full-time or part-time employee in the bargaining unit
covered by the Agreement. Benefits for part-time employees are prorated dependent
upon the part{ime employee's FTE status.

"Bargaining unit" as used herein shall include regular full-time and part{ime
employees as set forth in the pay scale of this Agreement.

"Superviso(s)' means Department Heads, Superintendent, or management level
Non-Bargaining unit employees.

"Transfe/ or "Lateral" means moving within the same job classification or a position
in the same grade.

"Lower-Grade Transfed or "Non-Disciplinary Demotion" means moving to a position
in a lower grade within the bargaining unit for non-disciplinary reasons.

'Bid" means to apply for an open position by way of submitting a cunent resume,
current completed City of Shelton employment application, as well as a letter of
interest.

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF SHELTON
ANO THE SHELTON EMPLOYEES GUILD

PAGE 3 of 27 and
APPENOIX - A. B. C. and D

"Promotion" means to move up at least one classification (higher grade) with the
Bargaining Unit, however, it does not mean to receive a step increase within a
classification.



PREAMBLE

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between, the CITY OF SHELTON, hereinafter

knownis the "Employer," and the Shelton Employees Guild, hereinafter known as the "Guild."

It is the purpose of this Agreemenl to achieve and maintain harmonious relations between the
Employer and the Guild, to provide for equitable and peaceful adjustments of differences, which

may arise, and to establish proper standards of wages, hours, and other conditions of
employment.

lndividual members of the Guild are to regard themselves as public employees and are to be
governed by the highest ideals of honor and integrity in order that they maymerit the respect and

confidence of the general public. The Employer recognizes that Public Employees Relations

Commission, hereinafter know as PERC, certified this membership in 2012-

ARTICLE ,1 RECOGNITION

1.1 The Employer remgnizes the Guild as the sole and exclusive bargaining agenry for all regular
full-time and part time employees of the Department of Public Works and Parks Department,

excluding supeMsors, professionals, and confidential and clerical employees.

ARTICLE 2 PAYROLL DEDUCTION AND GUILD MEMBERSHIP

2.1 All employees in the bargaining unit have a voluntiary right to join the Guild, including the
payment of monthly Guild dues and fees as specffied below. Employees with questions about

Guito memberstrip will be refened to a Guild representative (e.9., Guild President, shop

steward, etc.) and provided with a copy of this Agreement.

2.2 The Employer agrees that, upon written authorization of any employee who is a member of the
Bargaining Unit, demonstrating the employee voluntiarily agrees to join the Guild, the Employer
shai deduct ftom the pay of said employee the monthly amount of dues and initiation fee, as

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF SHELTON
ANO THE SHELTON EMPLOYEES GUILD

PAGE 4 of 27 and
APPENDIX - A, B, C, and D

AGREEMENT

BYAND BETWEEN

CITY OF SHELTON

AND

SHELTON EMPLOYEES GUILD

REPRESENTING ALL FULL.TIME AND PART.TIME EMPLOYEES IN THE PUBLIC WORKS
and PARKS DEPARTMENTS, EXCLUDING SUPERVISORS, PROFESSIONALS' AND

CONFIDENTIAL AND CLERICAL EMPLOYEES

JANUARY 1, 2025 THROUGH DECEMBER 31,2025



2.3

certified by the Guild. lf the employee wishes to cancel the written authorization for dues
deduction, hdshe must notify the Guild in writing. The Guild shall notiry the Employer of the
same and instruct the Employer to discontinue the deduction no later than he second payroll

after the written notification is provided. The Guild agrees to indemnifo, defend, and hold the
City harmless for any liabilities that arise through the Citys compliance with the terms of this
paragraph.

The City will notify the Guild of newly-hired bargaining unit employees. The Guild shall be
provided thirty (30) minutes during each newly-hired employee's regular working hours for
purposes of presenting information about the bargaining unit and membership in the Guild
("Guild orientation"). During Guild orientation, the Guild agrees to provide newly- hired

employees with a copy of this Agreement. One (1 ) employee acting in the capacity of a Guild
representative will be provided paid time to conduct the Guild orientation. Guild orientation shall
generally occur during the City's new-hire onboarding process, but in no instance any later than

ninety (90) calendar days after the first day of employment. Aftendance at Guild orientation by
a new-hired employee ls voluntary and is not a mandatory condition of employnent.

ARTICLE 3 STANDING COMMITTEE

3.1 The Guild shall elect up to four (4) members to a Standing Committee to meet with the
Employer, of which any three (3) can act. ln conducting Labor Negotiations up to three
employees may attend without loss of pay. The Employer shall have one (1) or more
membe(s) on the Standing Commiftee to act for the City of Shelton. The Guild shall notiry the
Employer of its members and of any changes. The committee may bring in anyone they wish

to assist them.

ARTICLE 4 SAFETY COMMITTEE

4.1 The Guild and the Employer agree to maintain a Safety Committee in compliance with federal

and state law (WAC 296-800-130)

ARTICLE 5 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

5.1 A grievance shall be defined as a disagreement as to the interpretation or application of the

express provisions of this Agreement. No grievance shall be entertained or processed unless

it is submitted in writing wittrin fifteen (15) business days after the occunence of the event giving

rise to the grievance or within fifteen (15) business days after the employee or the Guild has

obtained or should have obtained knowledge of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the
grievance. ln no event will a grievance be entertained or prccessed unless it is received within

75 business days of the event giving rise to the grievance.

5.2 For purposes of this Grievance Procedure, the term "business days" shall mean those days

the City of Shelton has offces open to the public, exclusive of emergency service departments.

For each step of the grievance procedure below, the party responding to the grievance shall
provide the other party a wriften response with findings. Each written response shall be
provided within the timeframe of each grievance step. For example, if the Guild timely submits
a Step 2 grievance, the City has seven (7) business days to submit a written response. lf the
Guild is not satisfied with the wriften response, it will have seven (7) business days ftom receipt

of the written response to submit a Step 3 grievance.

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF SHELTON
AND THE SHELTON EMPLOYEES GUILD

PAGE 5 of 27 and
APPENDIX _ A, B, C, and O



5.3 STEP 1 - The employee or the Shop Steward shall bring their grievance to the aftention of
the supervisor, who will lnvestigate the cause of the mmplaint and work with the employee(s)
to effectuate an equitable solution. The grievance shall identify the occunence(s), issue(s) in

dispute, terms of the Agreement alleged to be violated, and the remedy requested. Every efiort
shall be made to resolve the dispute at this level.

5.4 STEP 2 - lf an equitable solution is not reached at the expiration of seven (7) business days,
the grievant may appeal to the Director of the Department, who shall promptly meet with the
Guild Standing Commiftee to aftempt to resolve the grievance.

5.5 STEP 3 - lf an equitable solution is not reached at the expiration of seven (7) business days,
the grievant may appeal to the City Manager. Requests shall be made in writing, and mailed
or delivered to the City Manager detailing the grievance.

5.6 STEP 4 - lf the grievan@ is not resolved by the City Manager, the grievance may, within ten
(10) business days, be refened to an arbitrator to be selected as follows:

5.6.1 The Guild shall file a request to the Public Employment Relations Commission for assignment
of an arbitator ftom the Commission's staff (WAC 391-6$070).

5.7

5.8

5.9

DECISION - The Arbitrator shall have no authority to amend, modify, nullify' add to, or
subtract from the provisions of this Agreement and shall hold a hearing so that both parties

may present their respective cases. The decision of the Arbitrator shall be rendered within thirty
(30) calendar days afier the close of the hearing. The decision of the Arbitrator shall be final

and binding upon the parties to the grievance provided the decision does not involve action by
the Employer which is be)rond its jurisdiction.

COSTS AND EXPENSES - The fees and expenses of the Arbitrator and the cost of a wriften

transcript for the Arbitrator, if prepared, shall be diMded equally between the Guild and the

Employer. Each party shall be responsible for compensating its own representatives, attomeys
and witnesses, and purchasing its own copy of any written transcript.

TIME LIMITS - Time limib refened to in this Article may be waived only by mutual agreement
in writing. lt is the intent of the parties that all procedures set forth herein shall be complied wittt

as expeditiously as practicable. lf the Guild does not timely advance the grievance to the next

step, any remedy awarded (e.g., backpay) ftom such grievance shall exclude the untimely time
period.

ARTICLE 6 HOURS OF WORI(OVERTIME

6.1 ALL DEPARTMENTS - For most bargaining unit positions, the work schedule shall generally

consist of five (5) eight (8) hour days, four (4) ten (10) hour days, or an altemative work

schedule. Except for Wastewater Treatment Plant employees, all scheduled work weeks shall

include a minimum of two (2) consecutive days ofi. At the discretion of the Director of the

Department, an aftemate work schedule may be established as appropriate to the needs oJthe

Employer. Vvhen possible the Employer will provide advance notice to the employee of any

changes in work schedule.

Scheduled overtime Assignments: The Employer shall assign scheduled overtime work to6.2

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF SHELTON
ANO THE SHELTON EMPLOYEES GUTLD

PAGE 6 of 27 and
APPENDIX - A, B, C, and D



6.3

6.4

6.5

employees that are available and qualified to perform the work. All work performed in excess
of the regulady scheduled work day or in excess of fory (zlo) hours per week, not in mnjunction
with the regular shift, shall be paid at the minimum of two hours at the overtime rate of one'
andonehalf (1 .5X) times the regular rate of pay.

Employees assigned to work at the Wastewater Treatment Plant may be assigned to a regular
schedule consisting of four (4) hours on Saturday, four (4) hours on Sunday, four (4) eight (8)

hour days on Monday through Thursday inclusive, and Friday off. Weekend on-call shift hours
are paid at the regular hourly rate.

Example 1: An employee scheduled to work five (5) eight (8) hour days, they may work
Monday through Friday, 7:30 AM to 4:00 PM, with the on-call shift being four hours on
Saturday, four hours on Sunday, with the following Friday off.

Example 2: An employee scheduled to work four (4) ten (10) hour days, they may work
Monday through Thursday 7:00 AM to 5:30 PM with the on-call shifl being four hours on
Friday, three hours on Saturday, three hours on Sunday, with the following Thursday off.

6.3.1 WWTP EMPLOYEE ON-CALL DUTIES: On-call shifts occur on a 24-hour basis,
from 12:00 AM through 1 1 :59 PM, and will be equitably divided among all eligible
WWTP employees. On-call employees will receive an on-call premium of $40.00
per day.

6.3.2 Cell phone-initiated changes to SCADA and conesponding overtime is limited to
those employees who are regularly scheduled to be on-call or during their regularly
scheduled working hours. Except however, in the event the on-call Operator ls nol
able to make the necessary process changes, either due to not having the
appropriate certifications, or unavailability to make such changes, the Operator
making the changes will be compensated the appropriate overtime pay dependent
on whether the SCADA changes were made remotely or in person. ln such case,
compensation for SCADA changes made remotely via mobile phone will 0.5 hours
(30 minutes) of overtime; compensation for SCADA changes in person will be 3.0
hours of overtime.

6.3.3 Regardless of the foregoing, Operators must be a certified Tech lll in order to make
process changes, or work under direct supervision of a Tech lll, authorized to
make such changes.

COMPENSATORY TIME - \Mth the written authorization of the Superintendent or designee,

an emplo)ree may accrue up to 80 hours of mmpensatory time during the calendar year in lieu

of paid overtime. compensatory time may be used in the same manner as vacation time. At
the end of each calendar year, the city will cash out any compensatory time that is more than

one (1) year old as of December 31st.

NON-VyWTP EMPLOYEE ON-CALL DUTIES - The City shall establish an on-call rotration for
all qualified employees occupying positions at the level of Operator and above (e.9., Operator,

Field Supervisor, Assistrant Field Supervisor, etc.). This on-call rotration is separate ftom the on-

call rotation applicable to WWTP employees. On-call duty includes all hours outside of the

COLLECTIVE SARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF SHELTON
AND THE SHELTON EMPLOYEES GUILD

PAGE 7 of 27 and
APPENDIX - A, B, C, and O



Citys regular business hours, including 24 hours per day on weekends and holidays. On-call
employees will receive an on-call premium of $40.00 per day. At the option of the City, qualified

employees who are placed on the on-call rotation shall be provided either a City-issued
cellphone or monthly cellphone allowance per City Policy 200-1610, with employees following
lhe terms of the policy. Employees placed on- call will follow the terms of the City's on-call

PolicY.

b.b SUMMER SCHEDULE - From spring to fail of each year of this Agreement, employees
may be eligible to work a ten (10) hour shift four (4) days per work week, as determined
on a case-by- case basis by management, based on operational needs, with at least ten
(10) business days of notification by the City, or as soon as practicable.

A goal of the 4/10 Summer Schedule is to proMde employees with three (3) consecutive days
off per week. ltems such as special projects, employee vacations, and community festivals
may modify the days worked each week. Management reserves the right to schedule the
working days for each employee, but guarantee a minimum of two (2) consecutive days off per

work week, per Section 6.1.

Years of Service
0 throuqh 5 10 Hours 120 hours
Beginning 6 through 10 14 Hours
Beqinninq 11 through 15 18 Hours
Beginning 16+ 22 Hours

7.2 Vacation leave shall generally be requested two (2) weeks in advance of the @mmencement
of leave. Vacation leave shall be approved and authorized by the Superintendent or designee

so long as the request does not unduly interfere with operations.

lf an employee has no sick leave accrued and is sick, they may opt to take vacation time
accrued before taking unpaid leave.

7.4 Where employrnent @mmences on or before the fifteenth day of any month, vacation leave

shall accrue as ofthe first day of such month;where employmenl commences after the fifteenth

day of any month, vacation leave shall accrue as of the first day of the following month.

Vacation shall accrue and accumulate except during an unpaid leave of absence greater than
30 days. Accrued vacation is posted and available for use on a monthly basis. lf an employee
has more than 10 hours of leave without pay ln any given month vacation accruals will be prG'

rated.

7.5

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF SHELTON
AND THE SHELTON EMPLOYEES GUILO

PAGE E of 27 and
APPENDIX - A, B, C, and D

ARTICLE 7 VACATIONS

7.'l Vacations are authorized for all regular full-time employees shall accrue monthly, as follows:

lHours Per Month lHours Per Year

h68 hours
]210 hours

i264 hours

Vacations are also authorized for all regular part-time employees on a pro-rated basis.
Vacation time off is paid at the employee's base pay rate at the time of vacation.

7.3



Employees may carry unused vacation time forward to the ne)d calendar year. Employees shall
be allowed to accrue their vacation time up to a maximum 'cap" of two times (2x) of the
employee's cunent accrual rate (e.9., an employee accruing 18 hours per month (216 hours
per yea0 is subject to a 432-hour accrual cap). Any hours accrued over the 'cap" shall be
forfeited by the employee. lt shall be the sole responsibility of the employee to assure that their
vacation accrual does not exceed the "cap" amount.

Any vacation accrual over the "cap" shall only be allowed under the most critically extenuating
circumstances, which shall have been pre-approved by the Department Head and the City
Manager.

Upon separation of employment, regular status employees who have completed their
probationary or introductory period shall be paid for all eligible vacation time that has been
eamed through the last day of work. lf employment ends on or before the fifteenth of the month,
the employee does not get the vacation time accrual for that month. lf employment ends afrer
the fifleenth of the month, vacation time is accrued for that month and shall be paid.

Refer to Personnel Poliry 20G1360, Retirement Benefits, regarding vacation payofi upon
retirement.

ARTICLE 8 HOLIDAYS

8.1 The following legal holidays shall be observed by bargaining unit employees:

Holidav Date To Be Observed

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

8.2

8.3

New Year's Day
M.L. King Jr. Birthday
Presidents' Day
Memorial Day
Juneteenth
lndependence Day
Labor Day
Veterans' Day
Thanksgiving Day
Day after Thanksgiving
Christmas
Two Personal Holidays

January 'l

Third Monday in January
Third Monday in February
Last Monday in May
June '19

July 4
First Monday in September
November 1 l
Fourth Thursday in November
Day Following Thanksgiving
December 25
At Employee's Choice

Whenever any legal holiday falls on a Saturday, then such holiday shall be celebrated on

Friday. \&henerrer any legal holiday falls upon a Sunday, the following Monday shall be a legal
holiday.

All DEPARTMENTS - When an altemative work schedule is in effect, the employee may use
eight (8) hours of holiday leave on the legal holiday. To complete the work week, through
mutual agreement with the Superintendent or designee, the employee may:

8.3.1 Use vacation leave or compensatory time for any remaining regularly scheduled work
hours for the day on which the holiday falls; or

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF SHELTON
AND THE SHELTON EMPLOYEES GUILD

PAGE I of 27 and
APPENDIX - A, B, C, and D



8.3.2 Work those remaining hours on one (1) or more regularly scheduled work days within
the work week mntaining the holiday; or

8.3.3 Work a regular five{ay, eight-hour work week for the week containing the holiday.

8.4 lf the legal holiday is a regulady scheduled day off, the employee may use eight (8) hours of
holiday leave at a time mutually agreeable to the employee and the Employer, but generally

within the same work-week.

8.5 Floating Holidays - Floating holidays shall be taken pursuant to the following guidelines:

8.5.1 ln addition to the recognized national holidays listed above, eligible employees shall
receive two (2) floating holidays in each calendar year. To be eligible, employees must
successfully complete six (6) months of employment with the City.

8.5.2 Where employment commences on or before the fifteenth (15th) day of any month,
floating holidays shall accrue as of the first day of such month. Where employment
commen@s after the fifieenth (1sth) day of any month, floating holidays shall accrue
as of the first day of the following month.

8.5.3 An employee may use up to sixteen (16) hours of personal holiday time each calendar
year, provided;

8.5.3.1 The employee has given not less than 14 calendar days written notice to the
Superintendent or designee; provided, however, the employee,
Superintendent or designee may agree upon an earlier date; and

8.5.3.2 The numberof employees selecting a pa cular day off or any other fac{or does
not prevent the Employer ftom providing continued public service.

8.6 The personal holiday time must be taken during the calendar year or entitlement to the day will

lapse. The employee may be granted an extension only by the City Manager and only when
the employee can show that the Employer has unduly denied the employee an opportunity to

schedule and use personal holiday(s).

8.7 Vuhen the Superintendent or designee are unable to grant all requesb for a particular holiday

and assure continued public seMce in the Department, the earliest request will be given first
mnsideration.

8.8 Each employee who works on any holiday shall ha\e the option to be paid at he rate of one-
and-one.hatf (1 .5X) times the regular rate of pay for all hours worked in addition to regular pay

or to be given time off at the time-and-one-half rate in lieu of overtime pay, subject to the

compensatory time cap. lf the employee elects time ofi it shall be taken at a time mutually

agreed upon by employee and the Superintendent or designee.

ARTICLE 9 SENIORITY

9.1 PROBATION - All new employees, including rehires, shall be considered as probationary

employees and must successfully complete a six (6) month probationary period before

PAGE l0 of 27 and
APPENDIX _ A, B, C, and D

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF SHELTON
ANO THE SHELTON EMPLOYEES GUILD



9.2

9.3

9.4

PAGE I I of 27 and
APPENDIX - A. B. C. and D

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMEI.IT BETWEEN CITY OF SHELTON
ANO THE SHELTON EMPLOYEES GUILD

attaining regular employee status. During the probationary period, the probationary employee
may be disciplined or discharged at the sole discretion of the Employer and such action shall
not be subjecl the grievance procedure. The probationary period may be extended one'time
for up to six (6) months if justification is provided in writing to the employee and the Guild.
Additional extensions to the probationary period may be applied with mutual agreement of the
parties.

PROMOTIONS AND TRANSFERS - \rVhen a job opening occurs, such opening shall be filled

in the following mannen

9.2.1 Permanent Vacancy - When a vacancy within the bargaining unit is created due to a

termination, separation, promotion, demotion, or as the resuh of a new position, and

the Employer determines to replace the previous incumbenl and/or hire a new
employee, employees wittrin the bargaining unit, shall have the opportunity to bid for
that position before the vacant position is filled from the outside. Bargaining unit

employees interested in applying for the position shall submit a letter of interest within

five (5) business days of ttre position being posted by the City. The Employerwill then
consider quatmcations, haining, education, performance, and seniority in evaluating the
bid(s) and in deciding if the position should be opened for extemal recruitment. lf a
vacancy is posted extemally by the City, interested bargaining unit employees who
have not yet applied may still submit a letter of interest.

9.2.2 Posting - Notice of permanent bargaining unit vacancies shall be posted on bulletin

boards in the respective divisions for seven (7) calendar days. Employees inlerested

in applying for the vacancy shall apply in accordance with the terms of Article 9.2.'t .

9.2.3 Retum - Promoted or hansfened employees who do not satisfactorily complete a six
(6) month probationary period shall have the right to retum to their previous job

classifi cation without prejudice.

PROCEDURES FOR REDUCTION lN PERSONNEL - Employees will be laid off in

accordance with their seniority and their ability (as determined by the Employer), to perform the

remaining work available without significanl further training. Ability to perform the work shall

take into consideration the employee's training, experience, skills, educational requirements

(where appropriate), and specific licenses and certifications related to the iob. When two (2) or

more employees have relatively equal qualifications (skills, knowledge, abilities, experience,

and certifications) to do the work without further training, the employee(s) with the least seniority

will be laid off first. To avoid layoff, an employee may bump the least senior employee in any

classification that they previously held, and are able and qualified to perform the work without

furthertraining. lf two (2) or more employees were hired on the same date priorto the execution

of this Agreement, seniority shall be determined alphabetically based on last name. Any
employee hired after the execution date of this agreement shall establish seniority by date and

time of hire.

RECALL PROCEDURE - Employees shall be recalled in the reverse order of layoffto perform

the remaining work available without significant further training prior to hiring any new employee
to perform the work. The Employer has no obligation to recall an employee after he or she has

been on continuous layofi for a period of three (3) years. Also, if an employee does not retum

to work when recalled, the Employer shall have no further obligation to recall ttle individual.



9.5

9.6

LEAVE OF ABSENCE - Any employee elected or appointed to permanent Guild office, or as
a delegate on behalf of the Guild, necessitating a leave of absence, may at the discretion of
the Department Director be granted leave of absence by the Employer, provided sufficient
advan@ notice ls given so that such employee's work may be properly cared for. Any
employee absent pursuant to such leave of absence shall retain and accumulate all seniority
rights. All such leaves of absence shall be granted in writing by the Employer and a copy of the
letter granting such leave shall be filed with the Guild and with the employee.

RETENTION OF SENIORITY - Seniority shall be retiained and accumulated for any
employee who has been promoted to a position out of the bargaining unit for a period of twelve
('12) months, at the end of which time his/her seniority shall be forfeited.

ARTICLE 1O WAGES AND CLASSIFICATIONS

10.1 Progression through the step plan in Appendix A, B, and C shall be based upon satisfactory
performance as determined by the Employer in consultation with the Superintendent or
designee.

1O.2 WAGES - Efiective January 1, 2025, employees shall receive a 3.0% increase in wages as
reflected ln Appendix A.

10.6 The overtime rate of pay shall be determined by multiplying the above hourly rate by 1 .5.

10.7 OUT OF CLASS PAY - An employee who is appointed by the Employer temporarily to work
outside of their job classification for more than one (1) week will receive pay consistent with the
applicable salary schedule but in no event be paid more than 10% of their regular wage rate.

The out of class pay shall not apply retroactively. Assistant Field SupeMsor and \MA/TP Tech
positions are not eligible for out of class pay

ARTICLE 1,I LONGEVITY

11.1 The Employer agrees to the following longevity pay scale which shall be added to the monthly
pay of each employee eligible:

Beginning 5th year - $ 50.00
Beginning 1Oth year - $100.00
Beginning 1sth year - $150.00
Beginning 20th year - $200.00
Beginning 25th year - $250.00
Beginning 30th year - $300.00
Beginning 35th year - $350.00

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF SHELTON
AND THE SHELTON EMPLOYEES GUILD

PAGE l2 of 27 and
APPENDIX _ A, B, C, and D

ARTICLE 12 DIRECT DEPOSIT AND PAYDAYS

12.1 Employees are required to enroll in direct deposit at a financial institr.rtion of their choice.

Employees are paid on the 10th day of each month for the period beginning on the sixteenth



through the last day of the previous month and on the 25th day of each month for the period

beginning on the first day through the frfteenth day of the cunent month. lf a payday falls on a
weekend or holiday, employees are paid on the preceding workday. Payroll checks or stubs
shall identiry the amount eamed, hours worked, overtime and the deductions made.

ARTICLE 13 SICK LEAVE AND PAID FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE

1 3.1

13.2

All regular full-time employees shall be entitled to accrue eight (8) hours of sick leave for each

month of employnent. Full-time employees may accrue an unlimited amount of sick leave

during the calendar yeal however, annual carryover is limited to nine hundred sixty (960)

hours, with any excess forfeited at year end. Part-time employees budgeted at least twenty
(20) hours per week (0.5+ FTE) eam sick leave on a prorated basis. Parttime employees

budgeted below (20) hours per week (<0.5 FTE) eam sick leave at the rate of one (1) hour of
sickleave for every forty (40) hours actually worked, with a maximum annual canyover of forty
(zt0) hours. To ensure compliance with Washington's Paid Sick Leave Law, the City will track

statutory sick leave accruals sepaft ely from the more generous accruals provided by this
Agreement.

Sick leave may be used for the following authorized purposes:

13.2.1 An absence resuhing from an employee's mental or phpical illness, injury, or health

mndilion; to acmmmodate the employee's need for medical diagnosis, care, or

treatment of a mental or physical illness, injury, or health mndition; or an employee's

need for preventive medical care.

fi.2.2 ro allow the employee to proMde care for a family member with a mental or physical

illness, injury, or heafth mndition; care of a family member who needs medical

diagnosis, care, or treatment of a mental or physical illness, injury, or health condition;

or &re for a family member who needs preventive medical care. Solely for purposes

of Article 13.2.2, i1amily membef shall be defined to include children (including a

biological, adopted, or foster child, stepchild, or a child to whom the employee stands

in loco parentis, is a legal guardian, or is a de facto parent, regardless of age or

dependenry status), parents (lncluding biological, adoptive, de facto, or foster parent,

stepparent,-or legal guardian of an employee or the employee's spouse or registered

domestic partner, or a person who stood in loco parentis when the employee was a

minor ctild), spouses, registered domestic partners, grandparents, grandchildren, and

siblings.

vvhen the employee,s place of business has been closed by order of a public ofiicial

for any health-reiated reason, or when an employee's child's school or place of care

has been closed for such a reason.

vvhen the employee is authorized to use sick leave for absences that qualiry for leave

under Washington's domestic violen@ leave ac( RCW 49.76 et seq.

Any other authorized purpose required by State law.

Medical appointmenb and other partial{ay sick leave absences shall be accounted

for by actual time off, rounded to the ne)d nearest one-half hour.

COLLECTIVE SARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF SHELTON

AND THE SHELTON EMPLOYEES GUILD

PAGE l3 of 27 and
APPENDIX - A, B, C, and O

13.2.3

13.2.4

't3.2.5

13.2.6



13.3 For absences exceeding three (3) days, the City may request medical verification confirming
that sick leave was taken for an authorized purpose. Vvhen requested, an employee shall have
ten (10) calendar days, beginning from the date of the first sick leave absence, to obtjain and
provide medical verification to the City. On a case.by-case basis, an employee ls subject to
excusal ftom proMding medical verification if the employee establishes an "unreasonable
burden or expense," as that phrase is defined by Washington law, that cannot be adequately
mitigated by the City. An employee excused from the requirement may be required to submit
altemative verifi cation.

13.4

13.5

Any employee shall be subject to disciplinary action for misuse of sick leave.

Unless confined to a hospital, or on extended sick leave stay previously approved by the City,

an employee must call before their scheduled shift and notiff the Superintendent or designee,

as appropriate, of their need for sick leave. When an employee's need for sick leave is
unforeseeable, such as emergencies, the employee shall attempt to notiry the Superintendent

or designee as soon as possible before the start oftheir shift, however, if advance notice is not
possible, the employee shall provide notice as soon as possible thereafter, no later than the
start of the next scheduled shift. For emergencies, an employee may ask a representative (e.9.,

ftiend, family member, caregiver, co-worker) to provide notice on the employee's behatf. No

sick leave shall be granted in less than one-half hour increments.

13.6 BUYBACK - Once an employee has attained a minimum of four hundred eighty ('180) hours

of accumulated sick leave, the employee has the following options:

13.6.1 He or she may accumulate any sick leave eamed during the working year beginning

on January 1st and ending on December 31st of that year, subject only to an annual

carryover maximum of nine hundred sixty (960) hours.

13.6.2 The employee may redeem up to a maximum of ninety-six (96) hours of sick leave in

December of each year, at the rate of $15.00 per hour, provided the employee

maintiains a balance of at least 4tl0 hours after the redemption.

Example #1: An employee staG the year with 480 hours, accrues an additional 96

hours during the calendar year, but uses 40 hours due to a sickness, and therefore

ends the year with 536 hours. The employee may rcdeem a maximum of 56 hours'

Example f2: An employee starts the year with 700 hours, accrues an additional 96
hours during the calendar year, but uses all 96 hours due to a sic*ness, and therefore

ends the year with 700 hours. The employee may still redeem a maximum of 96 hours

because hdshe will maintiain a minimum balance of at least 480 hours after the
redemption.

13.6.3 The employee shall notifo the Employer on or before December 1st of the cunent
working year of his or her intent to accumulate or redeem the sick days eamed during

that working year.

13.7 Employees may cashout sick leave under this section at the following rates:

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF SHELTON
ANO THE SHELTON EMPLOYEES GUILD

PAGE 14 of 27 and
APPENDIX _ A, B, C, and O



Reason Percentage of total accrued,
unused leave

Termination for cause or
Resignation in Lieu of Termination

Voluntary Resiqnation 25Yo

Layoff 50%
Death 100o/o

Retirement (PERS) "100o/o for first 360 hours,
25o/o for up to an additional
360 hours

Permanent Disability Separation 100o/o

Note: An employee is "permanently disabled" by verification and determination of the state
Department of Retirement Services or the federal Social Security Administration.

13.8 lf an employee is unable to work due to an on-ths.job illness or injury, and the employee is also
receiMng Workers' Compensation time-loss payments or any other insurance provided by the
City, the employee shall receive sick leave in an amount which, when combined with the time.
loss or other insurance payments, shall equal the employee's regular salary. Upon refuming to
work, the employee shall cooperate with the City to remndle the conect deduction of sick leave
and/or reimbursement of payments to achieve the employee's regular salary.

'13.9 Eligible employees are @vered by Washington's Paid Family and Medical Leave Program,
RCW 50A.04. Eligibility for leave and benefits is estrablished by Washingrton law and therefore
independent of this Agreement. Benefits for this program are funded by a payroll tax paid to
the State of Washington and subject to annual revision, with the Employer and Guild agreeing
to the statutory default cost-sharing percentages listed in RCW 50A.04.115 (i.e., the City pays

55% of medical premiums, employees pay 45o/o of medical premiums and 100% of family
premiums). The City reserves the right to self-insure, provided benefits remain the same or
befter to employees. ln addition, during the term of this Agreement, the City reserves the right
to reopen this Agreement for the sole purpose of bargaining the interplay between the Family
and Medical Leave Program and the other paid leave provided by this Agreement,

ARTICLE 14 GROUP MEDICAL, DENTAL, AND VISION INSURANCE

14.1 The Employer offers full-time employees and their enrolled dependents a choice between four
health insurance plans offered by the Association of Washingrton Cities (AWC): (1) HealthFirst

250; (2) llaiser 200; (3) HealthFirst High-Deductible Health Plan (HDHP); and (4) Kaiser High-

Deductive Health Plan (HDHP).

14.1.1 For 2025, on a monthly basis, the Employer shall contribute a flatdollar amount of up
to $1,875.00 toward the cost of health insurance premiums. To be eligible for this
monthly contribution, the employee must actually enroll in one of the four AWC plans.

Any remaining balance owed for the mst of the premiums shall be paid by the
employee.

14.1.2 Employees not utilizing the full monthly contribution by the City may open a Health

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF SHELTON
AND THE SHELTON EMPLOYEES GUILD

[^

PAGE l5 of 27 and
APPENDIX - A, B, C, and O



Reimbursement Account (HRA) and request the City deposit the difference, up to a
maximum of seventy-five dollars ($75) per month, into the HRA. Employees are solely
responsible for all fees charged by the HRA.

14.1.3 Employees who enroll in an HDHP option and open a Health Savings Account (HSA)
will receive '100% of the cost difference between HealthFirst 250 and the selected
HDHP, deposited into their HSA on a monthly basis.

'14.1.4 Part-time employees budgeted at thilty (30) hours per week (0.75 FTE) or greater are
eligible for enrollment in health insurance, and will receive a monthly contribution ftom
the City on a pro-E ed basis. Part{ime employees budgeted below thirty (30) hours
per week (0.75 FTE) are not eligible for heahh benefits.

14.2 VISION - The Employer shall pay 100% of the premiums for the VSP vision care plan.

DENTAL - The Employer shall pay 100o/o of the premiums for the AWC Dental Plan E.14.3

14.4 The Employer shall pay the above premiums for dependents for an additional 30-day period

and 90 days for the employees if laid ofi or disabled.

14.5 No changes may be made under this section unless the overall level of benefits under the
proposed policy is comparable to the overall level of benefib provided above.

'15.1 The City will provide for, on behalf of each employee, a term life insurance policy with a
$100,000 benefit forthe employee. The spouse of each employee is covered in the amount of
$10,000, and each dependenl child shall be covered in the amount of $2,000. However, at no
time shall the amounts provided violate the provision of RCW 2t8.24.030. The City shall pay the
full premium cost for the above life insurance @verage. Employees may continue to elect to
purchase supplemental life insurance in acmrdance with the program(s) offered by the City.

ARTICLE 16 DISABILITY INSURANCE

16.1 The Employer shall provide long term disability insurance to each employee covered by this
contract. The plan shall provide 60% benefit level payable affer a ninety (90) day elimination
period.

16.2 The Employees may establish a Retiree Medical Savings Plan through employee
contributions,

ARTICLE 17 CALL BACK

17 .1 Any Guild member shall be given a minimum of three (3) hours overtime when called back to
work. Call back is defined as follows: When Guild members have completed their regular shift
or period of work and have lefl the CiV Shop, \AMTP Plant, Civic Center, or other regularly-

assigned work location.

ARTICLE 18 MEAL STIPEND

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF SHELTON
AND THE SHELTON EMPLOYEES GUILO

PAGE l6 of 27 and
APPENDIX - A, B, C, ANd D

ARTICLE 15 LIFE INSURANCE



18.1 Any employee shall receive a meal stipend of fifieen dollars ($'15) in the event of an emergenry
situation when he or she has worked more than two (2) hours overtime at the end of their
regular shift or four (4) hours overtime as a result of a call back. The employee shall receive an
additional meal stipend for every four (4) hours of additional overtime worked.

2O.,l The Employer shall provide five hundred dollars ($500.00) for purchasing work related clothing

items for each bargaining unit employee. Employees are responsible for having work related

clothing in good condition at the work site each day.

20.2

20.3

The work-related clothing allowance shall be paid annually on the April payroll check.

Work Boots
Rain Gear (top boftom and boots) lnsulated Bib Overalls
Coat
Work Shirts
Work Pants

20.4 The Guild and the City agree to the creation of a voluntary training program for Maintenance

Workers (both Public Works and Parks). This voluntary training program is for Maintenance

workers that cunently hold a class B cDL or higher. Employees may enterthe program at any
point throughout the year. Mid-year trainees will be placed at the end of the rotation.

Participants will be scheduled per seniority on a rotating monthly basis. The amount of training

time may vary per employee. Participants of this program will be evaluated each calendar year

for continuing eligibility. There will not be any guaranteed amount of training promised to the

employee ftom the Guild or the City. Participation does not assure an Operator position will be

gEnted. lf qualifications and abilities are equal, seniority shall prevail. An Operator must

icmmpany trainees at all times. This non-probationary program can be altered by any mutual

agreemenb between the City and the Guild, and may be terminated by the City at any time.

ARTICLE 21 SAVINGS CLAUSE

2'1.1 Should any provisions of this Agreement or the applications of such provisions be rendered or
declared invalid by a murt action or by reason of any existing or subsequently enacted
legislation, the remaining parts or portions of this Agreement shall remain in fullforce and effect.

ARTICLE22 MISCELLANEOUSPROVISIONS

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF SHELTON
AND THE SHELTON EMPLOYEES GUILD

PAGE l7 of 27 and
APPENDIX - A, B, C, ANd D

ARTICLE 19 JURYDUTYPAY

19.1 Any employee, who is required to perform jury duty, including grand jury duty, shall be

mmpensated at their regular rate for time served in performance of ,lury duty. lf jury seMce is
at a time other than the employee's regularly scheduled day, the employee may accrue
compensatory time for jury service. The Employer may require documentation from the murt
substantiating time served on jury duty. Any stipend received for jury duty shall be retumed to

the Employer and any mileage costs paid to the employee shall be retained by said employee.

ARTICLE 20 WORK RELATED CLOTHING

Work-related clothing shall mean:



22.1 A bulletin board shall be provided forthe Guild notices. The Guild shall keep the board in good

order. Guild shall hold Employer harmless for any loss resulting ftom anything on the bulletin
board.

22.2 The City will notify the Guild within ten (10) business days of receipt of a public records request
that seeks records containing information that specifically and personally identifies an affected
bargaining unit employee. The City will noti! the Guild within ten (10) business days of any
public records request that specifically identifies and seeks records regarding the Guild-

ARTICLE 23 NOTICE OF DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE

23.1 JUST CAUSE - The Employer may discipline and discharge employees for just cause.

23.2 NOTICE - The Employer shall notify the bargaining unit member of any punitive disciplinary
action concunent with mmmencement of the action.

23.3 PROGRESSIVE DISCIPLINE - The Employer agrees that, with the exception of lnstances of
egregious misconduct, discipline will generally proceed from less severe to more severe (for

example: oral waming - written waming - suspension - termination). However, the Employer
retains the sole right to determine what level and type of discipline should be imposed.

23.4 TERMINATION - Non-probationary employees shall be notified in writing of the reason(s) for
discharge at the time of or prior to separation. The Guild shall be fumished with a copy of the
reasons for discharge concunent with commencement of the action.

23.5 PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEES -The Employer may separate probationary employees with
or without cause.

23.6 ln the event of documented reprimand is placed in an employee's permanent personnel file,

after one year from the date of the reprimand the employee may request that the Employer
remove such reprimand ftom the flle. Removal of said reprimand shall be atthe sole discretion

of the Employer and the Employe/s decision shall not be the subject of a Grievance.

ARTICLE24 NON.DISCRIMINATION

24.1 The Employer and the Guild shall not discriminate employees based on their mlor, race,

religion, creed, age, sex, sexual orientation, gender expression or identity, national origin,

marilal status, military status, stiatus as an honorably discharged veteran, genetic information,

or mental or physical disability, in acmrdance with State and Federal rules and regulations.

Bona fide occupational qualifications based on the above traits do not violate this section.

Employees may challenge practices or actions that they allege violate the provisions of this
Article through the City's policies and procedures, and/or using those remedies available

through applicable law. Alleged violations of this Article are not subject to arbitration under
Article 5 of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 25 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

25.1 Any and all rights concemed with the management and operation of the Department of Public

Works, including Engineering, and the Parks Department, are exclusively that of the Employer

COLLECTIVE BARGAINTNG AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF SHELTON
AND THE SHELTON EMPLOYEES GUILO

PAGE 18 of 27 and
APPENDIX _ A, B, C, and D



unless otheruise specifically provided by the terms of this Agreement. The Employer has the
right, among other actions, to adopt rules for the operation of the Department and mnduct of
the employees, to discipline, suspend, or discharge employees for cause, to assign work,
determine Job mntent and job duties of employees, and determine the number of personnel

to be assigned duty at any time, to determine and introduce new methods or facilities to
increase produc{ivity, to determine the work and shift schedule, to establish performance

standards and evaluations, to contract for goods and services for operation of the Department,
and to perform all of the functions not otherwise expressly limited by this Agreement.

27.1 Neither the Guild nor its officers, agents, representatives, or members shall instigate, promote,

cause, engage in or authorize its members to instigate, promote, cause or engage in any strike,

sympathy strike, shutdown, slowdown, picketing or any other stoppage of work or interference
of any kind with operations during the life of this Ag reement.

27.2 There shall be no lockout by the Employer during the term of the Agreement

ARTICLE 28 EMERGENCY COOPERATION

28.1 The City and the Guild agree to work in partnership toward a flexible and expeditious response

to man-made and natural disasters and emergencies, including potential emergency conditions

arising from or related to technology problems. For the purpose of this Article "emergency or
disaster'' shall have the meaning as provided in RCW 38.52.0't0 (6). Under conditions of
emergency or disaster, the Guild agrees that ln accordance with its management rights
provisions of this Agreement the City may take the following emergency actions: (1) assign out-

of+lass work to bargaining unit employees; (2) assign bargaining unit work to excluded

employees and/or management employees; (3) assign duties to bargaining unit employees
which are not within the job descriptions of the employee(s); (4) hire temporary and contract

employees to do bargaining unit work when no qualilied member of the bargaining unit is
available; (5) in the event ofa serious revenue shortfall resulting from an emergency or disaster,

the City may ofier bargaining unit employees the option of a temporary reduction in their
compensation in lieu of reduction ln force. Under the conditions of an emergency or disaster,

the Guild agrees that so long as the emergency actions described herein are undertaken during

the existence of an emergency or disaster (with a City Council declaration of an emergency or
disaster as soon as practicable), or the period of recovery immediately following an emergency
or disaster, such action shall not constitute a violation of any terms or conditions of the
Agreement.

ARTICLE 29 DEFERRED COMPENSATION

29.1 The Employer shall contribute matching funds into one of the City's adopted defened
compensation programs as follows: for each dollar contributed by the employee, the Employer
shall contribute dollar-fordollar matching funds to a maximum of six and two- tenths percent

PAGE 19 of 27 and
APPENDIX _ A, B, C, and D

ARTICLE 26 GUILD RIGHTS

26.1 The Guild has all rights which are specified in the provisions in this Agreement and retiains all
rights granted by law, except as such righb may be limited bythe provisions of tttis Agreement.

ARTICLE 27 NO STRIKE.NO LOCKOUT

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF SHELTON
AND THE SHELTON EMPLOYEES GUILO



(6.2%) of the employee's regular rate of pay. The employee may mntribute additional funds
with no Employer match as determined or restricted by the adopted defened compensation
plan.

ARTICLE 30 LIFE OF AGREEMENT

30. 1 This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect from January 1, 2025 through December
3'l , 2025. The Guild and Employer shall give written notice on or before September 1st of any
year the contract is due to be amended or terminated provided that if notice of modification or
termination is given, this Agreement shall remain in effect up to one (1) year thereafter during

the term of negotiations for a replacement Agreement, consistent with RCW 41.56.123. On
notice, the parties shall meet and negotiate in good faith to anive at agreed modification or
suc@ssor contract to be efiec{ive at the expiration of the term thereof. The prior contract

cunently in existence is hereby rescinded and this Agreement substituted in its stead, as
comprising the entire Agreement cunently existing between the parties.

ln witness whereot the parties have executed the Agreement as their free and voluntary act on the
dates set forth below

CITY OF SHELTON SHELTON EMPLOYEES GUILD

Date
l-t4-z{

DateMark Ziegler
City Manager

d Rhodes
Guild President

PAGE 20 of 27 and
APPENOIX - A, B, C, and D

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF SHELTON
AND THE SHELTON EMPLOYEES GUILD



SALARY SCHEDULE
Base
Min.

End of 6
MthS,

End of 18

Mths.
End of 2

Yrs.
End of 3

Yrs.
End of 4

Yrs.
End of
5 Yrs.

End of 6
Yrs.

Position Grade Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E Step F Step G

Custodian 14 21.25 22.31 23.42 24.60 25.34 26.',t0 26.88 27.69 24.52

l\4aintenance Worker 16 23.36 24.52 25.75 27.05 27.85 28.69

Wastewater Treatment Plant Tech Train 17 25.40 26.67 28.00 29.40 30.24 31 .19 32.13 33.09 34.08

Heavy Equipment Operator 18 26.94 28.29 29.72 3'1.20 32.'14 33.09 34.09 35.11

Sr. Heavy Equipment Operator 19 28.29 29.70 31.20 32.75 33.74 34.75 36.86 37.98

Wastewater Treatment Plant Tech I 19 28.29 29.70 31.20 32.75 33.7 4 34.75 36.86 37.98

Asst. Water Quality Specialist 19 28.29 29.70 31.20 32.75 33.7 4 34.75 35.79 36.86 37.94

PW Technician 1S 28.29 29.70 31.20 32.75 33.74 34.75 35.79 36.86 37.98

Wastewater Treatment Plant Tech !l 20 31.20 32.75 34.39 35.42 36.49 37.58 38.71 39.87

Water Quality Specialist 20 29.72 31.20 32.75 34.39 35.42 36.49 37.58 38.71 39.87

Master Mechanic 20 31.20 34.39 36.49 37.58 34.71 39.87

Wastewater Treatment Plant Tech lll 3'1 .19 34.39 36.'t 1 37.19 38.31 39.46 40.63 41.86

Ass. Field Supervisor 22 34.39 36.11 37.91 39.06 40.23 4'l.M 42.67 43.96

Field Supervisor 24 37.91 41.81 43.05 44.35 45.68 47.05 48.46

APPENDIXA-2025Wages

COLA Adjustments:
2025 = 3.0oh

t. NEW EMPLOYEE WAGE PROGRESSION

Step A through D Placement: A new employee placed in Steps A through D will receive step
increases every six (6) months until they reach Step E. Then the employee will advance to Step
F and higher following '12 months in each step. Six-month increases are only applicable for the
first two (2) years of City employment.

Step E or Higher Placement: A new employee placed in Step E or higher will advance to the
next step following 12 months in each step.

II. PROMOTIONAL WAGE PROGRESSION

Employees Making Lateral and Approved Lower-Grade Transfers

An employee laterally transfening within the same job classification or a position in same grade
will maintain their grade and step, and their currenl position date for the purposes of step
increases. With management's prior approval, an employee transferring to a lower grade within
the bargaining unit maintain their cunent grade and step until their wage rate is less than any step
increase that they would have received per the wage table, and then will be increased
accordingly.

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF SHELTON
AND THE SHELTON EMPLOYEES GUILD

End of 'l

Step H Step I

29.55 30.44 31.35

29.72

35.42

21

36.11

PAGE 21 oI27 and
APPENDIX - A, B, C, and D



Employees Promoted Within 24 Months of City Employment

An employee promoted within their first 24 months of employment (Steps A through D) will
receive a pay increase of 5% over their current wage or the closest step in the higher grade that
provides a pay increase, whichever is greater. The employee will waive one 6-month step
progression. After one year in the promoted position, the employee will bypass the next step
and continue advancing through the wage schedule based on lheir promotion date.

Employees Promoted After 24 Months of City Employment

An employee promoted after 24 months (Steps E through l) of employment will receive a pay
increase of 5% over their cunent wage or the closest step in the higher grade that provides a
pay increase, whichever is greater. The employee will continue advancing through the wage
schedule based on their promotion date. An employee's base wage rate shall not exceed the
rate provided in Step l.

Example

During a new employee's first two years of City employment, they will progress through the wage
step structure, as provided in the below example. Any employee employed with tha City longer
than two years is not eligible for six-month step increases; these employees are only eligible for
annual wage step lncreases.

Bart gets hted on with the City January 2, 2022, as a maintenance worker and is placed in Grade
16, Step A ($21.28). The City gives &month increases to employees within their first two years of
employment only if you land in a six-month step which is A through D. On July 2, 2022 - Bad
receives a six-month increase to maintenance worker, Step B ($22.34).

On September 2, 2022, Bart is promoted to heavy equipment operator and receives Grade 18,

Step A ($24.54), because it is larger than his previous wage +50k. September 2 will be his new
anniversary date for determining future ,ncreases.

On March 2,2023, he receives a six month increase to Grade 18 Step B ($25.77), because,I is
six months from his Nomotion date but still within 2 years of his hire date of January 2, 2022.

On September 2, 2023, he receives another six-month increase to Grade 18 Step C ($27.06),

because it is another six months past his promotion date but still within 2 years of his hire date of
January 2, 2022.

On January 2, 2024, Ba,7 reaches lwo years of employment and is no longer eligible for six-
month increases.

On September 2, 2024, Bart celebrates two years in the position. He is no longer eligible for six'
month increases because he has been employed for two years with the City. Thus, he skipped
the six-month increase to Grade 18 Step D ($28.41) and moves instead to Grade 18, Step E
($29.26), and continues to get yearly step increases in Seplembe r until he has progressed
through the salary schedule or receives another prcmotion.

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF SHELTON
AND THE SHELTON EMPLOYEES GUILO

PAGE 22 ol 27 and
APPENDIX - A, B, C, and D



End of 5 End of 6End of 6 End of 1 End of 18 End of 2 End of 3 End of 4SCHEDULE Base

26.91 27.7222.34 23.46 24.63 25.37 26.13ntenance Worker 21.24

31.98 .9427.06 28.41 29.26 30.14 31.05eavy Equipment
18 24.54 25.77

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF SHELTON
ANO THE SHELTON EMPLOYEES GUILD

PAGE 23 of 27 and
APPENDIX - A, B, C, and D

2022 rNages (Hourly)

Position Gradr Stoo A Stee B Stso C Stso D SteD E Stop F SteD G SteD H Step I

28.55



APPENDIX B - WWTP Technician Training Program

The Guild and the City agree to the creation of a WWTP Technician training program to develop
technicians and ensure unintemrpted facility management by certified employees. Wage rates
applicable to the training program are listed in Appendix A.

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF SHELTON
AND THE SHELTON EMPLOYEES GUILD

PAGE 24 ol 27 and
APPENDIX _ A, B, C, and D



 
 

 
 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT – CUSTOMER SERVICE      PAGE 1 OF 24 
CITY OF SHELTON & IAMAW WOODWORKERS LODGE W-38 
REV. 11/14/2024 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 
 

BY AND BETWEEN THE 

CITY OF SHELTON 

AND 

INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 
MACHINISTS AND AEROSPACE WORKERS 

IAMAW WOODWORKERS LOCAL LODGE W-38 

(Representing Customer Service Employees) 

January 1, 2025 - December 31, 2027 

  



 
 

 
 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT – CUSTOMER SERVICE      PAGE 2 OF 24 
CITY OF SHELTON & IAMAW WOODWORKERS LODGE W-38 
REV. 11/14/2024 
 
 
  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT ...................................................................................... 1 
ARTICLE 1 PREAMBLE ..................................................................................................................... 3 
ARTICLE 2 RECOGNITION ............................................................................................................... 3 
ARTICLE 3 UNION SECURITY ......................................................................................................... 3 
ARTICLE 4 UNION REPRESENTATIVES ........................................................................................ 4 
ARTICLE 5 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS .............................................................................................. 4 
ARTICLE 6 HOURS OF WORK/OVERTIME .................................................................................... 5 
ARTICLE 7 VACATION ...................................................................................................................... 5 
ARTICLE 8 SICK LEAVE ................................................................................................................... 6 
ARTICLE 9 BEREAVEMENT LEAVE ............................................................................................... 8 
ARTICLE 10 FAMILY/MEDICAL LEAVE ...................................................................................... 8 
ARTICLE 11 HOLIDAYS .................................................................................................................. 9 
ARTICLE 12 NOTICE OF DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE ....................................................... 10 
ARTICLE 13 GRIEVANCE ............................................................................................................. 11 
ARTICLE 14 HEALTH AND WELFARE INSURANCE BENEFITS ........................................... 13 
ARTICLE 15 WAGES AND LONGEVITY .................................................................................... 14 
ARTICLE 16 DEFERRED COMPENSATION MATCH ................................................................ 16 
ARTICLE 17 SAVINGS CLAUSE ................................................................................................... 16 
ARTICLE 18 ENTIRE AGREEMENT ............................................................................................. 16 
ARTICLE 19 CONTRACTING/SUBCONTRACTING .................................................................. 16 
ARTICLE 20 NO STRIKE, NO LOCKOUT .................................................................................... 17 
ARTICLE 21 SENIORITY ............................................................................................................... 17 
ARTICLE 22 EMERGENCY COOPERATION .............................................................................. 18 
ARTICLE 23 DURATION ................................................................................................................ 18 

CITY OF SHELTON .......................................................................................................................... 19 
APPENDIX A ......................................................................................................................................... 20 
APPENDIX B ......................................................................................................................................... 21 
APPENDIX C ......................................................................................................................................... 22 
APPENDIX D ......................................................................................................................................... 23 
APPENDIX E …………………………………………………………………………………………24 
  



 
 

 
 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT – CUSTOMER SERVICE      PAGE 3 OF 24 
CITY OF SHELTON & IAMAW WOODWORKERS LODGE W-38 
REV. 11/14/2024 
 
 
  

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 
BY AND BETWEEN 

CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON 
AND 

INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 
MACHINISTS AND AEROSPACE WORKERS 

IAMAW WOODWORKERS LOCAL LODGE W-38 

(Representing Customer Service Employees) 
 

ARTICLE 1 PREAMBLE 

1.1 This Agreement is made and entered into by and between the City of Shelton, hereinafter 
known as the "City" and the International Association of Machinists and Aerospace Workers, 
IAMAW Woodworkers Local Lodge W-38, hereinafter known as the "Union." 

1.2 It is the purpose of this Agreement to achieve and maintain harmonious relations between 
the City and the Union, to provide for equitable and peaceful adjustments of differences 
which may arise, and to establish proper standards of wages, hours and other conditions of 
employment. 

1.3 The members of the Union are to regard themselves as public employees and are to be 
governed by the highest ideals of honor and integrity in order that they may merit the respect 
and confidence of the general public. 

ARTICLE 2 RECOGNITION 

2.1 The City recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive bargaining representative for the 
purposes of establishing wages, hours, and working conditions for all regular full- time and 
regular part-time clerical employees of the City of Shelton, excluding supervisors, 
professionals, confidential employees, temporary employees, and all employees covered by 
another collective bargaining agreement. Based on the City's operational needs (e.g., to 
serve as backup), the City may assign the non-represented Accounting Assistant position to 
temporarily perform the duties for the Customer Service Representative and Customer 
Service Specialist positions. 

2.2 If a temporary position is filled for more than 120 days and the Union believes that the 
position should be recognized for inclusion in the bargaining unit, the Union shall notify the 
City in writing of the reason(s) for including the position in the bargaining unit. Within ten (10) 
business days of receipt of such notice, the City and the Union agree to meet to discuss 
inclusion and to attempt to resolve the matter between the parties. If resolution is not 
achieved at this meeting, the parties agree to refer the matter to PERC for final resolution. 

 

ARTICLE 3 UNION SECURITY   

3.1 UNION MEMBERSHIP OPTIONS - All bargaining unit employees whose normal schedule 



 
 

 
 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT – CUSTOMER SERVICE      PAGE 4 OF 24 
CITY OF SHELTON & IAMAW WOODWORKERS LODGE W-38 
REV. 11/14/2024 
 
 
  

is at least 60 hours per month may become and remain members in good standing of the 
Union. Employees may choose not to join the Union and have no obligation to make 
payments or payroll deductions payable to it. Neither the City nor the Union may interfere 
with, restrain, coerce, or discriminate against an employee based upon their decision 
regarding Union membership or providing it financial support. 

3.2 PAYROLL DEDUCTION - Upon timely receipt of a written authorization form executed by an 
individual employee and certifying the employee's voluntary decision to be a member of the 
Union and to authorize payroll deductions, the City agrees to make the appropriate payroll 
deductions. The written authorization form (Appendix E) will provide the right for the 
employee to withdraw from Union membership and cease deductions of dues and 
assessments during a thirty consecutive day period on not less than an annual basis. 

3.3 CITY INDEMNIFICATION - The Union will defend, indemnify, and hold the City harmless 
against all liability, including allegations, claims, actions, suits, demands, damages, 
obligations, losses, settlements, judgments, costs and expenses (including attorneys' fees) 
that arise out of any action taken or not taken by the City in implementation of Article 3 of the 
Agreement. The Union further agrees to refund to the City any amounts paid to it in error. 

ARTICLE 4 UNION REPRESENTATIVES 

4.1 Not more than two (2) employees may attend labor negotiations without suffering loss of pay 
or leave time. 

4.2 UNION NOTICES - A bulletin board shall be provided for the Union notices. The Union shall 
keep the board in good order. The Union shall hold the City harmless for any loss resulting 
from anything on the bulletin board. 

ARTICLE 5 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS 

5.1 The Union recognizes the prerogative of the City to manage and administer the City and its 
departments. The city has - whether exercised or not - all of the rights, powers and authority 
heretofore existing, including, but not limited to the following: to determine the standard(s) of 
services offered; to determine the standards and methods of selection, promotion and 
transfer of employment; to direct its employees; to take disciplinary action; to determine the 
methods, tools, and standards of assessing and/or evaluating employee performance; to 
relieve its employees from duty because of lack of work or other reason(s); to issue and 
endorse rules and regulations; to maintain and improve the efficiency of operations; to 
contract for goods and services; to terminate services rendered or supplied, including the 
right to determine whether goods or services are made or purchased; to determine the 
methods, means, staffing level, and personnel to conduct operations; to determine the 
amount and method of training and supervision necessary; to determine job classifications 
of City positions; to determine the work schedules of its employees; to assign overtime; and 
to fulfill all of its legal responsibilities. 

5.2 The enumeration of management prerogatives shall not be deemed to exclude other 
management prerogatives not specifically enumerated. 



 
 

 
 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT – CUSTOMER SERVICE      PAGE 5 OF 24 
CITY OF SHELTON & IAMAW WOODWORKERS LODGE W-38 
REV. 11/14/2024 
 
 
  

5.3 The exercise of the foregoing rights and authority, the adoption of policies, rules, regulations 
and practices in furtherance thereof, and the exercise of managerial judgment and discretion 
in connection therewith shall be limited only by the specific and express terms of this 
Agreement and then only to the extent that such specified and express terms hereof are in 
conformance with the federal, state and local law. 

5.4 The exercise of the foregoing rights and authority, the adoption of policies, rules, regulations 
and practices in furtherance thereof, and the exercise of managerial judgment and discretion 
in connection therewith shall be consistent with General Rule 29 of the Washington State 
Court Rules and shall not in any way, directly or indirectly be subject to the grievance 
procedure set forth herein. 

ARTICLE 6 HOURS OF WORK/OVERTIME 

6.1 WORK WEEK - For most bargaining unit positions, the work schedule shall generally consist 
of five eight-hour days commencing Monday and ending on Friday. All scheduled workweeks 
shall include a minimum of two consecutive days off. At the direction of the director of the 
department an alternate work schedule may be established as appropriate to the needs of 
the City. When possible, the City will provide advance notice to the employee of any changes 
in the work schedule. 

6.2 OVERTIME - Management has the right to assign and require overtime work. All work 
performed in excess of forty (40) hours per week shall be paid at the overtime rate of one 
and one-half (1.5) times the regular rate of pay, which shall not include any premiums, in 
accordance with the Fair Labor Standards Act. Paid leave shall be considered hours worked 
for overtime purposes. 

6.3 COMPENSATORY TIME -Overtime pay may be waived when an overtime eligible employee 
makes a written request to accrue compensatory time off in lieu of overtime pay and the 
supervisor approves the request. The decision to grant or deny compensatory time accrual 
is left to the sole discretion of management. Compensatory time off shall be earned at the 
same rate as overtime in accordance with the Fair Labor Standards Act. Employees shall 
be allowed to use their accrued compensatory time off upon reasonable notice and 
consistent with the City's reasonable operating needs through mutual agreement with their 
supervisor. Management may direct employees to use accrued compensatory time. 
Employees terminating their service with the City shall be paid for all accrued compensatory 
time as shown due the employee on the City's records. In no case will an employee be 
allowed to accumulate compensatory time in excess of eighty (80) hours. 

6.4 CALL BACK - Any employee shall be given a minimum of two (2) hours overtime when called 
back to work. Callback time is defined as follows - when an employee has completed his or 
her regular shift or period of work and has left the place of work and is requested to come 
back to the place of work. Any scheduling arrangements made prior to leaving the place of 
work are not considered callback time. 

ARTICLE 7 VACATION 

7.1 Vacations are authorized for all regular full-time employees shall accrue monthly, as follows: 



 
 

 
 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT – CUSTOMER SERVICE      PAGE 6 OF 24 
CITY OF SHELTON & IAMAW WOODWORKERS LODGE W-38 
REV. 11/14/2024 
 
 
  

Years of Service Hours Per Month Hours Per Year 
0 through 5 10 Hours 120 hours 
Beginning 6 through 10 14 Hours 168 hours 
Beginning 11 through 15 18 Hours 216 hours 
Beginning 16+ 22 Hours 264 hours  

Vacations are also authorized for all regular part-time employees on a pro-rated basis. 
Vacation time off is paid at the employee's base pay rate at the time of vacation. 

7.1.1 In determining years of service for the purpose of computing vacation leave, all continuous 
service with the City of Shelton is included. 

7.2 Where employment commences on or before the fifteenth day of any month, vacation leave 
shall accrue as of the first day of such month; where employment commences after the 
fifteenth day of any month, vacation leave shall accrue as of the first day of the following 
month. 

7.3 Vacation leave shall accrue and accumulate except during an unpaid leave of absence 
greater than 30 days. Accrued vacation is posted and available for use on a monthly basis. 
If an employee has more than 10 hours of leave without pay in any given month vacation 
accruals will be pro-rated. 

7.4 Employees may carry unused vacation time forward to the next calendar year. Employees 
shall be allowed to accrue their vacation time up to a maximum "cap" of two times (2x) of 
the employee's current accrual rate {e.g., an employee accruing 18 hours per month (216 
hours per year) is subject to a 432-hour accrual cap). Any hours accrued over the "cap" shall 
be forfeited by the employee. It shall be the sole responsibility of the employee to assure 
that their vacation accrual does not exceed the "cap" amount. 

7.5 Any vacation accrual over the "cap" shall only be allowed under the most critically 
extenuating circumstances, which shall have been pre-approved by the Department Head 
and the City Manager. 

7.6 Upon separation of employment, regular status employees who have completed their 
probationary or introductory period shall be paid for all eligible vacation time that has been 
earned through the last day of work. If employment ends on or before the fifteenth of the 
month, the employee does not get the vacation time accrual for that month. If employment 
ends after the fifteenth of the month, vacation time is accrued for that month and shall be 
paid. 

7.7 Refer to Personnel Policy 200-1360, Retirement Benefits, regarding vacation pay-off upon 
retirement. 

ARTICLE 8 SICK LEAVE 

8.1 RATE OF ACCRUAL - All full-time employees shall accrue sick leave at the rate of eight (8) 
hours per month. Accrued leave shall be posted on a monthly basis and shall be available 
for use when posted. 



 
 

 
 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT – CUSTOMER SERVICE      PAGE 7 OF 24 
CITY OF SHELTON & IAMAW WOODWORKERS LODGE W-38 
REV. 11/14/2024 
 
 
  

8.1.1 Employees who work less than full-time or less than a full month shall accrue sick leave on 
a prorated basis. 

8.1.2 When the employee is on leave without pay, they shall accrue sick leave consistent with City 
policy. 

8.2 CARRY OVER "CAP" - An employee may carry over a maximum of 960 hours of accrued 
sick leave to the following calendar year. Any accrued sick leave in excess of 960 hours shall 
be forfeited. 

8.3 UTILIZATION - Sick leave benefits are intended to provide income protection in the event of 
illness or injury. Sick leave may be granted by the (non-bargaining-unit) supervisor in the 
following instances: 

8.3.2 An absence resulting from an employee's mental or physical illness, injury, or health 
condition; to accommodate the employee's need for medical diagnosis, care, or treatment 
of a mental or physical illness, injury, or health condition; or an employee's need for 
preventive medical care. 

8.3.3 To allow the employee to provide care for a family member with a mental or physical illness, 
injury, or health condition; care of a family member who needs medical diagnosis, care, or 
treatment of a mental or physical illness, injury, or health condition; or care for a family 
member who needs preventive medical care. 

8.3.4 When the employee's place of business has been closed by order of a public official for any 
health-related reason, or when an employee's child's school or place of care has been 
closed for such a reason. 

8.3.5 An employee is authorized to use paid sick leave for absences that qualify for leave under 
the domestic violence leave act, chapter 49.76 RCW. 

8.3.6 At the discretion of the supervisor, an employee may be granted sick leave where the 
employee's presence on the job could jeopardize the health of fellow employees. 

8.3.7 The City may require verification from the employee for the qualifying reason(s) for using 
sick leave for any absence exceeding three (3) consecutive days. An employee may be 
disciplined, up to and including termination, for abusing the use of sick leave. 

8.3.8 Regardless of the reason for use, it shall be the responsibility of the employee to notify his 
or her supervisor before the scheduled start of the workday whenever possible. The direct 
supervisor must also be contacted on each additional day of absence unless the employee 
is instructed otherwise. 

8.4 SICK LEAVE BUY-BACK - Employees who have accrued a balance of a minimum of 480 
hours of sick leave may elect annually to redeem sick leave hours accumulated during the 
working year at the rate of $100.00 per day to a maximum annual buy-back of $1,200.00. 
This redemption shall be paid with the December paycheck. 

8.5 SEPARATION - Employees who separate from City employment voluntarily or because of 



 
 

 
 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT – CUSTOMER SERVICE      PAGE 8 OF 24 
CITY OF SHELTON & IAMAW WOODWORKERS LODGE W-38 
REV. 11/14/2024 
 
 
  

layoff shall be paid for unused sick leave in excess of 480 hours, cashed out at the 
employee's regular rate of pay, to the maximum of $6,000 total. 

8.6 DEFINITION OF FAMILY MEMBER - A "family member" is defined as (a) a child, including 
a biological, adopted, or foster child, stepchild, or a child to whom the employee stands in 
loco parentis, is a legal guardian, or is a de facto parent, regardless of age or dependency 
status; (b) a biological, adoptive, de facto, or foster parent, stepparent, or legal guardian of 
an employee or the employee's spouse or registered domestic partner, or a person who 
stood in loco parentis when the employee was a minor child; (c) a spouse; (d) a registered 
domestic partner; (e) a grandparent; (f) a grandchild; or (g) a sibling. 

ARTICLE 9 BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 

9.1 Upon the death of an employee’s immediate family member and with sufficient 
documentation, the employee is eligible for no more than three (3) workdays, not more than 
eight (8) hours per day, of paid bereavement leave. Bereavement leave must be used within 
30 calendar days of the date of death. Under extenuating circumstances, a supervisor may, 
at his/her discretion, approve the use of additional days of accrued sick or earned vacation 
leave for this purpose. 

9.2 Immediate family is defined as set forth in the City's Personnel Policy and Procedure Manual 

ARTICLE 10 FAMILY/MEDICAL LEAVE 

10.1 DEFINITION OF FAMILY/MEDICAL LEAVE - Subject to the definitions and requirements 
provided in state and federal law as currently written or hereafter amended regarding 
family/medical leave, an eligible employee may be granted up to twelve (12) work weeks of 
family or medical leave during any rolling 24-month period for one or more of the following 
events: 

• the birth and first-year care of a child; 
• the placement of a child for adoption or foster care in the employee's home; 
• the care of the employee's spouse, child or parent with a serious health condition; 
• or the employee's own serious health condition which renders him/her unable to 

perform the functions of his/her position. 

10.2 NOTICE REQUIREMENTS - The employee must request leave by contacting the supervisor 
thirty (30) days in advance when the leave is foreseeable. If the leave was not foreseeable, 
the employee must provide as much notice as practicable. 

10.3 DETERMINATIONS - Whether or not an employee requests family/medical leave, the City 
may determine that an employee's leave qualifies as family/medical leave and designate the 
leave as such. Employees may be required to provide a physician's certification on a form 
provided by the City. The City may request an objective medical examination to verify the 
need for leave and to determine whether the leave qualifies as family/medical leave. 

10.4 SUBSTITUTION OF PAID LEAVE - The City requires the employee to substitute accrued 
paid leave (sick leave, vacation leave, compensatory time) for unpaid FMLA leave. 



 
 

 
 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT – CUSTOMER SERVICE      PAGE 9 OF 24 
CITY OF SHELTON & IAMAW WOODWORKERS LODGE W-38 
REV. 11/14/2024 
 
 
  

10.5 ADJUSTMENT OF ANNIVERSARY DATE - An employee on family/medical leave will have 
his/her anniversary date adjusted accordingly for each (30) calendar days of unpaid leave. 

10.6 CONTINUATION OF GROUP MEDICAL INSURANCE - The employee may elect to 
continue group medical insurance during the period of such leave but must repay the 
employer's portion of premium expenses if he or she fails to return to City employment after 
taking family/medical leave. 

10.7 RIGHT TO RETURN TO SAME OR EQUIVALENT POSITION - Employees on approved 
family/medical leave are entitled to return to the same or equivalent position upon 
completion of the leave. 

10.8 WASHINGTON PAID FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE PROGRAM - The City complies with 
the Washington State Paid Family and Medical Leave (PFML) law, Title 50A RCW, a 
program administered by the Washington Employment Security Department (ESD) to 
provide paid leave benefits and job protection to eligible employees who need leave for 
certain family and medical reasons. Consistent with State law, PFML leave will run 
concurrently with the federal Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) if both are applicable. 

10.8.1.1 PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS - The PFML program is funded through premiums collected by 
ESD via payroll deductions and employer contributions. Each year, consistent with the law, 
employees will pay through payroll deductions the full cost of the premiums associated with 
family leave benefits and their portion of medical benefits. Should the State modify PFML 
premiums or the percentage of premiums subject to collection through payroll deductions 
during the term of this Agreement, the City will modify payroll practices to reflect such 
statutory changes. 

10.8.1.2 STATE PFML BENEFITS; INSURANCE - Employees may not supplement the State PFML 
benefits with accrued or other paid leave from the City and are not eligible for PFML benefits 
if they are receiving time-loss benefits through the workers' compensation system. When 
an employee is on leave and receiving PFML benefits from the State, the employee is 
deemed to be in unpaid status for purposes of the City's policies. Insurance coverage will 
be handled in the same manner as other unpaid leaves of absence, pursuant to the City's 
policy and subject to any laws requiring continuation of coverage. 

ARTICLE 11 HOLIDAYS 

11.1 List - All employees shall be entitled to the holidays listed below: 

Holiday  Date to be Observed 

New Year's Day  January 1st 
Martin Luther King Birthday  Third Monday in January 
President's Day   Third Monday in February 
Memorial Day   Last Monday in May 
Juneteenth    June 19th 
Independence Day  July 4th   
Labor Day    First Monday in September 



 
 

 
 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT – CUSTOMER SERVICE      PAGE 10 OF 24 
CITY OF SHELTON & IAMAW WOODWORKERS LODGE W-38 
REV. 11/14/2024 
 
 
  

Veteran's Day   November 11th 
Thanksgiving Day   Fourth Thursday in November 
Day after Thanksgiving  Day Following Thanksgiving 
Christmas    December 25th 
Two Floating Holidays  At Employee's Choice  

11.2 HOLIDAY OBSERVANCE 

11.2.1 FOR NON-COURT EMPLOYEES - For non-court employees, the City may designate 
another day of observance when a designated holiday falls on a Saturday or Sunday. 

A full-time employee assigned a work schedule that does not have a work scheduled on a 
holiday, will reschedule their working hours for the affected holiday week to schedule eight 
(8) hours of holiday pay. The affected employee must receive supervisor approval prior to 
adjusting their work schedule for the holiday. 

11.2.2 FOR COURT EMPLOYEES - For court employees, designated holidays will be observed 
consistent with the state court system. 

11.3 Normally, only those bargaining unit employees designated in advance by appropriate 
supervision will be required to work on a designated holiday. An employee who is required 
to work on a holiday shall have the option to be paid at the rate of one-and- one-half the 
regular rate of pay for all hours worked in addition to regular pay or to be given time off 
(compensatory time) at the time-and-one-half rate in lieu of overtime pay. If the employee 
elects time off it shall be taken at a time mutually agreed upon by employee and the 
supervisor. 

11.4 FLOATING HOLIDAYS - The two floating holidays (16 hours total for full-time employees) 
may be used pursuant to all of the following guidelines: 

11.4.1 The employee has been employed for a minimum of six months; and 

11.4.2 The request does not unduly disrupt service to the public and has received prior approval. 

11.4.3 Employees who work less than a full-time schedule shall have their two floating holidays 

prorated based on their regular work schedule. 

11.4.4 Floating holidays must be taken during the calendar year, or the days will be forfeited. 
Exceptions to this "use it or lose it" provision may only be granted by the City Manager and 
only when the employee can show that management has unduly denied the employee an 
opportunity to schedule and use his or her floating holiday(s). 

 

ARTICLE 12 NOTICE OF DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE 

12.1 JUST CAUSE - The City or Court may discipline and discharge employees for just cause. 



 
 

 
 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT – CUSTOMER SERVICE      PAGE 11 OF 24 
CITY OF SHELTON & IAMAW WOODWORKERS LODGE W-38 
REV. 11/14/2024 
 
 
  

12.2 NOTICE - The City or Court shall notify the bargaining unit employee of any punitive 

disciplinary action concurrent with commencement of the action. 

12.2.1 With the exception of instances of egregious misconduct, the City or Court agree that all non-
probationary employees shall be given two (2) weeks' notice, or two (2) weeks' pay prior to 
discharge. 

12.3 PROGRESSIVE DISCIPLINE - The City and Court agree that, with the exception of 
instances of serious misconduct, discipline will generally proceed from less severe to more 
severe (for example: oral warning, written warning, suspension without pay, and then 
termination). However, the City and Court retain the sole right to determine what level and 
type of discipline should be imposed. 

12.4 TERMINATION - Non-probationary employees shall be notified in writing of the reason(s) for 
discharge at the time of or prior to separation. The Union shall be furnished with a copy of 
the reasons for discharge concurrent with commencement of the action. 

12.5 PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEES - The City or Court may separate probationary employees 
with or without cause and is not subject to Article 13 (Grievance). 

ARTICLE 13 GRIEVANCE 

13.1 PROCEDURE - A grievance shall be any disagreement as to the interpretation or application 
of a specific provision of this Agreement. No grievance shall be considered or processed 
unless it is submitted within fifteen (15) business days after the occurrence of the event 
giving rise to the grievance or within fifteen (15) business days after the employee or the 
Union has or should have obtained knowledge of the occurrence of the event giving rise to 
the grievance. In no case will the City or Court consider a grievance unless it is submitted 
within sixty (60) calendar days of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance 
regardless of any claims of knowledge or notice. Verbal warnings or verbal reprimands may 
not be grieved. 

13.2 STEP ONE 

13.2.1 For non-Court employees, the employee or their steward shall bring the grievance to the 
attention of the (non-bargaining unit) supervisor. The grievance must be submitted in writing 
and must specify the specific provision(s) of this Agreement believed to have been violated, 
the manner in which the violation is alleged to have occurred, the names of any relevant 
witnesses, and the remedy requested. The supervisor will investigate the grievance and 
attempt to effectuate an equitable solution. 

13.2.2 For Court employees, the employee shall submit the grievance to the Court Administrator. 
The Court Administrator shall respond to the grievance in accordance with Step One, above. 

13.3 STEP TWO 

13.3.1 For non-Court employees, if an equitable solution is not reached at the expiration of fifteen 
(15) business days, the grievant may appeal the matter to the director of the appropriate 



 
 

 
 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT – CUSTOMER SERVICE      PAGE 12 OF 24 
CITY OF SHELTON & IAMAW WOODWORKERS LODGE W-38 
REV. 11/14/2024 
 
 
  

department. The Step Two grievance must be submitted in writing and must specify the 
specific provision(s) of this agreement believed to have been violated, the manner in which 
the violation is alleged to have occurred, the names of any relevant witnesses, and the 
remedy requested. The department head or designee will investigate the grievance and reply 
in writing within fifteen (15) business days. 

13.3.2 For Court employees, the Court Administrator will promptly forward a copy of any Step 2 
grievance to the Presiding Judge. If the grievance involves subject matter delegated to the 
Court under GR 29(f), the Presiding Judge shall respond to the grievance in accordance with 
Step Two, above. 

13.4 STEP THREE 

13.4.1 For non-Court employees, if the City's director of the department's response does not satisfy 
the grievant, the matter may be appealed within fifteen (15) business days of receipt of the 
director's written response to the City Manager. The Step Three grievance must be submitted 
in writing and must specify the specific provision(s) of this Agreement believed to have been 
violated, the manner in which the violation is alleged to have occurred, the names of any 
relevant witnesses, and the remedy requested. The City Manager or designee will 
investigate the grievance and reply in writing within fifteen (15) business days. 

13.4.2 For Court employees, the City Manager will promptly forward a copy of any Step 3 grievance 
to the Presiding Judge. If the grievance involves subject matter delegated to the Court under 
GR 29(f), the Court's response at Step Two shall be adopted for Step Three unless the Court 
determines otherwise. 

13.5 STEP FOUR - If the City's response does not satisfy the Union, the Union may request 
arbitration. The request for arbitration must be submitted to the City Manager within fifteen 
(15) business days of receipt of the Step Three response. The Union's request for arbitration 
must be submitted in writing and must specify the specific provision(s) of this agreement 
believed to have been violated, the manner in which the violation is alleged to have occurred, 
and the remedy requested. 

If the grievance involves a Court employee and the subject matter is delegated to the 
Presiding Judge under GR 29(f), the Presiding Judge shall be involved in the arbitration 
process and may substitute entirely for the Employer, depending on the subject matter 
involved. 

Within fifteen (15) business days of notice to the City Manager, the Union must submit a 
request to the Public Employment Relations Commission (PERC) to certify a panel of nine 
(9) arbitrators with a business office in Washington or Oregon. Alternatively, before the 
fifteen (15) business day period has expired, the Union and the City may mutually agree 
upon an arbitrator. If a PERC panel is used, after flipping a coin to determine which party 
goes first, the parties shall alternately eliminate the name of one person on the list until only 
one name remains. The person whose name was not eliminated shall be the arbitrator, and 
arbitration shall commence on a mutually acceptable date. 

13.6 AUTHORITY OF THE ARBITRATOR - Questions of arbitrability shall be decided by the 
arbitrator. Only after a decision is made that the matter is procedurally arbitrable or that such 
preliminary determination cannot reasonably be made, the arbitrator shall proceed to hear 



 
 

 
 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT – CUSTOMER SERVICE      PAGE 13 OF 24 
CITY OF SHELTON & IAMAW WOODWORKERS LODGE W-38 
REV. 11/14/2024 
 
 
  

the merits of the dispute. The arbitrator shall have no authority to rule contrary to, amend, 
modify, nullify, add to, or subtract from the provisions of this Agreement. The arbitrator shall 
have no authority to amend or modify a penalty or other management action except by 
finding a contractual violation. The arbitrator shall hold a hearing so that both parties may 
present their respective cases. The decision of the arbitrator shall be rendered within thirty 
(30) calendar days after the close of the hearing. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final 
and binding upon the parties to the grievance provided the decision does not involve action 
by the City which is beyond its jurisdiction. 

13.7 COSTS AND EXPENSES - Expenses incident to the services of the arbitrator shall be borne 
equally by the parties regardless of the decision of the arbitrator and for court reporter 
expenses. Each party shall be responsible for compensation of its own representatives, 
attorneys and witnesses. 

13.8 TIME LIMITS - Time limits referred to in the Article may be waived by mutual written 
agreement. It is the intent of the parties that all procedures and timelines set forth herein 
shall be strictly followed. If the City fails to timely respond during the grievance procedure, 
the grievance shall automatically move to the next grievance step. If the grievant or the 
Union fail to timely advance the grievance to the next step, the grievance right is waived, 
and the grievance is abandoned forever. 

13.9 In the case of disciplinary actions, both appealable to the Civil Service Commission and 
grievable under the terms of this contract, a written election of remedies shall be made after 
receipt of the Step 3 response. An employee may elect to either pursue an appeal to the 
Civil Service Commission or continue with the contractual grievance procedure, but not both. 
Time limits will be extended for either side, if necessary, to complete a reasonable 
investigation before the election of remedies is made. Appeal for disciplinary actions shall 
proceed directly to the Civil Service Commission pursuant to the rules of the Commission or 
to Step 3 as provided in this agreement. 

ARTICLE 14 HEALTH AND WELFARE INSURANCE BENEFITS 

14.1 The Employer will make available to all full-time employees and their enrolled dependents a 
choice between four Association of Washington Cities health care plans: (1) HealthFirst 250, 
(2) KP200, (3) a HealthFirst High Deductible plan, or (4) a Kaiser Permanente High 
Deductible plan. 

14.2 The City's premium share for medical benefits for the duration of the agreement is reflected 
in Appendix D. 

14.3 DENTAL COVERAGE - The City shall provide and pay all premiums for dental insurance for 
full time employees and their enrolled dependents through the Association of Washington 
Cities Dental Plan E. 

14.4 VISION COVERAGE - The Employer shall pay 100% of the premiums for the VSP vision 
care plan. 

14.5 DISABILITY COVERAGE - The City shall provide long-term disability coverage to each 
employee covered by this Agreement. The plan shall provide a 60% benefit payable after a 
ninety (90) day elimination period. 



 
 

 
 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT – CUSTOMER SERVICE      PAGE 14 OF 24 
CITY OF SHELTON & IAMAW WOODWORKERS LODGE W-38 
REV. 11/14/2024 
 
 
  

14.6 LIFE INSURANCE - The City will provide, on behalf of each full-time employee, term-life 
insurance in the face amount of $50,000, $10,000 coverage for the employee's spouse, and 
$2,000 for each dependent child. However, at no time shall the amounts provided violate the 
provisions of RCW 48.24.030. The City shall pay the full premium cost for the above life 
insurance. 

14.7 Employees who work less than full-time or less than a full month shall accrue insurance 
benefits on a prorated basis. When the employee is on leave without pay, their eligibility for 
and health and welfare benefits shall be consistent with City policy. 

14.8 The Employees may establish a Retiree Medical Savings Plan through employee 
contributions. 

ARTICLE 15 WAGES AND LONGEVITY 

15.1 Effective January 1, 2025, the City shall provide a 3.0% general wage adjustment to all 
employees. 

15.2 Effective January 1, 2026, the City shall provide a 2.5% general wage adjustment to all 
employees. 

15.3 Effective January 1, 2027, the City shall provide a 2.25% general wage adjustment to all 
employees except if the CPI-U, West B/C region, from June 2025-to-June 2026, exceeds 
3.0%; the parties will initiate scheduling by August 1, 2026, to bargain wages only to apply 
for 2027. For example, if the relevant year-over-year CPI-U is 3.1%, the parties will open the 
Agreement to bargain wages only. If the relevant CPI-U is 3.0% or lower, employees will 
receive a 2.25% general wage adjustment.   

15.4 Progression through the above step plan shall be based upon satisfactory performance as 
determined by the Employer. 

15.5  ANNUAL STEP INCREASES - New employees or existing employees who transferred or 
promoted into positions requiring an additional six-month probationary period, shall receive 
a step increase upon successful completion of the probationary period. For employees that, 
under Article 21.1, are holding a Civil Service position, the initial step increase shall be at the 
six-month anniversary. At no time shall step increases or compensation exceed the 
maximum of the grade. 

 

15.5.1  STARTING WAGE AND INCREASES - Employees will be placed on the current   
salary  schedule. Increases per the schedule will be based on receiving a satisfactory 
performance appraisal and in consideration of completing all or part of the employee's 
orientation to the job at the discretion of the department director. The employee will be 
eligible for step increases every six months for the first two years of employment only, 
followed by yearly increases thereafter. 

 



 
 

 
 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT – CUSTOMER SERVICE      PAGE 15 OF 24 
CITY OF SHELTON & IAMAW WOODWORKERS LODGE W-38 
REV. 11/14/2024 
 
 
  

15.5.2 STEP INCREASE - Based on the completion of a satisfactory introductory period and  
performance appraisal, step increases shall follow the salary schedule with each 
employee receiving at least an annual step increase on the anniversary date. Step 
increases may not exceed the maximum of the range. The City Manager retains the 
discretion to implement a step increase at any time. 

15.5 PROMOTIONS - If an employee is promoted through re-classification of a position to a 
higher level or through appointment to another bargaining unit position at a higher level, 
his/her salary shall be increased to the greater of the minimum of the new salary grade or 
105% of the previous salary. 

15.6 DEMOTIONS - An employee who is demoted for disciplinary or voluntary reasons will 
receive a reduction in salary as determined by the department director and City Manager so 
that the new salary is within the appropriate grade for the new classification. 

15.7 HIRING SALARY - The hiring salary is solely determined by the City. New employees 
generally, will begin their employment at the minimum of the grade for the classification. With 
the approval of the City Manager, a new employee may be started beyond the minimum of 
the grade if the City Manager is convinced that the best qualified applicant has experience 
and qualifications exceeding advertised requirements. 

15.8   Part-time employees shall receive the hourly equivalent to the applicable monthly wage rates  
for all hours worked. For the purpose of this section, hourly rate shall be defined as the 
monthly rate of pay divided by 173.33. 

15.9 LONGEVITY - The City agrees to the following longevity pay scale which shall be added 
to the monthly salary of each employee eligible: 

Starting 5th year    $50.00 
Starting 10th year    $100.00 
Starting 15th year    $150.00 
Starting 20th year    $200.00 
Starting 25th year    $250.00 
Starting 30th year    $300.00 
Starting 35th year    $350.00 
 

15.10 TUITION REIMBURSEMENT - Employees may apply for tuition reimbursement through 
Policy 200-1880 with an annual cap of $1,000. 

15.11 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE: Code Enforcement and Animal Control Officers:  

The City will provide Code Enforcement and Animal Control Officers with protective 
equipment (e.g., ballistic vest, oleoresin capsicum spray, work gloves, protective 
apron/smock/bite-resistant protective sleeves) and replace them as needed. Officers are 
responsible for purchasing required and authorized uniforms and footwear with their uniform 
allowance. Newly hired officers will receive a $800 uniform allowance and then are eligible 
for the next regular $400 installment following at least 12 months of employment. For 
example, an officer beginning employment in March would receive a $800 allowance and be 
eligible for a $400 allowance in July of the subsequent calendar year. Thereafter, the officer 



 
 

 
 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT – CUSTOMER SERVICE      PAGE 16 OF 24 
CITY OF SHELTON & IAMAW WOODWORKERS LODGE W-38 
REV. 11/14/2024 
 
 
  

will receive the uniform allowance of $400 each on their January and July payroll. 

ARTICLE 16 DEFERRED COMPENSATION MATCH 

16.1 The Employer shall contribute matching funds into one of the City's adopted deferred 
compensation programs as follows: for each dollar contributed by the employee, the 
Employer shall contribute dollar-for-dollar matching funds to a maximum of six and two- 
tenths percent (6.2%) of the employee's regular rate of pay. The employee may contribute 
additional funds with no Employer match as determined or restricted by the adopted deferred 
compensation plan. 

ARTICLE 17 SAVINGS CLAUSE 

17.1 Should any provisions of this Agreement or the applications of such provisions be rendered 
or declared invalid by a court action or by reason of any existing or subsequently enacted 
legislation, the remaining parts or portion of this Agreement shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

ARTICLE 18 ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

18.1 The parties acknowledge that each as had the unlimited right to make proposals and to 
negotiate fully the terms and conditions of this Agreement and any matter deemed a proper 
subject for a collective bargaining agreement. The results of this exercise of rights are set 
forth in this agreement. 

18.2 The agreement expressed herein in writing constitutes the entire agreement between the 
parties, and no oral or written statements shall supersede any of its provisions unless 
mutually agreed upon by both parties and an amendment or revision to said article or section 
is properly adopted by both the Union and the City. 

ARTICLE 19 CONTRACTING/SUBCONTRACTING 

19.1 It is the general policy of the City to continue to utilize its employees to perform work that 
they are qualified to perform. However, the City reserves the right to contract out and/or 
eliminate any work it deems necessary in the interests of efficiency, economy, improved 
work product, or emergency. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent the City from exercising 
its right to contract out and/or eliminate any work or functions performed by employees in 
this bargaining unit. 

19.2 Except where an emergency situation exists, before the City changes its policy involving the 
overall elimination, contracting, and/or subcontracting of work in a general area, where such 
policy change will result in the loss of work and/or layoff of more than one bargaining unit 
employee, the City will notify the Union of the elimination and/or contracting of such work or 
functions, provide the Union with a 30-day period for comments, and consider the Union's 
comments before making a final determination. 

19.3 The City agrees that it will not layoff bargaining unit employee to replace them with 
contracted labor if the work/function will continue to be performed/provided by the City of 



 
 

 
 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT – CUSTOMER SERVICE      PAGE 17 OF 24 
CITY OF SHELTON & IAMAW WOODWORKERS LODGE W-38 
REV. 11/14/2024 
 
 
  

Shelton. This provision does not apply to inter-agency contracts with other governmental 
entities. 

ARTICLE 20 NO STRIKE, NO LOCKOUT 

20.1 Neither the Union, nor its officers, agents, representatives, or members shall instigate, 
promote, cause, engage in or authorize its members to instigate, promote, cause or engage 
in any strike, sympathy strike, shutdown, slowdown, picketing or any other stoppage of work 
or interference of any kind with operations during the life of this agreement. 

20.2 In the event of unauthorized interruptions, the Union agrees it will join the City in requiring 
members to return to work immediately. Upon failure, employees who engage in any of the 
foregoing actions shall be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including suspension or 
discharge. No individual shall receive any portion of his or her salary or benefits while 
engaging in activities in violation of this Article. 

20.3 There shall be no lockout by the City during the term of the Agreement. 

ARTICLE 21 SENIORITY 

21.1 PROBATION - All new employees, including rehires, shall be considered probationary 
employees and must successfully complete a six- (6) month probationary period before 
attaining regular employee status. During the probationary period, the probationary 
employee may be disciplined or discharged at the sole discretion of the City and such action 
shall not be subject to appeal to the grievance procedure. Civil Service employees will have 
a twelve (12) months probationary period. 

21.2 PROMOTIONS AND TRANSFERS. When a non-Civil Service vacancy within the bargaining 
unit is created and the City decides to fill the vacancy, bargaining unit employees with the 
necessary qualifications shall have a three-business-day period to apply for the position 
before the vacant position is advertised externally. The three-business-day period is for 
consideration only, and the City retains all rights to select and hire personnel. 

21.3 PROCEDURES FOR REDUCTION IN PERSONNEL. Employees will be laid off from the 
affected classification (based on job title) within the department in accordance with their 
seniority and their ability to perform the remaining work available without further training. 
Ability to perform the work shall take into consideration the employee's training, experience, 
skills, educational requirements (where appropriate), and specific licenses and certifications 
related to the job. When two or more employees have relatively equal qualifications to do 
the work without further training, the employee(s) with the least seniority will be laid off first. 

21.4 RECALL PROCEDURE. Employees shall be recalled in the reverse order of layoff by 
classifications within the department. The City has no obligation to recall an employee after 
he or she has been on continuous layoff for a period of one year. Also, if an employee does 
not return to work when recalled, the City shall have no further obligation to recall the 
individual. 

21.5 Any employee elected as a delegate on behalf of the Union necessitating leave, may at 



 
 

 
 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT – CUSTOMER SERVICE      PAGE 18 OF 24 
CITY OF SHELTON & IAMAW WOODWORKERS LODGE W-38 
REV. 11/14/2024 
 
 
  

the discretion of the City Manager/Court Administrator or designee be granted vacation 
leave or leave without pay by the City, provided sufficient advance notice is given so that 
such employee's work may be properly cared for. 

21.6 Seniority shall be retained and accumulated for any employee who has been promoted 

to a position out of the bargaining unit for a period of twelve (12) months, at the end of which 
time his/her seniority shall be forfeited. 

ARTICLE 22 EMERGENCY COOPERATION 

22.1 The City and the Union agree to work in partnership toward a flexible and expeditious 
response to man-made and natural disasters and emergencies, including potential 
emergency conditions arising from computer problems. For the purpose of this Article 
"emergency or disaster" shall have the meaning as provided in RCW 38.52.010 (6). Under 
conditions of emergency or disaster, the Union agrees that in accordance with its 
management rights provisions of this Agreement the City may take the following emergency 
actions: (1) assign out-of-class work to bargaining unit employees; (2) assign bargaining unit 
work to excluded employees and/or management employees; (3) assign duties to bargaining 
unit employees which are not within the job descriptions of the employee(s); (4) hire 
temporary and contract employees to do bargaining unit work when no qualified bargaining 
unit employee is available; (5) in the event of a serious revenue shortfall resulting from an 
emergency or disaster, the City may offer bargaining unit employees the option of a 
temporary reduction in their compensation in lieu of reduction in force. Under the conditions 
of an emergency or disaster, the Union agrees that so long as the emergency actions 
described herein are undertaken during the existence of an emergency or disaster (with a 
City Commission declaration of an emergency or disaster as soon as practicable), or the 
period of recovery immediately following an emergency or disaster, such action shall not 
constitute a violation of any terms or conditions of the Agreement. 

ARTICLE 23 DURATION 

23.1 This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect January 1, 2025, through December 31, 
 2027. Written notice shall be provided within 30days of ratification by the parties. The union 
 and City shall give written notice on or before September 1st of any year the Agreement is 
 due to be amended or terminated; provided, that if notice if modification or termination is 
 given, this Agreement shall remain in effect consistent with RCW 41.56.123. On notice,
 the parties shall meet and negotiate in good faith to arrive at agreed modification or new 
 contract to be effective as the expiration of the term thereof.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as their free and  
voluntary act on the dates set forth below. 

 

 

 



 
 

 
 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT – CUSTOMER SERVICE      PAGE 19 OF 24 
CITY OF SHELTON & IAMAW WOODWORKERS LODGE W-38 
REV. 11/14/2024 
 
 
  

CITY OF SHELTON      
 
 
 
 
 

 
_________________________         _________      ___________________         __________ 
Mark Ziegler    Date  [INSERT]   Date  
City Manager      Union President 
 
 
                                                                                   ___________________         __________ 

Larry Bickett   Date 
Business Representative 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 
 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT – CUSTOMER SERVICE      PAGE 20 OF 24 
CITY OF SHELTON & IAMAW WOODWORKERS LODGE W-38 
REV. 11/20/2024 
 

APPENDIX A 
2025 Wage Schedule 

 
 
 

SALARY SCHEDULE Base Min. End of 6 
Mths. End of 1 Yr. End of 18 

Mths. 
End of 2 

Yrs. 
End of 3 

Yrs. 
End of 4 

Yrs. 
End of 
5 Yrs. 

End of 6 
Yrs. 

Position Grade Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E Step F Step G Step H Step I 

Customer Service Representative II 14 

 
44,091.21 
3,674.27 

21.20 
  

 
46,295.77 
3,857.98 

22.26 
  

48,610.55 
4,050.88 

23.77 

51,041.08 
4,253.42 

24.54  

52,572.31 
4,381.03 

25.28  

54,149.48 
4,512.46 

26.03 

55,773.96 
4,647.83 

26.81 

57,447.19 
4,787.27 

27.62 

59,170.60 
4,930.88 

28.45 

Customer Service Specialist II 
Administrative Support Assistant 15 

46,143.95 
3,845.33 

22.18 

48,451.14 
4,037.60 

23.29 

50,873.70 
4,239.47 

24.46 

53,417.38 
4,451.45 

25.68 

55,019.90 
4,584.99 

26.45 

56,670.50 
4,722.54 

27.25 

58,370.61 
4,864.22 

28.06 

60,121.73 
5,010.14 

28.90 

61,925.38 
5,160.45 

29.77  

Permit & Applications Coordinator 
Judicial Specialist 
Animal Shelter Tech Lead 

16 
48,472.72 
4,039.39 

23.30 

50,896.36 
4,241.36 

24.47 

53,441.18 
4,453.43 

25.69 

56,113.22 
4,676.10 

26.98 

57,796.63 
4,816.39 

27.79 

59,530.53 
4,960.88 

28.62 

61,316.45 
5,109.70 

29.48 

63,155.94 
5,263.00 

30.36 

65,050.62 
5,420.88 

31.27 

Records/Evidence Clerk 17 
52,699.13 
4,391.59 

25.34 

55,333.63 
4,611.14 

26.60 

58,100.32 
4,841.69 

27.93 

61,005.33 
5,083.78 

29.33 

62,835.49 
5,236.29 

30.21 

64,720.55 
5,393.38 

31.12 

66,662.16 
5,555.18 

32.05 

68,662.03 
5,721.84 

33.01 

70,721.89 
5,893.49 

34.00  

Sr. Judicial Specialist 18 
55,916.96 
4,659.75 

26.88 

58,713.10 
4,892.76 

28.23 

61,648.87 
5,137.41 

29.64 

64,731.32 
5,394.28 

31.12 

66,672.80 
5,556.07 

32.05 

68,672.98 
5,722.75 

33.02 

70,733.17 
5,894.43 

34.01 

72,855.16 
6,071.26 

35.03 

75,040.82 
6,253.40 

36.08  
Animal Control Officer 
Code Enfoncement Officer 
Sr. Records/Evidence Clerk 
  

19 
58,711.93 
4,892.66 

28.23 

61,647.52 
5,137.29 

29.64 

64,729.89 
5,394.16 

31.12 

67,966.39 
5,663.87 

32.68 

70,005.37 
5,833.78 

33.66 

72,105.53 
6,008.79 

34.67 

74,268.71 
6,189.06 

35.71 

76,496.76 
6,374.73 

36.78 

78,791.67 
6,565.97 

37.88 

 20 61,648.87 
5,137.41 

29.64 

64,731.32 
5,394.28 

31.12 

67,967.88 
5,663.99 

32.68 

71,366.27 
5,947.19 

34.31 

73,507.26 
6,125.61 

35.34 

75,712.48 
6,309.37 

36.40 

77,983.85 
6,498.65 

37.49 

80,323.37 
6,693.61 

38.62 

82,733.07 
6,894.42 

39.78 

Sr. Code Enforcement Officer 
21 64,718.79 

5,393.23 
31.11 

67,955.20 
5,662.93 

32.67 

71,352.96 
5,946.08 

34.30 

74,920.61 
6,243.38 

36.02 

77,168.23 
6,430.69 

37.10 

79,483.27 
6,623.61 

38.21 

81,867.77 
6,822.31 

39.36 

84,323.80 
7,026.98 

40.54 

86,853.51 
7,237.79 

41.76 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT – CUSTOMER SERVICE      PAGE 21 OF 24 
CITY OF SHELTON & IAMAW WOODWORKERS LODGE W-38 
REV. 11/20/2024 
 

APPENDIX B 
2026 Wage Schedule 

 
 

SALARY SCHEDULE Base Min. End of 6 
Mths. End of 1 Yr. End of 18 

Mths. 
End of 2 

Yrs. 
End of 3 

Yrs. 
End of 4 

Yrs. 
End of 
5 Yrs. 

End of 6 
Yrs. 

Position Grade Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E Step F Step G Step H Step I 

Customer Service Representative II 14 

 
45,193.49 
3,766.12 

21.73 
 
  

 
47,453.16 
39,954.43 

22.81 
 
  

49,825.82 
4,152.15 

23.95 

52,317.11 
4,359.76 

25.15  

53,886.62 
4,490.55 

25.91  

55,503.22 
4,625.27 

26.68 

57,168.31 
4,764.03 

27.48 

58,883.37 
4,906.95 

28.31 

60,649.87 
5,054.16 

29.16 

Customer Service Specialist II 
Administrative Support Assistant 15 

47,297.54 
3,941.46 

22.74 

49,662.42 
4,138.54 

23.88 

52,145.54 
4,345.46 

25.07 

54,752.82 
4,562.73 

26.32 

56,395.40 
4,699.62 

27.11 

58,087.26 
4,840.60 

27.93 

59,829.88 
4,985.82 

28.76 

61,624.77 
5,135.40 

29.63 

63,473.52 
5,289.46 

30.52  

Permit & Applications Coordinator 
Judicial Specialist 
Animal Shelter Tech Lead 

16 
49,684.54 
4,140.38 

23.89 

52,168.77 
4,347.40 

25.08 

54,777.21 
4,564.71 

26.34 

57,516.05 
4,793.00 

27.65 

59,241.55 
4,936.80 

28.48 

61,018.80 
5,084.90 

29.34 

62,849.36 
5,237.45 

30.22 

64,734.84 
5,394.57 

31.12 

66,676.88 
5,556.41 

32.06 

Records/Evidence Clerk 17 
54,016.61 
4,501.38 

25.97 

56,716.97 
4,726.41 

27.27 

59,552.83 
4,962.74 

28.63 

62,530.46 
5,210.87 

30.06 

64,406.38 
5,367.20 

30.96 

66,338.56 
5,528.21 

31.89 

68,328.72 
5,694.06 

32.85 

70,378.58 
5,864.88 

33.84 

72,489.94 
6,040.83 

34.85  

Sr. Judicial Specialist 18 
57,314.88 
4,776.24 

27.56 

60,180.93 
5,015.08 

28.93 

63,190.09 
5,265.84 

30.38 

66,349.60 
5,529.13 
31,.90 

68,339.62 
5,694.97 

32.86 

70,389.81 
5,865.82 

33.84 

72,501.50 
6,041.79 

34.86 

74,676.54 
6,223.05 

35.90 

76,916.84 
6,409.74 

36.98  
Animal Control Officer 
Code Enfoncement Officer 
Sr. Records/Evidence Clerk 
  

19 
60,179.73 
5,014.98 

28.93 

63,188.70 
5,265.73 

30.38 

66,348.14 
5,529.01 

31.90 

69,665.55 
5,805.46 

33.49 

71,755.50 
5,979.63 

34.50 

73,908.17 
6,159.01 

35.53 

76,125.42 
6,343.79 

36.60 

78,409.18 
6,534.10 

37.70 

80,761.46 
6,730.12 

38.83 

 20 63,190.09 
5,265.84 

30.38 

66,349.60 
5,529.13 
31,.90 

69,667.07 
5,805.46 

33.49 

73,150.43 
6,095.87 

35.17 

75,344.95 
6,278.75 

36.22 

77,605.29 
6,467.11 

37.31 

79,933.45 
6,661.12 

38.43 

82,331.46 
6,860.95 

39.58 

84,801.40 
7,066.78 

40.77 

Sr. Code Enforcement Officer 
21 66,336.75 

5,528.06 
31.89 

69,654.08 
5,804.51 

33.49 

73,136.78 
6,094.73 

35.16 

76,793.63 
6,399.47 

36.92 

79,097.44 
6,591.45 

38.03 

81,470.35 
6,789.20 

39.17 

83,914.46 
6,992.87 

40.34 

86,431.89 
7,202.66 

41.55 

89,024.85 
7,418.74 

42.80 



 
 

 
 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT – CUSTOMER SERVICE      PAGE 22 OF 24 
CITY OF SHELTON & IAMAW WOODWORKERS LODGE W-38 
REV. 11/20/2024 
 

APPENDIX C 
2027 Wage Schedule 

 
 

SALARY SCHEDULE Base Min. End of 6 
Mths. End of 1 Yr. End of 18 

Mths. 
End of 2 

Yrs. 
End of 3 

Yrs. 
End of 4 

Yrs. 
End of 
5 Yrs. 

End of 6 
Yrs. 

Position Grade Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E Step F Step G Step H Step I 

Customer Service Representative II 14 
46,210.34 
3,850.86 

22,22  

 
48,520.86 
4,043.40 

23.33 
 
  

50,946.90 
4,245.57 

24.49 

53,494.24 
4,457.85 

25.72  

55,099.07 
4,591.59 

26.49  

56,752.04 
4,729.34 

27.28 

58,454.60 
4,871.22 

28.10 

60,208.24 
5,017.35 

28.95 

62,14.49 
5,167.87 

29.81 

Customer Service Specialist II 
Administrative Support Assistant 15 

48,361.74 
4,030.14 

23.25 

50,779.83 
4,231.65 

24.41 

53,318.81 
4,443.23 

25.63 

55,984.76 
4,665.40 

26.92 

57,664.30 
4,805.36 

27.72 

59,394.22 
4,949.52 

28.55 

61,176.05 
5,098.00 

29.41 

63,011.33 
5,250.94 

30.29 

64,901.67 
5,408.47 

31.20  

Permit & Applications Coordinator 
Judicial Specialist 
Animal Shelter Tech Lead 

16 
50,802.44 
4,233.54 

24.42 

53,342.56 
4,445.21 

25.65 

56,009.69 
4,667.47 

26.93 

58,810.16 
4,900.85 

28.27 

60,574.49 
5,047.87 

29.12 

62,391.72 
5,199.31 

30.00 

64,263.47 
5,355.29 

30.90 

66,191.37 
5,515.95 

31.82 

68,177.11 
5,681.43 

32.78 

Records/Evidence Clerk 17 
55,231.99 
4,602.67 

26.55 

57,993.10 
4,832.76 

27.88 

60,892.76 
5,074.40 

29.28 

63,937.40 
5,328.12 

30.74 

65,855.52 
5,487.96 

31.66 

67,831.18 
5,652.60 

32.61 

69,866.11 
5,822.18 

33.59 

71,962.10 
5,996.84 

34.60 

74,120.96 
6,176.75 

35.64  

Sr. Judicial Specialist 18 
58,604.47 
4,883.71 

28.18 

61,535.00 
5,127.92 

29.58 

64,611.87 
5,384.32 

31.06 

67,842.47 
5,653.54 

32.62 

69,877.26 
5,823.11 

33.59 

71,973.58 
5,997.80 

34.60 

74,132.79 
6,177.73 

35.64 

76,354.76 
6,363.06 

36.71 

78,647.47 
6,553.96 

37.81  
Animal Control Officer 
Code Enfoncement Officer 
Sr. Records/Evidence Clerk 
  

19 
61,533.77 
5,127.81 

29.58 

64,610.45 
5,384.20 

31.06 

67,840.97 
5,653.41 

32.62 

71,233.02 
5,936.09 

34.25 

73,370.00 
6,114.17 

35.27 

75,571.10 
6,297.59 

36,33 

77,838.25 
6,486.52 

37.42 

80,173.39 
6,681.12 

38.54 

82,578.59 
6,881.56 

39.70 

 20 64,611.87 
5,384.32 

31.06 

67,842.47 
5,653.54 

32.62 

71,234.58 
5,936.22 

34.25 

74,796.31 
6,233.03 

35.96 

77,040.21 
6,420.02 

37.04 

79,351.41 
6,612.62 

38.15 

81,731.95 
6,811.00 

39.29 

84,183.91 
7,015.33 

40.47 

86,709.43 
7,225.79 

41.69 

Sr. Code Enforcement Officer 
21 67,829.33 

5,652.44 
32.61 

71,221.30 
5,935.11 

34.24 

74,782.36 
6,231.86 

35.95 

78,521.48 
6,543.46 

37.75 

80,877.13 
6,739.76 

38.88 

83,303.44 
6,941.95 

40.05 

85,802.54 
7,150.21 

41.25 

88,376.61 
7,364.72 

42.49 

91,027.90 
7,585.66 

43.76 



 
 

 
 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT – CUSTOMER SERVICE      PAGE 23 OF 24 
CITY OF SHELTON & IAMAW WOODWORKERS LODGE W-38 
REV. 11/20/2024 
 

APPENDIX D 

Medical Insurance and Health Reimbursement Account 

D.1  Effective with the January 2025 payroll, based on the employee and dependents' medical 
insurance enrollment, the Employer shall contribute a flat dollar amount of up to one-thousand-
and-eight-hundred-and-fifty-dollars ($1,850.00) per month toward the cost of medical insurance. 
Employees not utilizing the full $1,850.00 may start a HRA and request the City deposit the 
difference up to $75.00 per month into the HRA. 

In no case shall the total contribution the City will pay for medical premiums and an HRA exceed 
$1,850.00. Employees who choose a High Deductible plan may request that the City contribute 
50% of the savings to the City between HealthFirst 250 and the High Deductible plan into an 
HSA. 

D.2  Effective with the January 2026 payroll, based on the employee and dependents' medical 
insurance enrollment, the Employer shall contribute a flat dollar amount of up to one-
thousand-and-nine-hundred-dollars ($1,900.00) per month toward the cost of medical 
insurance. Employees not utilizing the full $1,900.00 may start a HRA and request the City 
deposit the difference up to $75.00 per month into the HRA. 

In no case shall the total contribution the City will pay for medical premiums and an HRA exceed 
$1,900.00. Employees who choose a High Deductible plan may request that the City contribute 
50% of the savings to the City between HealthFirst 250 and the High Deductible plan into an 
HSA. 

D.3  Effective with the January 2027 payroll, based on the employee and dependents' medical 
insurance enrollment, the Employer shall contribute a flat dollar amount of up to one-thousand-
and-nine-hundred-and-fifty-dollars ($1,950.00) per month toward the cost of medical insurance. 
Employees not utilizing the full $1,950.00 may start a HRA and request the City deposit the 
difference up to $75.00 per month into the HRA. 

In no case shall the total contribution the City will pay for medical premiums and an HRA exceed 
$1,950.00. Employees who choose a High Deductible plan may request that the City contribute 
50% of the savings to the City between HealthFirst 250 and the High Deductible plan into an 
HSA. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT – CUSTOMER SERVICE      PAGE 24 OF 24 
CITY OF SHELTON & IAMAW WOODWORKERS LODGE W-38 
REV. 11/20/2024 
 

 
 

APPENDIX E 
 
 
The Employer agrees to form a committee within three months of this Agreement’s full 
ratification. The City and Union will each appoint one member to the committee to review 
bargaining unit positions’ current pay grades, workload, and updated training needs. The City 
and Union can also bring one subject matter to committee meetings. 
 
 
 
 
 


	1 Agenda_20241203
	2 2024_25 Looking Ahead
	3 Vouchers_20241203
	4 DRAFT Minutes_20241015
	COUNCILMEMBERS AND PERSONNEL

	5 DRAFT Minutes_20241022_Study Session
	COUNCILMEMBERS AND PERSONNEL
	ADJOURN
	Mayor Onisko adjourned the meeting at 6:50 p.m.

	6 Agenda Briefing Vent Hoods
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	7 Resolution 1354_1024 Vent Hoods
	8 BHC-24011 Amend 1
	9 Signed WO BHC-24011_Reservoir Vents
	10 2024 September Monthly Financial report FINAL
	11 Municipal Court Briefing for 12-3-2024 Council Meeting
	12 Briefing_Legislative Agenda
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	13 Res No. 1353-1024_2025 Legislative Agenda
	14 AWC 2025 Priorities
	2025 AWC legislative agenda
	2025 City Legislative Priorities
	Fiscal sustainability
	Public safety
	Infrastructure investment
	Increasing housing supply
	Increase behavioral health treatment capacity statewide
	Issues that are significant to cities
	Indigent defense
	Organized retail theft
	Incentivize condominium construction
	Public records
	Preserve manufactured home parks
	Fish passage
	Homelessness response
	Product stewardship for packaging (WRAP Act)
	Reduce city liability exposure
	Nutrient General Permit
	Increase availability of affordable and accessible childcare

	Issues that cities support
	Tax code structural changes
	B&O tax on royalties
	Asylum seeker and migrant assistance
	Balancing employee leave and benefits requirements
	Public meetings
	Emergency management and response
	First responder mental wellness
	Elections
	Increase digital equity and accessibility statewide
	Electrical grid stability
	Increase tools for annexation
	Ensure better coordination of development standards in unincorporated UGAs and cities to facilitate future annexations
	Amend the Involuntary Treatment Act (ITA)
	Firefighter safety and electrification response
	State Crime Lab




	15 Briefing Fleet Management Master Equity Lease Agreements
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	16 Resolution 1355-1124 Enterprise Lease Agreement
	17 Scanned EFM - Master Equity Lease Agmt
	18 Scanned EFM - Assignment Agreement to Sell FM Customer Vahicles
	19 Scanned EFM - Current Vehicle Maintenance Agreement
	20 Scanned EFM - Shelton Consignment Auction Agreement for Sale of Customer Owned Vehicles
	21 Scanned EFM - New Vehicle Maintenance Agreement
	22 Briefing  2024 Supplemental Budget
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	23 Ordinance 2026-1024 Budget Supplemental w Exhibit A
	24 Exhibit B - 2024 Supplemental 1 Detail   Final
	Sheet1

	25 Agenda Briefing_Sales and Use Tax for Housing
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	26 ORDINANCE NO 2027-1024 Housing and Related Services Sales Tax
	27 Attachment A - Funding Options and Potential Work Plan
	28 Agenda Briefing Labor Contracts
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	29 Resolution No. 1360-1124 Labor Contracts
	30 Police Guild Agreement 2025-2027
	AGREEMENT
	AGREEMENT
	BY AND BETWEEN
	CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON
	AND THE
	SHELTON POLICE GUILD
	1. General
	1.1. Purpose
	1.2 Public Employees
	1.3 Community Service
	2. Recognition
	3. Payroll and Paydays
	3.1 Guild Membership
	3.2 Payroll Deduction
	3.3 Dues Cancellation
	3.4 City Indemnification
	Guild employees are required to enroll in direct deposit with a financial institution of their choosing.
	Paydays are bi-monthly and shall be on the 10th and 25th of each month. If either date falls on a holiday or weekend, employees are paid on the preceding workday.
	4. Employees Elected As Guild Shop Stewards
	5. Grievance and Arbitration Procedures
	5.1 Step 1 Immediate Supervisor
	5.2 Step 2 Police Chief
	If the grievance is not settled in Step 1, it shall be referred in writing to the Police Chief within ten (10) business days after the designated supervisor's answer in Step 1 and shall be signed by the employee or the Guild representative. Grievances...
	5.3 Step 3 City Manager
	5.4 Step 4 Arbitration
	5.5 Decision and Time Limits
	5.6 Costs and Expenses
	The fee and expenses of the arbitrator and court reporter shall be shared by the parties. Each party shall be responsible for all costs arising from its own representatives, attorneys and witnesses.
	5.7 Time Limits
	6. Prevailing Rights
	7. Rules and Regulations
	The Guild agrees its members shall comply with all department rules and regulations, including those related to conduct and work performance.
	8. Management Rights
	Any and all rights concerned with the management and operation of the Police Department are exclusively that of the City unless otherwise specifically provided by the terms of this Agreement.  The City has the right, among other actions, to adopt rule...
	9. Anti-Strike
	10. Wages and Longevity
	10.1 General Wage Adjustment
	10.2 Longevity
	10.3 Detectives Premium
	11. Deferred Compensation Match
	12. Hours of Work and Overtime
	12.1 Work Week
	12.2 Workday/Work Schedule
	12.3 Work Schedule
	The normal patrol or specialty assignment work schedule shall consist of a combination of shifts described in section 12.2 and as agreed upon by the Chief of Police and Guild.  All work schedules will comply with state and federal labor laws and suppo...
	12.4 Shift Rotation  Except under extenuating circumstances, regularly established shift changes are considered to occur not more frequently than once every three (3) months or less frequently than once every nine (9) months at the discretion of the C...
	12.5 Establishing a New Shift/Workweek
	12.6 Shift Assignment
	12.7 Shift Start Changes
	12.8 Call Back Minimum
	12.9 Compensatory Time
	12.10 On Call Time
	12.11 Labor-Management Committee
	13.1 Educational Reimbursement  Upon prior approval by the Chief of Police, an employee is eligible to receive reimbursement for tuition and required textbooks for up to an annual total of $2,500.  The employee must be enrolled in an approved, accredi...
	13.2 Educational Premium
	14. Court and Hearing Pay
	15. Acting Supervisor
	16. Instructor, Field Officer Training, Officer in Charge, & Bilingual Pay
	16.1 Instructor’s Pay
	16.2 Field Training Officer (FTO) Pay
	16.3 Officer in Charge Pay
	16.5 Shift Differential Pay
	16.6 K-9 Officer
	17. Sick Leave and Paid Family Medical Leave
	17.1 Accumulation and Ceiling
	17.2 Immediate Family
	All employees of the Police Department shall be allowed up to five (5) days for death in the immediate family: sickness or emergency or other similar unforeseen circumstances in the immediate family which requires the employee to attend to a family me...
	Immediate family is defined in the City's Policy and Procedure Manual 200-1520
	17.4 Sick Leave Buy Back
	17.5 Light Duty Assignments
	17.6 Sick Leave Buy Back at Retirement or Separation
	18. Health and Welfare
	18.1 Dental Plan
	18.2 Vision Plan
	18.3 Modifications
	18.4 Life Insurance
	18.5 Disability Insurance
	20. Clothing Allowance
	20.1 Uniforms
	20.1.1
	20.1.2
	20.1.3
	20.2 Protective Clothing and Devices
	20.3 Training Ammunition
	20.4 Equipment and Uniform Repair and Replacement
	20.5 Uniform Replacement
	20.6 SWAT Assignment and Equipment
	21. Holidays
	Each employee who works on any holiday as referred to in City of Shelton Policy 200-1503 shall be paid at their regular pay rate plus one and one-half times their regular pay rate, for a total of two and one-half times their regular pay rate. Officers...
	21.2 Holiday Compensation
	21.2.1 Wages
	Officers who are on a scheduled day off on a holiday shall be paid for eight (8) hours at the employee's regular rate of pay or elect to accrue eight (8) hours of holiday time in lieu of receiving the eight (8) hours at the employee’s regular pay rate.
	Officers who are scheduled to work on a shift that begins on the actual holiday, as provided in Policy 200-1503, will receive their regular pay rate plus one and one-half times their regular pay rate, for a total of two and one-half times their regula...
	22. Vacation
	23. Discipline and Discharge
	23.1 Discipline
	23.2 Oral Reprimands
	23.4 Internal Investigations Procedures
	24. Probationary Period
	25. Guild Meetings
	26. Matters Covered and Compete Agreement
	27. Savings Clause
	28. Duration
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D
	1.1 Effective with the January 2025 payroll, based on the employee and their dependents’ medical insurance enrollment, the Employer shall contribute a flat dollar amount of up to one thousand nine hundred dollars ($1,900) per month toward the cost of ...
	1.2 Any remaining balance between the $1,900 and the actual cost of medical insurance for an employee and the employee’s enrolled dependents shall be paid by the employee.
	1.3 The City agrees to pay the sum of two hundred and fifty dollars ($250.00) per month into a Health Reimbursement Account (HRA) for the benefit of all Guild members.
	1.4 Employees who choose a High Deductible plan may request that the City contribute 100% of the savings to the City between HealthFirst 250 and the High Deductible plan into a Health Savings Account (HSA).
	1.5 In no case shall the monthly total contribution the City will pay for medical premiums and an HRA exceed $1,950.
	2


	31 Shelton Employees Guild 1 year Agreement 2025
	32 Customer Service CBA 2025-2027
	ARTICLE 1 PREAMBLE
	ARTICLE 2 RECOGNITION
	ARTICLE 3 UNION SECURITY
	ARTICLE 4 UNION REPRESENTATIVES
	ARTICLE 5 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS
	ARTICLE 6 HOURS OF WORK/OVERTIME
	ARTICLE 7 VACATION
	ARTICLE 8 SICK LEAVE
	ARTICLE 9 BEREAVEMENT LEAVE
	ARTICLE 10 FAMILY/MEDICAL LEAVE
	ARTICLE 11 HOLIDAYS
	ARTICLE 12 NOTICE OF DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE
	ARTICLE 13 GRIEVANCE
	ARTICLE 14 HEALTH AND WELFARE INSURANCE BENEFITS
	ARTICLE 15 WAGES AND LONGEVITY
	ARTICLE 16 DEFERRED COMPENSATION MATCH
	ARTICLE 17 SAVINGS CLAUSE
	ARTICLE 18 ENTIRE AGREEMENT
	ARTICLE 19 CONTRACTING/SUBCONTRACTING
	ARTICLE 20 NO STRIKE, NO LOCKOUT
	ARTICLE 21 SENIORITY
	ARTICLE 22 EMERGENCY COOPERATION
	ARTICLE 23 DURATION
	APPENDIX A
	APPENDIX B
	APPENDIX C
	APPENDIX D


